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Five years' financial summary

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013
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Revenue

Profit/(Loss) attributable to

the owners of the Company
Dividends
Earnings/(Loss) per share

(HKS) (Note a)
Dividends per share (HK$) (Note a)
Dividend cover (time)

Assets and liabilities
Fixed assets (Note b)
Deferred tax assets
Other non-current assets
Mortgage loans*
Net current assets/(liabilities)
Non-current liabilities

Net assets

Net assets per share (HK$)

*
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“E-=f C-E-Zf CZE-—§ CZE-TF CZEEN%
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
TR TEL TET FEL TET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(EE5) (7)) (|BE5) (7))

(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)

52,763 37,751 40,473 38,790 46,949
106,286 157,677 284,460 232,722 (448,392)
39,461 34,799 30,592 10,220 -
0.25 0.38 0.76 0.78 (1.67)

0.09 0.08 0.08 0.03 N/A

2.7 4.5 9.3 22.8 N/A
4,042,840 3,801,846 3,594,130 3,642,711 3,392,703
4,437 27,918 21,969 19,835 -
5,692 5,692 2,418 2,402 950

47 69 108 108 126
1,197,029 825,215 1,064,890 24,279 (73,809)
(840,676) (456,302) (653,938) (43,854) (426,766)
4,409,369 4204438 4029577 3645481 2,893,204
9.86 10 10.02 9.36 10.66

non-current portion only

Notes:

FEFNHz @

BROBBZMEFHBEERBEEE_ZF
NFER-ZBELFRA=ZTHIEFERNE
TZHBREE ZANTEmELFHE
BE R E&RFHIRMG 2 BET -

b)) BEEEER
-

BEREME ME HBIRRKR b

Except for 2010 and 2009, the weighted average number of

ordinary shares outstanding for all years as at the respective

year end dates presented have been adjusted to reflect the

bonus element of the rights issue and placements during the
years ended 30 June 2008 and 2007 and as if these events had

taken place at the beginning of the earliest period presented.

Fixed assets include investment properties and property, plant

and equipment.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
will be held at 35/F., Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250 Hennessy
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Wednesday, the 13 day of

November 2013 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:

1 To receive and consider the Statement of Accounts and

the Reports of the Directors and Auditors for the year
ended 30 June 2013;

2 To declare final dividend;

3  To elect Directors and fix their remuneration;

4 To appoint Auditors and fix their remuneration; and

5 As special business to consider and if thought fit, pass

the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:—

A That:

(i)

(ii)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period of
all the powers of the Company to repurchase
shares in the capital of the Company be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally

approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company to
repurchase its own shares at a price per share

determined by the Directors at their discretion;
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(i) NRARIRE EXE0)E 28L& (iii) the aggregate nominal amount of the share
ERER LD 2 AR R EE capital of the Company which the Company
wEE o B TEBBAARCETT is authorised to repurchase pursuant to the
BRAEELFEAD ZT approval in paragraph (i) above shall not

exceed 10 per cent of the aggregate nominal

amount of the share capital of the Company in

issue;
(iv) BARBEREMS - (iv) for the purposes of this Resolution:

[BRAHRE |5 R ARRE AR “Relevant Period” means the period from the

ZBETIN=F22RFHHIE passing of this Resolution until whichever is

2 B the earliest of:

() BBARERZIEFTEIT (a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
ZE-RBRRBFREHE Meeting of the Company following the
REF - R ARG R passing of this Resolution at which time it
RIFEZASBIBEBER shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
BREFRBR 2 REE passed at that meeting, the authorisation
B (i A | A ) conferred by this Resolution is renewed,

either unconditionally or subject to
conditions;

(b) ARBRBOEDIAETT (b) the expiration of the period within which
2 TERRAEXg R the next Annual General Meeting of the
fEmz B+ & Company is required by law to be held;

and

(c) MRERRBFRG LI (c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
B R R R R by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

IREFEEE o in general meeting.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

B That:

(i)

(iii)

following any repurchase of shares in the
capital of the Company pursuant to the
authorisation conferred on the Directors under
Ordinary Resolution A above, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to allot
additional shares in the Company, and to make
offers, agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such power, equivalent
to the number of shares so repurchased be
and is hereby generally and unconditionally
approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to the
Directors of the Company and shall authorise
the Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the company to
allot or make offers, agreements and options
to allot additional shares which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the
Relevant Period;

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to
conditions;

(b) the expiration of the period within which
the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company is required by law to be held;
and

(c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
by ordinary resolution of the shareholders
in general meeting.
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C That:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

subject to paragraph (iii) below, pursuant to
section 57B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, the exercise by the Directors of
the Company during the Relevant Period of all
the powers of the Company to allot additional
shares and to make or grant offers, agreements
and options which might require the exercise
of such power be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (i) above shall be
in addition to any other authorisation given
to the Directors of the Company and shall
authorise the Directors of the Company during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of the
Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted by the Directors
of the Company pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (i) above, otherwise than pursuant
to a rights issue or on the exercise of the
subscription rights under any warrants, shall
not exceed the aggregate of 20 per cent of the
aggregate amount of the issued share capital of
the Company; and

for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the
passing of this Resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(a) the conclusion of the first Annual General
Meeting of the Company following the
passing of this Resolution at which time it
shall lapse unless, by ordinary resolution
passed at that meeting, the authorisation
conferred by this Resolution is renewed,
either unconditionally or subject to
conditions;
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(b) ARATBEBIEMMBLRIT (b) the expiration of the period within which
Z TERREFTKGHR the next Annual General Meeting of the
fEmz B+ & Company is required by law to be held;
and

(0 BRREBRBFAE LA (c) revocation or variation of this Resolution
EIRABER I E LR by ordinary resolution of the shareholders

IREFER o in general meeting.
[EEFRIERAAAESTEREIE “Rights issue” means an offer of shares open for a
el 1) AR 3R 2 1 R 78 46 5 42 8% B HA AT & period fixed by the Directors to holders of shares on
ZEHEEAREEBAIEERMG T the register on a fixed record date in proportion to
BIRREFR zERE (EARFEESA their then holdings of such shares (subject to such
MEW RN E B AN DI 2 K2 exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors of
HEMRAEHEEXEFELELR I Z the Company may deem necessary or expedient in
MRE M ELE 2 ERRGIHEER S relation to fractional entitlements or having regard to
BREERIEETREEL A any restrictions or obligations under the laws of, or the
RS E R B BE) - requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any

stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong).

HEEE M By Order of the Board
NIE 8- Connie S. F. Ho
£ F Company Secretary
BB ZE—=FAHA=+HH Hong Kong, 25 September 2013
T ERE Registered Office:
BAREBT 30/F-35/F
S EFFB2505% Cheuk Nang Plaza
PR ES 250 Hennessy Road
30—351& Wanchai

Hong Kong
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RO KERAEFASREETMES
E/Q\“E‘?L T =

(M ABERAFRAEBRRAEZENRET KRR

HoE— R @ AR QR

A)RABERL N AABBLRAZRAME
EESRRBERBUENSAEFTAA
AR - REBR EMHER] - BBERRR
RO —ARIELHE -

Notes:

Every member entitled to attend and vote at the above
meeting is entitled to appoint one or more proxies to attend
and vote instead of him. A proxy need not be a member of
the Company but must be present in person to represent the

member.

Where there are joint registered holders of any shares, any
one of such persons may attend and vote at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such shares as if
he were solely entitled thereto; but if more than one of such
joint holders be present at the Meeting personally or by proxy,
that one of the said persons so present whose name stands first
on the register of members of the Company in respect of such

shares shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof.

In order to be valid, the form of proxy duly completed and
signed in accordance with the instructions printed on it
together with the power of attorney or other authority, if
any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified copy
of it must be deposited at the office of the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Ltd., at
Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the
time appointed for holding of the Meeting or any adjournment
thereof. The completion and delivery of the form of proxy will
not preclude you from attending and voting in person at the

Meeting or any adjournment thereof if you so wish.

The purpose of Ordinary Resolution 5A of this Notice is to
seek approval from shareholders for a general mandate to

repurchase shares in the Company.

Concerning Ordinary Resolutions 5B and 5C of this Notice,
the Directors wish to state that they have no immediate plans
to issue any new shares of the Company; approval is being
sought from members as a general mandate in compliance

with the Listing Rules.
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Chairman’s Statement

I present herewith to shareholders the report of Cheuk
Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2013.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The consolidated profit after income tax of our Group for
the year ended 30 June 2013 is HK$140,714,000 (2012:
HK$167,165,000). Details are set out in the consolidated

income statement.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK5 cents (2012: HK4.5 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 22
November 2013, which together with the interim dividend
of HK4.5 cents (2012: HK4 cents) per share, makes a total
distribution of HK9.5 cents (2012: HK8.5 cents) per share
this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 19 December
2013.

SCRIP DIVIDEND

The Company proposes that a scrip dividend election will
be offered to shareholders with Hong Kong addresses.
Details of the scrip dividend scheme will be announced

later.

BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS

A bonus warrants of 8,943,198 units at an initial share
subscription price at HK$4.00 per share were issued on 24
June 2013 (“2014 June Warrants”). The 2014 June Warrants
are exercisable at any time between 24 June 2013 and until
4:00 p.m. on 24 June 2014. The warrants are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange with stock code no. 944 and the

dealing was commenced on 25 June 2013.
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BONUS ISSUE OF WARRANTS (Continued)

Until now, there are a total of 72,737 units of 2014 June
Warrants are being exercised, being approximately 0.82%
of the total issued warrants and a sum of HK$291,000 being

credited to the accounts.

On 24 September 2013, the trading prices of the shares
(Stock 131) and warrants (Stock 944) on the market are
HK$6.36 and HK$2.44 respectively. Shareholders are well

benefited from the warrants.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
Hong Kong Properties

Under the influence of the issuance of government new
policies and the increase in mortgage rates by some
major banks in March, residential market performance
was lackluster in general. At the same time, after the
implementation of Residential Properties (First-hand Sales)
Ordinance on 29 April, developers’ hesitancy to offer new
properties for sale in light of the new ordinance caused
transaction volume drop affecting the business of real estate
agents. Property prices have significantly come down from
their peak in early this year. The increase in the minimum
wage in May 2013 has exerted pressure on the economy
and inflated the construction cost. Nevertheless, the recent
sales of some new developments put on the market have

shown sign of stabilisation in both price and volume.
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Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Properties (Continued)

The progress of our projects in Hong Kong are as follows:—

One Kowloon Peak at No. 8 Po Fung Terrace, Ting Kau,

Tsuen Wan

Residential project developed in two phases.

Phase | comprised of a block of 21-storey building with
49 residential units (including 6 duplex units) and 39
car parking spaces. The gross floor area of the units
ranged from 1,200 square feet to 3,500 square feet.
Phase Il comprised of clubhouse, 29 car parking spaces
and five 3-storey garden villas. The gross floor area
of the villas ranged from approximately 1,800 square
feet to 3,000 square feet. The clubhouse provides

recreational facilities and swimming pool.

Phase | already completed and interior improvement
works are being carried out. The sales office and show

flats are under decoration.

The superstructure work of Phase Il was commenced
in April 2013 and it is anticipated that Phase Il will be
completed by the end of 2014. The presale consent for
both Phases | and Il is under application pending for

approval and marketing for sales will soon commence.

Villa Cecil Phase I, 192 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of three blocks of
4-storey low density residential building provides 24
residential units. Ten units have been sold and the total
remaining marketable gross floor area is 51,483 square
feet. The gross floor area of the apartments ranged from

approximately 2,800 square feet to 4,000 square feet.

9 of the remaining 14 units are rented out.

11
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Properties (Continued)

3. Villa Cecil Phase Ill, 216 Victoria Road, Pokfulam

Residential development comprised of two blocks
of 4-storey building for rental purpose. The total
marketable gross floor area is 97,000 square feet. Block
1 provides 8 residential units and Block 2 provides 32

units. The gross floor area of the apartments ranged

from 760 square feet to 3,800 square feet.

The two blocks have achieved 85% occupancy rate

with satisfactory rental income.

4. Cheuk Nang Plaza, 250 Hennessy Road

A 31-storey commercial building and 25 car parking

spaces for rental purposes and our own usage. The total

marketable gross floor area is 73,000 square feet.

The occupancy rate of the building has increased to

80%.

5. Cheuk Nang Lookout, 30 Severn Road, The Peak

A residential development comprised of three deluxe
3-storey residential villas, namely Villa Astor, Villa
Begonia and Villa Crocus. Villa Astor was sold and
the remaining two villas are for rental purposes. The
total marketable gross floor area of the two villas is
approximately 12,500 square feet. Each villa has its

own private swimming pool, garden, internal lift and

two car parking spaces.

Villa Begonia being leased and Villa Crocus is vacant.
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Chairman’s Statement

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS AND PROSPECTS
(Continued)
Hong Kong Properties (Continued)

6. New Villa Cecil, No. 33 Cheung Chau Sai Tai Road,
Cheung Chau

A residential project developed into 2 phases with
total marketable gross floor area approximately 58,000

square feet.

Phase | comprised of nineteen 2-storey residential
villas. The gross floor area of the villas ranged from

1,450 square feet to 2,700 square feet.

Phase Il comprised of four 2-storey residential
villas. The gross floor area of the villas ranged from

approximately 2,000 square feet to 12,000 square feet.

Recreational facilities including swimming pool and

landscape garden are provided.

Phase |
The Occupation Permit of Phase | already issued.

Interior fit-out works are in progress.

Phase Il
The site formation and foundation work has been
completed. Superstructure work will be commenced

soon.

13



14

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR

FRBES

Chairman’s Statement

Sal= kY S
HRARIINEETHE T —_FFEMSK
R EREMAEGHELFIER - £
T-—FMAENER  FNEEWERHE
BEREFHME -BRTELXEMEMRR
6T RZEMFIEHE - |EME WL EIT
BREEHIRIN T F LA o

MERBEEMSNIRER  ZHEER
BRERNMEEAES  ZBEBEEREAN
e _FREEMHSHNRIEHLA LM -

EMMN —E-—=FMANEEmEHX
REZFFTIAE AABAEE - MMIE
HRBYERESHZERBESELN
EA - UNE B E R Z BB R EL
BwE_E-ZFNARIIEEAERE
MARLIHEE - ARG LFEEOB XD
B BERANEE BEREFREZELT
— A< ASFEMEIR

o

Annual Report 2013 £33

China Properties

As the residential market of Shenzhen rebounded since the
end of 2012, developers became active in launching their
projects. In the first six months of 2013, supply of new
residential property grew and was twice from last year’s
figures. Apart from Bao’an and Longgang Districts which
accounted for the overwhelming majority of new supply,
Futian and Nanshan Districts recorded some new supply as

well.

Sentiment in the residential market is recovering and the
differentiated credit policy and housing accumulation funds
have encouraged potential buyers to enter the market. The
transaction volume in the secondary residential market also

increased.

In Hangzhou, the transaction volume of newly built
commodity housing reached its peak in April 2013 and
slightly eased in May 2013. The expectation of a property
tax in Hangzhou pushed many developers to bring forward
their project launch dates. In addition, the Hangzhou
local government has tried to stabilise the economy by
introducing measures in September 2013 to promote
the domestic expenditure. Although, the effectiveness of
such measures is still wait to be seen yet we can see the
government’s desire to promote development indicated an

encouraging signal.
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China Properties (Continued)
Cheuk Nang Carden
Longhwa, Shenzhen

The development is situated at Lot No. A819-0128, North of
Bao Lung Gong Lu, Longhwa, Bao’an District with land area
of 51,323 square metres (approximately 552,454 square
feet). The total approved gross floor area is 152,230 square
metres (approximately 1,638,604 square feet). It is planned
to build 9 blocks of multi-storey buildings consisted of
1,089 residential units, 1,054 car parking spaces, a 3-storey
kindergarten, clubhouse, garden and shopping centre with
provision of swimming pool, tennis court, basketball court.
The size of the residential units ranged from 70 square
metres (753 square feet) to 147 square metres (1,582 square

feet).

The construction of the project is estimated to be completed
by next year. The contract for decoration of the sales office
and show flats was awarded and the work is in progress. The

advertising and market promotion have commenced.

Cheuk Nang e Riverside
Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou

The development is situated in Yue Hang Qu, Hangzhou
with land area of 38,983 square metres (419,623 square
feet). The total approved gross floor area is 122,483 square
metres (1,318,407 square feet). It is planned to build
14 blocks of multi-storey buildings which provides 849
residential units, 22 deluxe villas by the riverside, 780

car parking spaces, clubhouse, recreational facilities and
shopping centre. The size of the residential units and villas
ranged from 65 square metres (700 square feet) to 270

square metres (2,906 square feet).

The framework of the structure of the development has
been completed and it is anticipated that the presale will be

launched next year.

15



16

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR

FRBESE

Chairman’s Statement

NSRS

BEBRNAMESRETET B KEEX
—ERIFE2%LAT o — Le 37 B35 FUE B A
HEEBKRREE NMEZEEERAED
IEE  ERER=ZFAKAMISIRMHEERE
HEBEERA_BETARK BEFXTFTHESR
EFARMOERT AL MEHBAST
HIPBR Il - TEFHDRPIARER NG E L -

IR A&

TH B AL RIS IR A BEE T E TS A£9,044
FFHK(97,361FFR) - Al EEEAEEE
75 #91,600,000F 5 R - I8 B B {E5E % [E
NERMEI47@FEEN K — BB L E
RAABEEYPOLREEMN - FTEEMEE
430 77 R £2,500°F 77 R - I 2 57 K
o =R RERERSFEILEER -

T—=—F-ARXNFTNRERER
WEBE-_TS—=—FAWHBMNEH
;.?tt/ﬁ %TLi‘JWF‘ﬁEF‘@%%E’U%ﬁ?'
Z(IREFBER) BAMAES
WRERERERMBERSE {I%EAZLEXE
2 F R REITE  KIEFTRREEEH
KT ARZRMBATEL -

Annual Report 2013 £33

Macau Property

According to the statistic released by the government,
the unemployment rate of Macau has maintained below
2%. Some of the new casino and resort projects have
commenced operation recently plus more new projects
under development, and this will provide an aggregate
floor area exceeding 2 million square metres which are
planned to come to market within the next three years.
The construction industry is facing a shortage of skilled
construction workers in addition to the restrictions on

importing labour and as a result, the construction costs in

Macau are expected to rise.

Estrada de Seac Pai Van, Coloane

The development is situated at Estrada de Seac Pai Van
in Coloane, Macau with site area of 9,044 square metres
(97,361 square feet). The marketable gross floor area is
approximately 1,600,000 square feet. It comprised of 5
blocks of multi-storey buildings providing 1,147 residential
units and 1 block of hotel and large shopping mall and
car parking spaces. The size of the residential units ranged
from approximately 430 square feet to 2,500 square feet.
recreation facilities and

Swimming pool, clubhouse,

landscape garden are provided.

The new environmental and air ventilation report submitted
in January 2013 was approved by the Macau authorities in
the mid of June 2013. In order to fulfill the requirements of
the Macau authorities, the building plans (ante projecto de
obra) have to be revised to cope with the environmental and
air ventilation report. The revision of the building plans will
involve a large amount of work which will be submitted for

approval by next month.
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Malaysia Properties

Domestic demand has continued to support growth amid the
weaknesses in external demand. Sustained income growth
and stable labour market will support private consumption.
Activities for domestic investment has been robust and will
continue to be led by capital spending and the ongoing
implementation of infrastructure projects. Overall growth
prospects will remain steady. The property price has been

improved.

Cecil Chao Centre

Lot 1359, 11385 and 11386, Section 57, Lorong Perak,

Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia.
The project developed into phases.

Phase | named “Parkview”

The development is a ready built 41-storey residential
building providing 417 residential units and 163 car parking
spaces. The total approved gross floor area is 325,626

square feet. Most units have already been sold.

A few unsold units are operated as serviced apartments with

70% occupancy rate.

Phases Il named “Central Plaza”

The development comprised of 4 blocks of residential
condominium with total approved gross floor area is
1,708,648 square feet provides 879 residential units and
887 car parking spaces. The size of the units ranged from
approximately 570 square feet to 6,000 square feet. Club
facilities including swimming pool, landscaped garden and

recreational facilities are provided.

The pile caps and the basement are in progress. It is
anticipated that the work will be finished early next year

before the commencement of the superstructure work.
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INVESTMENT IN HONG KONG STOCK
MARKET

The market price of our investment in the Hong Kong stocks
as at 30 June 2013 is HK$48,506,000 as compared to
HK$78,874,000 as at 30 June 2012. During the year, a total
of HK$48,317,000 stock was sold and HK$10,706,000 stock

was purchased.

OUTLOOK

In spite of the Hong Kong government’s efforts to speed up
the land supply which still will take quite a long step ahead,
residential supply will remain tight in the next few years.
With various cooling measures remaining in place, the
property market will continue stay less active and price will

remain relatively soft for the time being.

Looking ahead, Hong Kong has a healthy fundamental
which provide support to the local economy. Dow Jones has
recently rated Hong Kong as No. 3 international financial
centre in the world for 2013, nevertheless, we must watch
carefully the uncertainty of the U.S.A. monetary policies and

international financial circumstances.

In general, the performance of Hong Kong real estate market
may not be bullish in the near future but our investment in
China will give strong support to our future income in long

run.
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EERBET DIRECTORS AND STAFF
AABRREBERHGHSESTNETAEFA | am most grateful on behalf of the Group for the dedication
HARRNER o of our directors and staff during the year.

RAMMBEE  AABHMITESRE AHEHETE1E  As at the date of this announcement, the Executive Directors

+(xE) BXENE BREHLLE S are Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil (Chairman), Miss Chao Gigi,

g gt E BBt FEMITESEAZT  Mr. Chao Howard, Mr. Yung Philip and Ms. Ho Sau Fun,

SELE BUIENITEE AEFREIEL - Connie; the Non-Executive Director is Mr. Lee Ding Yue

TFSEERMKEEE - Joseph; the Independent Non-Executive Directors are Dr.
Sun Ping Hsu, Samson, Mr. Ting Woo Shou, Kenneth and
Mr. Lam Ka Wai, Graham.

AES S0 By order of the Board
iR Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
HITER Executive Chairman

EB —E—=FHNA=-+HA Hong Kong, 25 September 2013



20

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR

EEREEEEASEHNT

Annual Report 2013 £33

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EEREEEEAEREN

2=

HitE-EITERE

HEELT BE775 BASEMEIR AR
=N \NFREAEBHITEF - #HiF
TEEREBEDurham K2 - LB LE
B HENRSEHME  |RE - P LESE
ITREAOF MM EERFTETEREE
P TIERBEXEBHWERRESESE
30F c M I BB MELEMEREERE
ZMMBeeE RERNEMNEXNBLEFLT
£ o BB Tt LE_STIUF 2 REHE
AN RABMRABRAFRRTEAESFAR
RAIZEBREZHEBA  ZRAIIAE
EIERARE - BTN ARRAIKE QA
EIESE B HELNER_ZTNF
NAZ+—RB&E=E—=—F+=-A=+—
AHREELEZERER AR (RO AR -
128) B EMITEE  Z 2R EBBHE
R BRARIMERLEM -

MR

ML - 455%  BEXERRBEERBEAE
RESH AR EELEU -BABAES
SRS ENXBEEFMBEEE - M

REE AR B —RIRE RS F e

TERE  RERERTHFAEBHNTILE
K RemthkBEXTETEBBR=F
K- BN ABMX EmARIFEE®RE
BEBAERAR (RHARIE:290) - EEE
BREFARAR (RMHMAIR : 1229) ~ FH
RREBARAT (RHRH - 1363) KA
EEBEERAR (MDA : 8063) 2L
EMITEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT
DIRECTORS

CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil — Executive Chairman

Dr. Chao, aged 77, is the founder and Executive Chairman
of the Group since 1988. Dr. Chao obtained a Bachelor
of architecture degree, with honours, from The University
of Durham, England and subsequently worked in the
field of property, investment, finance and architectural
design for over forty years. He has also worked for Hong
Kong Government Building Department and Architectural
Office and elected as director of Hong Kong Real Estate
Developers’ Association for consecutive 30 years. He is a
Hong Kong registered architect and a member of the Royal
Institute of British Architect and has obtained Honorary
Doctor Degree (Ph. D.) from the U.S. Morrison University.
Dr. Chao is also awarded 2004’s World Outstanding
Chinese and is the Chairman and beneficial owner of Yan
Yin Company Limited and Szehope Securities Company
Limited which are the controlling shareholders of the
Group. Dr. Chao is also director of the subsidiaries of
the Group. Dr. Chao was the Independent Non-Executive
Director of ENM Holdings Limited (stock code: 128) from 21
September 2004 to 31 December 2012, a Mainboard listed
company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

LAM Ka Wai Graham

Mr. Lam, aged 45, graduated from the University of
Southampton, England with a Bachelor of Science degree
in Accounting and Statistics. He is a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a member of
the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lam is currently the Managing Director — Corporate Finance
of an investment bank and has around 19 years experience
in investment banking as well as over 3 years experience in
accounting and auditing. He is also the independent non-
executive director of China Fortune Financial Group Limited
(stock code: 290), Nan Nan Resources Enterprise Limited
(stock code: 1229), CT Environmental Group Limited (stock
code: 1363) and Well Way Group Limited (stock code:
8063), companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.
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In addition, Mr.
director of Applied Development Holdings Limited (stock
code: 519) from 1 October 2005 to 12 December 2011,
Pearl Oriental Oil Limited (stock code: 632) from 3 October
2008 to 19 March 2013, King Stone Energy Group Limited
(stock code: 663) from 23 April 2012 to 22 March 2013,
Value Convergence Holdings Limited (stock code: 821) from
4 January 2010 to 24 May 2012, China Oriental Culture
Group Limited (stock code: 2371) from 29 January 2008 to
5 October 2010, Hao Wen Holdings Limited (stock code:
8019) from 17 November 2010 to 16 May 2011,
Strategic Holdings Limited (stock code: 8089) from 22
December 2008 to 27 April 2012 and Finet Group Limited
(stock code: 8317) from 5 August 2009 to 24 January 2011,
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Lam was the independent non-executive

Chinese

SUN Ping Hsu Samson

Dr. Sun, M.B.E., J.P., aged 88,
of the Sun International Group of Companies.

is currently the Chairman
He is also
holding independent non-executive directorship in two
other companies listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, namely Oriental Watch
Holdings Limited and National Electronics Holdings
Limited. He was the Deputy Chairman and a Director of
Inchcape Hong Kong Ltd. and its predecessor Gilman &
Co. Ltd. from 1967 to his retirement in 1985. Dr. Sun has
over 59 years experience in marketing, distribution and
manufacturing of wrist watches, and 27 years in marketing
and distribution of consumer products and electronic goods.
He has been a pioneer in developing trade with China
since 1979, and continued to be active in both trading and
manufacturing in China.

Dr. Sun has a long service record in leader’s capacity
in many voluntary community services and charitable
organisations, including Tung Wah Group of Hospitals, the
Community Chest and Scout Association of Hong Kong.
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TING Woo Shou Kenneth

Mr. Ting, SBS, JP, aged 71,
Company Limited (Stock Code:

is a director of Kader Holdings
180) for over 40 years
and was appointed the Chairman since 1993. He is also
an Independent Non-executive Director of Wheelock and

Company Limited (Stock Code: 20) since 2003.

Mr. Ting currently serves as the honorary President
The Chinese

Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong and The Toys

of Federation of Hong Kong Industries,
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong Limited, and
the Honorary Life President of the Hong Kong Plastics

Manufacturers’ Association Limited.

Mr. Ting also serves as a member of a number of other
trade organisations and public committees such as The
Hong Kong General Chamber of Commerce and The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University Court. He is a Life Honorary
Court Member of The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology Court. He also serves as member of the
Jiangsu Provincial Committee of Chinese People’s Political

Consultative Conference.

LEE Ding Yue Joseph
Mr. Lee, aged 5T,

Electronics Industries Limited and holds many directorships

is currently the Director of Universal

in companies in Hong Kong and overseas. He earned his
Bachelor degree in Business Management & Economics
from Sophia University Tokyo in 1984. A manufacturing &
property investment veteran with 23 years of experience,
Mr. Lee started his career working for Kyocera Corporation
Japan and returned to Hong Kong in late 1987 to head the
photographic manufacturing equipment business through
the period of conventional film technologies to digital
imaging technologies. Mr. Lee possessed a sound knowledge
in industrial know-how in China and sound experience in

developing distribution network internationally.
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YUNG Philip

Mr. Yung, aged 55, has joined our Group since June,
2005. Mr.
the Accounting industry and Listed Property Developers

Yung has more than 20 years experience in

in Hong Kong. Mr. Yung is currently a Certified Public
Accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Fellow Member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and
holding a Master Degree in Business Administration. Mr.

Yung is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company.

HO Sau-Fun Connie

Miss Ho, aged 46, was appointed as a Director of the
Company since 1996. She is an associate member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and of The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators of U.K.
She has been working in the company secretarial field for
over 25 years. Miss Ho is also a director of the subsidiaries

of the Company.

CHAO Howard

Mr. Chao, aged 29, is the elder son of Dr. Cecil Chao, the
Group Executive Chairman and the controlling shareholder
of the Company and is the brother of Miss Gigi Chao, the
Executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chao has joined
the Group as Executive Manager since January, 2006 and
Executive Director of the Company since 1 December
2006. Mr. Chao holds a Bachelor of Arts in Management
of Business Administration. He is a member of The
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, Beihai
Committee, The Chinese General Chamber of Commerce,
Liaoning Youth Federation, The Y. Elites Association
Limited. Mr. Chao is the in-charge of the marketing, sales &
leasing and property management of the Group’s properties,

and of the development projects in Mainland China.
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CHAO Gigi

Miss Chao, aged 34, is the eldest daughter of Dr. Cecil
Chao, the Group Executive Chairman and the controlling
shareholder of the Company and is the elder sister of Mr.
Howard Chao, the Executive Director of the Company.
Miss Chao has joined the Group since February 2011 as
Senior Project Manager and Executive Director since April
2011. She graduated from the University of Manchester,
Manchester School of Architecture, England with a Bachelor
of Arts in Architecture with Honours. Subsequently, she
has worked with prominent British Architect and Urban
Designer Sir Terry Farrell for a number of years, and also
managed investments in Marketing and Retail services for

luxury products in Hong Kong and China.

Miss Chao has always been a passionate member of
the community and regularly contributes to charitable
organisations. She is an Honorary Flight Lieutenant of the
Hong Kong Air Cadets Corp, and Vice Chairman of The
Hong Kong Aviation Club.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
WONG Yan Pan

Mr. Wong, aged 39, joined our Group in 2007. Mr. Wong
graduated from The University of Hong Kong holding
Bachelor Degree and Master Degree in Architecture. He
has worked in architectural firm, governmental bodies and
property developers responsible for architectural design
and project management for over 10 years. Mr. Wong is the
Chief Project Manager of the Group overseeing the Group's

projects in China, Macau and Malaysia.



Annual Report 2013 £

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH

ESEREEEEASEHN

Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

THE

ThE RFe8m R-ZTE—=FNLAM
BAEERTTHAKIE - WIFEEEARE
H(RB)BLBUMNERZMERER
FETBEU -FTRERBTBEEMBEE

AEERMER  BAFNGDRZEMBEE
AEE  ERABEREMBEEERED
4

BEEXYREMBEEE - 2R AL-
FEEERD - A PE —REMEZEMMES -

H

TREERETEIFRBIBIOF  H5F
HERBOHBRE - 2R BEMEE)
& AHAFEEFE - BYPOMARREES
SHRESENME  RFTMIABEENL
52 o ECYIRERIREMEER - I B2 H
ZEFEENMTEAENRELEERR -

WONG Po Lung John

Mr. Wong, aged 68, joined our Group since September
2013 as General Manager. He holds a Bachelor degree
in Architecture (Honours) of University of Hong Kong
and a Master degree in Architecture of University of
Toronto, Canada. He is a fellow and past president of
the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, fellow of the
Australian Institute of Architects, member of the Royal
Institute of British Architects and Hong Kong Institute of
Architectural Conservationists. He is an Authorised Person —
Architect, and possesses PRC Class 1 Registered Architect

Qualification.

Mr. Wong has worked in the architectural industry for
over 40 years and is experienced in the planning, design
and project administration of teaching facilities for tertiary
educational institutions, schools, commercial/residential
complexes, public housing projects, shopping centres and
utility buildings. He takes a keen interest in conservation
and has worked on a number of heritage projects in Hong

Kong and mainland China.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil

CHAO Gigi

CHAO Howard

YUNG Philip

HO Sau Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

LEE Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors
SUN Ping Hsu Samson

TING Woo Shou, Kenneth
LAM Ka Wai Graham

AUDIT COMMITTEE
LAM Ka Wai Graham (Chairman)
SUN Ping Hsu Samson

REMUNERATON COMMITTEE
SUN Ping Hsu Samson (Chairman)
CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil

LAM Ka Wai Graham

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CHAO Sze-Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
SUN Ping Hsu Samson

TING Woo Shou Kenneth

COMPANY SECRETARY
HO Sau Fun Connie

REGISTERED OFFICE
30th — 35th Floor

Cheuk Nang Plaza

250 Hennessy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong
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Corporate Information

AUDITORS
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited

Certified Public Accountants

BANKERS

Hong Kong

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Nanyang Commercial Bank Limited

The Bank of Communications, Limited Hong Kong Branch
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited

Overseas

Hong Leong Bank Berhad

SOLICITORS

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.
Ho & Ip Solicitors

Woo Kwan Lee & Lo

SHARE REGISTRARS & TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

LISTING EXCHANGE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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RESULTS

Revenue for the year ended 30 June 2013 (the “Year”)
amounted to HK$52,763,000 (2012: HK$37,571,000),
a 40.4% increase over the same period last year. It was
mainly due to the increase in turnover from rental income.

For property leasing, the Year recorded an increase
of 35.4% in rental income as compared with the
corresponding year in 2012, amounting HK$47,775,000
(2012: HK$35,277,000).

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$31,757,000, a
53.2% increase as compared with the same period last year.

Other income recorded an increase of 67.4% to
HK$10,433,000 when compared with last year. The
other income for the Year were mainly attributable to
gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, dividend income from equity investments
and net exchange gain on overseas investment. Gain
on changes in fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss amounted to HK$773,000 (2012:
loss of HK$10,239,000). Gain on changes in fair value of
investment properties amounted to HK$160,364,000 (2012:
HK$189,590,000). Administrative expenses decreased by
18.3% to HK$27,045,000 as compared with last year.
Other operating expenses for the Year amounted to Nil
(2012: HK$3,753,000). Finance costs recorded an increase
of 62.5% to HK$12,874,000 as compared with the same
period last year.

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for the
Year was HK$106,286,000 (2012: HK$157,677,000).
Basic earnings per share was HK$0.25 (2012: HK$0.38 as
restated) and fully diluted earnings per share was HK$0.24
(2012: HK$0.38 as restated).
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Final dividend of HK4.5 cents for the year ended 30 June
2012 (2011: HK4.5 cents) and an interim dividend of HK4.5
cents per share for the six months ended 31 December 2012
(Six months ended 31 December 2011: HK4 cents). Total
dividend of HK9.0 cents per share were paid during the
Year. Scrip dividend alternative was offered to shareholders
in respect of 2012 final dividend and 2013 interim dividend.
Bonus warrants on the basis of one 2014 June Warrants for
every fifty shares held was issued during the Year.

Final dividend of HK5 cents (2012: HK4.5 cents) and interim
dividend of HK4.5 cents for the Year (2012: HK4 cents).
Scrip dividend alternative was offered to shareholders in
respect of 30 June 2012 final dividend.

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s total equity attributable
to the owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$4,282,150,000 (2012: HK$4,111,647,000 as restated),
an increase of HK$170,503,000 or 4.1% when compared
with 30 June 2012. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 447,159,923 as at 30 June 2013 (2012:
420,416,019 shares),
owners of the Company per share was HK$9.58, a decrease
of 2.0% over 30 June 2012 (HK$9.78 as restated). The
decrease in total equity attributable to the owners of the

the total equity attributable to the

Company per share was mainly attributable to the increase
in fair value of investment properties but offset by increase
in number of ordinary share during the Year.

During the Year, the Group had bought and sold listed
securities investment. Other than the existing projects and
those will be disclosed in the annual report, the Group did
not have any confirmed future plans for material investment
or acquiring capital assets.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT

As at 30 June 2013, the fair value of investment in listed
securities was HK$48,506,000. During the Year, the
portfolio was decreased by a net disposal of HK$42,392,000
and gain in fair value of HK$1,318,000. The listed
securities investments of HK$48,506,000 as at 30 June 2013
representing 0.8% (2012: 1.4%) of the total assets, which
formed part of the Group’s cash management activities.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management
procedures that enable it to identify, measure, monitor
This is
supplemented by active management involvement and

and control the various types of risk it faces.

effective internal controls in the best interests of the Group.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 30 June 2013
and 30 June 2012 were 447,159,923 and 420,416,019
respectively.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings amounted to HK$1,556,644,000 (2012:
HK$1,314,879,000). Cash and bank balances amounted
to HK$78,187,000 (2012: HK$205,521,000) and net
borrowing amounted to HK$1,478,457,000 (2012:
HK$1,109,358,000).

Total debt to equity ratio was 35.3% (2012: 31.3%) and net
debt to equity ratio was 33.5% (2012: 26.4%).

The increase in the total debt to equity ratio and the
increase in net debt to equity ratio were mainly due to
increase in bank borrowing during the Year resulted from
increase in cost incurred in development project.
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At the reporting date, the Group’s bank and other
borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollars,
Renminbi and Malaysian Ringgit. Of the Group’s total
bank and other borrowings HK$1,556,644,000, 20.6%,
15.4% and 64.0% were repayable within 1 year, 1 to 2
years and 2 to 5 years respectively by reference to the
repayment schedule of the loan agreement. The Group’s
bank and other borrowings carried interest rates by
reference to HIBOR, PBRC of PRC and BLR of Malaysia.
HK$100,000,000 interest rate swap contract hedged for
interest rate subsisted at the end of the Year.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2013, the Group’s investment properties,
properties for sales, property, plant and equipment and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss with
their respective carrying value of HK$2,918,447,000
(2012: HK$2,796,980,000), HK$965,897,000
(2012: HK$306,540,000), HK$111,468,000 (2012:
HK$102,130,000) and HK$33,824,000 (2012:
HK$69,429,000) were pledged to secure general banking
facilities of the Group.

FINANCIAL AND INTEREST EXPENSES

Financial costs included interest expenses on bank
and other loans, arrangement, facility and commitment
fee expenses. Interest capitalised for the Year was
HK$29,628,000 as compared to HK$19,006,000 for the
last year. Interest expenses for the Year amounted to
HK$12,874,000, representing 62.5% increase over the
interest expenses of HK$7,922,000 recorded for the same
period last year. The increase in interest expense was mainly
due to increase in other borrowing costs but partly offset
by interest capitalised used for development project during
the Year. The average interest rate over the year under
review was 3.0% (2012: 2.4%) which was expressed as a
percentage of total interest expenses over the average total
borrowing.
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REMUNERATION POLICIES AND SHARE
OPTION SCHEME

During the year under review, the Group employed a total
of 50 (2012: 49) staff.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their
performance, experience and prevailing industry practice.
Remuneration packages comprised salary, year end double
pay and year end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The Executive
Directors continued to review employees’ contributions and
to provide them with necessary incentives and flexibility for
their better commitment and performance. No share option
scheme was adopted for the Year.

HONG KONG

During the year 2012 and 2013, the Government has
introducing a series of market-cooling moves including
but not limited to “Hong Kong Property for Hong Kong
Residents” policy, “Special Stamp Duty” for sale of property
within two years of its acquisition, tightening of mortgage
rules, etc. These resulted in cooling down the property
market in Hong Kong.

1. One Kowloon Peak

Superstructure commenced for Phase Il and will be
completed in 2014. Application for presale consent is in
process.

2. Villa Cecil Phase Il

Occupancy rate is satisfactory and negotiation for
renewal continues for tenancy expiry in 2013.

3. Villa Cecil Phase IlI

Occupancy rate is satisfactory and negotiation for
renewal continues for tenancy expiry in 2013.

4. Cheuk Nang Plaza

Occupancy rate is satisfactory. Renovation of the
building is carried out in stages.
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5. Cheuk Nang Lookout

Villa Begonia has been leased and Villa Crocus is
vacant.

6. New Villa Cecil

Occupy Permit for Phase | has been obtained. Site
formation for Phase Il completed. Superstructure work
will commence soon.

CHINA

The Government of China continues its controlling policy
on property market. We consider the property price will
remain stable.

1. Cheuk Nang Garden, Shenzhen

The framework of superstructure of Chuek Nang Garden
is completed. The presale will take place in 2014.

2. Cheuk Nang ¢ Riverside, Hangzhou

The framework of superstructure of Cheuk Nang e Riverside
is completed. The presale will take place in 2014.

MACAU

The Air Ventilation assessment report has been approved by
the Environmental Protection Bureau. The change of land
use matters is pending for approval from Macau authority.

MALAYSIA

Phase | named “Parkview” has been operated as service
apartment with satisfactory income. For Phase Il named
“Central Plaza”, the piling cap and basement work are in

progress and anticipated to be finished in next year.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

A property valuation has been carried out by Messrs.
K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited, Roma Appraisals Limited
and Henry Butcher Malaysia Sdn Bhd in respect of the
Group’s investment properties and certain property, plant
and equipment as at 30 June 2013 and that valuation
The
Group’s investment properties and investment properties
under development were valued at HK$2,422,013,000
and HK$1,506,953,000 respectively making the total
HK$3,928,966,000 (2012:
investment properties under development were valued at
HK$2,368,040,000 and HK$1,329,210,000 making the total
HK$3,697,250,000). The aggregate increase in fair value of
approximately HK$160,364,000 was credited to the income

was used in preparing 2013 financial statements.

investment properties and

statement for the Year. The Group’s land and building held
for own use and as a director’s quarter carried at fair value
were valued at HK$91,000,000 (2012: HK$80,000,000)
and HK$20,468,000 (2012: HK$22,130,000) respectively.
Changes in fair value of HK$11,381,000 for the Year
were recorded in revaluation reserves. Properties under
development for sale of the Group were stated at lower of

cost or net realisable value in the financial statements.

POLICY AND OUTLOOK

The global economy will continue to be challenging for the
coming year due to the uncertainty of the interest rate and
monetary policies of the U.S.A. and European countries.
The Group will continue reduce the investment risk by
diversifying its investment in China, Hong Kong, Macau and
Malaysia.

Following the recent economic development in Hong Kong
and mainland China, the Group is expecting our investment
will produce good result in the coming year.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance at all times. The Board believes
that good corporate governance helps the Company
safeguard the interests of its equity holders and improve the
performance of the Group.

On 1 April 2012, the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Former Code”) was amended and renamed
as Corporate Governance Code on Corporate Governance
Report (the “New Code”) which was set out in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The Company has adopted
the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) as stated in the New
Code in substitution for and to the exclusion of the Former
Code with effect from 1 April 2012. During the year ended
30 June 2013, the Company was in full compliance with the
Code Provisions set out in both of the Former Code and the

New Code, except the following deviations:—

1. Code Provision A.4.1

Under the code provision A.4.1 of the Code, non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific
term and subject to re-election. However, all the
independent non-executive directors are not appointed
for specific terms but are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provision of the
Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association.
The Company considers that sufficient measures have
been taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate
governance practices are no less exacting than those in

the Code.
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2 Code Provision A.2.1

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the role
of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer should be

clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company currently cannot comply with the
requirement of the Listing Rules to separate the role of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer. We are, through
different channels, still looking for a suitable person
to act as Chief Executive Officer and with a hope to

comply with the requirement in the next financial year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible to lead and control the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions,
oversees the operations and monitors the financial
performance of the Group. The management manages the
business of the Group within the delegated power and

authority by the Board.

The functions of the Board are carried out either directly or
through Board Committees and some of which have been
delegated to the management of the Company. The types
of decisions which are reserved to be taken by the Board

include:—

1. matters relating to conflict of interest for a substantial

shareholder or a director of the Company;

2. formulation of the Company’s policies relating to the
overall strategic direction and strategic plans, key
business and financial objectives, dividend policy
or entering into contract involving significant capital

acquisition or expenditure;
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financial controls, compliance and risk management
for the approval of annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, the Company’s financial
statements, published reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosure required under the

Listing Rules or other statutory requirements;

changes to the Company’s capital structure, including
reductions of share capital, share buy-backs or issue of

new securities;

major appointments or removal to the Board, the Chief
Executive Officer, the Company’s chief financial officer,

company secretary and external auditors;

changes to the terms of reference or membership of any
committee of the Board and the authority delegated to

the Chief Executive Officer and the senior management;

matters exceed the authorities of the senior

management; and

the adoption, review and approval of changes of
the Corporate Governance Practical Manual of
the Company, the Code of Ethics and Securities
Transactions entered into by the directors and other
specified senior management of the Group, group
legal policy (if any) and group system control and risk

management policy.
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The terms of reference of the Board includes the following:—

(a) to develop and review an issuer’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations

to the board;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior

management;

(c) to review and monitor the issuer’s policies and practices

on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to

employees and directors; and

(e) to review the issuer’s compliance with the code and

disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board is chaired by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil (the
“Chairman”). The Board comprises three Independent Non-
Executive Directors, one Non-Executive Directors and Five
Executive Directors. The names, biographical details of the
directors are set out in the “Profiles of Directors and Senior
Management” on pages 20 to 25 in the annual report. All
Independent Non-Executive Directors and Non-Executive
Directors bring a variety of experience and expertise to
the Company. The Board includes a balanced composition
of executive and non-executive directors (including
independent non-executive directors) so that there is an
independent element on the Board which can effectively
exercise independent judgment, and that non-executive
directors should be of sufficient caliber and number for their

views to carry weight.
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The Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
Independent Non-Executive Directors with at least one
Independent Non-Executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related

financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive directors an annual written confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 to the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-
executive directors are independent within the definition of
the Listing Rules. The Independent Non-Executive Directors

are explicitly identified in all corporate communications.

The Board has three Board Committees, namely Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. The composition of the Board and the
Board Committees are set out below and their respective

responsibilities are discussed in this report.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other save
that Miss Gigi Chao and Mr. Howard Chao are the children
of the Chairman. When the Board considers any proposal or
transaction in which a Director has a conflict of interest, he

declares his interest and is required to abstain from voting.

Given the composition of the Board and the skills,
knowledge and expertise that each Director brings to bear in
its deliberations, the Board believes that it is appropriately
structured to provide sufficient checks and balances to
protect the interests of the Group and the shareholders.
The Board will review its composition regularly to ensure
that it has the appropriate balance of expertise, skills and
experience to continue to effectively oversee the business of

the Company.
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The Company has entered into appointment letters
with all the directors of the Company. Pursuant to such
appointment letters, each of the directors of the Company
is not appointed on fixed term but is subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting of
the Company. In accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association, all newly appointed directors shall hold office
until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of
the Company after their appointment and shall be eligible

for re-election.

A list of directors of the Company and their role and
function is posted on the websites of the Company and the

Stock Exchange.

EEgER BOARD MEETINGS
TR EFCHETINEEEEZH 0 &2 During the year, four full board meetings were held and the
EHNHESFEBFOT individual attendance of each director is set out below:—
HEEESSSFRH

Number of Board HE =R
BEEnE Name of Director Meetings attended Attendance rate
B iE L Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil 4/4 100%
HIZ Chao Gigi 4/4 100%
= Chao Howard 4/4 100%
5 Ik Yung Philip 4/4 100%
fa] 5 25 Ho Sau Fun Connie 4/4 100%
TRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 4/4 100%
HRIEE L+ Sun Ping Hsu Samson 4/4 100%
BT Leung Wing Kong Joseph 4/4% 100%
MR B Lam Ka Wai Graham 4/4 100%
THE Ting Woo Shou Kenneth 1/1¢ 100%

L ERZE-=F A+ EHBERRA

B=x

t BERZE-—-F+-ATLHEZERK

RREE HHEREXRFELZERRKRET

Pa £

*  resigned as director of the Company with effect from 27

February 2013

#  appointed as director on 17 November 2012 and attendance

only counted the meetings held after his appointment
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The Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone
or through other means of electronic communication in

accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

At least 14 days formal notice would be given before each
regular meeting. According to the Company’s Articles of
Association, a Director may waive notice of any meeting

and any such waiver may be prospective or retrospective.

An agenda and accompanying board papers were sent to all
directors at least 3 days before the intended date of board or

board committee meeting.

The directors have access to the Company Secretary who is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that Board procedures,

and all applicable rules and regulations, are followed.

The Company Secretary prepares written resolutions
or minutes and keeps records of matters discussed and
decisions resolved at all Board and Board Committee

meetings.

The Board and Board Committee minutes/resolutions are
sent to all Directors/Board Committee members within a
reasonable time after each Board and Board Committee
meeting and are available for inspection by Directors/Board

Committee members.

Minutes record in sufficient detail the matters considered by

the Board/Board Committees and decisions reached.

The Directors are given an opportunity to comment on draft
Board minutes. Final version of Board minutes is placed on

record within a reasonable time after the Board meeting.

Directors have been advised that the Company Secretary
can arrange independent professional advice at the
expense of the Company should such advice be considered

necessary by any Director.
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SEFHE-MUEEMAZRRFNEE - LU Important matters are usually dealt with by way of written
FreEE=s(AEBIYIENITES)EMZE resolutions so that all Directors (including Independent
BERE WHERXREZER (Y@ E)1%  Non-executive Directors) can note and comment, as
IHEZEIR - appropriate, the matters before approval is granted.

wEEBEEEZHELEE  EEEEMHMS  The Board having considered the attendance records of the
BEFENHEARREABTRERSEZBE - Directors is satisfied that each Director spends sufficient

time performing his responsibilities.

EFERITHAR CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AANBEARAERE FTHEANTERITHZ The Company has identified the roles of Chairman and
HHTIEMAATEERR— ARBBRT -  Chief Executive Officer under the Listing Rules and
NHREESEPEBEMTHDIE  EBME SN understood that the two positions cannot be performed by
M AER YT - the same individual to ensure that there is a clear division

of responsibilities at the board level to entail a balance of

power and authority.

TREEEEEET  MREZTTAME The Chairman is responsible for leadership of the Board,
V- RERAAREEEEEMWER - £/ for ensuring that the Board functions effectively, and
TIHEBRER  TREMEMETEIEEHESE for ensuring communication of the views of the Board
e MREEeezWHAEWARARQF to the public. In performing this role, the Chairman’s
Ei5 7 ERE - T RERBEWMER B  responsibilities include chairing meetings of the Board;
RATEFHIERNITEE Z2HRIFAEZEM  ensuring the board meetings receive accurate, complete,
B TR 2E e EEMNREETT timely and clear information concerning affairs of the
A MIEHRE  MEMBEEZESZEYEERE Company; ensuring constructive relations between
BREFgeRRENEE MM (EAE  executive and non-executive directors; formulating for
EeEEIRE BN A - EBITH4#E  discussion and decision, questions which have been moved
RAaalESREREKREZ  Ef L ES  for the consideration of the Board; ensuring that all directors
NEEF@EHNZIR  EHEEIBE N TNZ/E are properly briefed on issues arising at board meetings;
HMEEREMAFEENEMEIE: A& acting as liaison between the Board and management;
BOEFHEIIFNITESE (BHEBIIEHNITE  in consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the
B)ERATESTHENBE L TERITZ 5 o company secretary or his/her designated delegates, drawing

up and approving the agenda for each board meeting taking

into account, where appropriate, any matters proposed

by the other directors for inclusion in the agenda; and at

least annually hold meetings with non-executive directors

(including independent non-executive directors) without the

presence of the executive directors.
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The Chief Executive Officer is primarily responsible for
recommending policy and strategic directions for Board
approval, implementing the strategies and policies adopted
by the Board and conducting the day-to-day operation of the
Company.

The Company currently cannot comply with the requirement
of the Listing Rules to separate the role of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer. We are, through different channels,
still looking for a suitable person to act as Chief Executive
Officer and with a hope to comply with the requirement in

the next financial year.

TERMS OF NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1 of the Code requires that non-
executive directors should be appointed for a specific term
and should be subject to re-election. The independent non-
executive directors of the Company are not appointed for
specific terms but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at least once every three years in accordance
with the provision of the Company’s Articles of Association.
As such, the Company considers that sufficient measures
have been taken to serve the purpose of this code provision.
Three out of the four non-executive directors have
remunerated at HK$40,000 per year and the remaining has
remunerated at HK$96,000 per year.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a Nomination Committee on
27 February 2012 with specific terms of reference which
deals clearly with its authorities and duties. The Nomination
Committee currently consists of two Independent Non-
Executive Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson, Mr.
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth and one Executive Director namely
Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil. Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is the

Chairman of the Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
posted on the websites of the Company (www.cheuknang.

com.hk) and the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee will review the structure, size
and composition of the Board, identify suitable candidates
to the Board, and to make recommendations on any
matters in relation to the appointment or re-appointment
of members of the Board. Appointment of new Directors is

reserved for the Board’s approval.

Where vacancies on the Board exist, the Board will carry
out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of the proposed candidates, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements

and regulations.

The Nomination Committee ensures that the Board
comprises members with mixed skills and experience
with appropriate knowledge necessary to accomplish
the Group’s business development, strategies, operation,
challenges and opportunities. The nomination committee
takes into account of that person’s skill, qualifications and
expected contributions to the Company before making
any recommendations to the Board in relation to the

appointment or re-appointment of members of the Board.
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Pursuant to Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, a shareholder can propose a person for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting by giving the
Company notice in writing of the intention to propose that
person for election as a Director and notice in writing by
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been
given to the Company at least seven days before the date of
the general meeting. The procedures for shareholders of the
Company to propose a person for election as a Director are

available and accessible on the Company’s website.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association,
newly appointed Directors (either to fill a casual vacancy or
as an addition to the Board) shall hold office only until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election, but shall not be taken
into account determining the Directors who are to retire by

rotation at such meeting.

In addition, at each annual general meeting, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three
or a multiple of three, then the number nearest one-third,
shall retire from office. The Directors to retire on every year
shall be those who have been longest in office since their
last election but as between persons who became Directors
on the same day those to retire shall be determined by lot.

The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

During the year ended 30 June 2013, meeting of the
Nomination Committee was held in November 2012 to
recommend the addition of Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth as

a new Independent Non-Executive Director.
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BAIKELEEBAAT : The individual attendance of each member is set out below:
HEESESERY

Number of HE R
EEfE Name of Member meetings attended Attendance rate
FR1R Sun Ping Hsu Samson 11 100%
N Lam Ka Wai Graham /1% 100%
2T Leung Wing Kong Joseph 1/1* 100%
HE Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil 1/1 100%
R Chao Gigi 1/1%* 100%
THE Ting Woo Shou Kenneth 0/0*** -

*k

PR E—=F_A-++tHBEITARAE *
FCHEEEXRRAGEERERBABRTZER

ER-ZT—=F_"A-+N\HEHRLEZE **
g HEFXRRAE=REART 2%

ERERRRREFTERAEAHER o

resigned as director of the Company with effect from 27
February 2013 and attendance of the meetings was calculated

upto the date of resignation

ceased to act as member of the Nomination Committee with
effect from 28 February 2013 and attendance of the meetings

was calculated upto the date of cessation

no meeting was held after his appointment as director of the

Company
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TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Each newly appointed Director will be received
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the first
occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of
the Group and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant

regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing briefing and professional development to

Directors at the Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business to

the Directors.

The Company circulates details of training courses which
may be of interest to directors. All directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses at the Company’s

expense.

The Directors are committed to comply with the Code
Provision A.6.5 of the New Code which came into effect
on 1 April 2012 on Directors’ training. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provide
a record of training they received for the year ended 30 June

2013 and up to the date of publication of this annual report.
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HE_Z—=ZF"AZTHILEFEKEZ The individual training record of each Director received
AREFHAEBH  SFEFMEXEI 2@ for the year ended 30 June 2013 and up to the date of
plECsxftatan T - publication of this annual report is summarised below:

RESEIE SRR Z R

ESHEANEBH Fir e 283 Training provider Fir R R R (/) B

Name and Title of Directors Training received or source of training materials Time spent (hour)

B e —FEENFHERDITIES —FEENFHEEER 2
EXRIERNES Workshop on Residential Properties Sale of First-hand Residential

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil, (First-Hand Sales) Ordinance Properties Authority

Chairman of the Board and
Executive Director
HEd-FEENFHEEERELNAE 4
—FEENFHERIINERBEES
fFRBEZ  TESRZARERAZ
Reading of materials relating to the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales)
Ordinance including all Guidelines,
Practice Notes, Presentation slides and
Q&A issued by the Sale of First-hand
Residential Properties Authority

2 EFENFRREBNEERNEHR EELTARES 2
BiTE=s Management of Business and Profits Tax The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed
Chao Gigi, for Property development in China Companies

Executive Director

TREBREEER RaBREER xR 0.8
Financial crises and corporate governance Fung Global Ins
FAEBRFR Clifford Chance 0.8

Litigation and Dispute Resolution



Annual Report 2013 £

ESHARME

Name and Title of Directors

3
WIES
Chao Howard,

Executive Director

&3

Training received
FEREREEER

Family investment and corporate

governance

BRRTANE(L

Changes in Hong Kong trust law

FATCARMETREIMT E

FATCA and effects on succession planning

DM BEERAKE
Sustainable investments in Asia
KR ERT KN ETEEF
Establishment of successful Trustee

relations in Family business

Lombard OdierfEt KB EE AT BRHIF R
Case study of Lombard Odier 7th

generation responsible capitalism

HREEEE LA
Generation Investment Management
EREFNBE RO A G

Management of Duties of directorship

and new Companies Ordinance

—FRENRHERDITES
Workshops on Residential Properties
(First-Hand Sales) Ordinance

—FEENEHERNTEY
Workshops on Residential Properties
(First-Hand Sales) Ordinance

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH

EEXELRRE

REFINEEIHBZRR
Training provider

or source of training materials

Sandaire CIO

Clifford Chance

SIERABBARAA
Paget Dare Bryan

Clearwater Capital

Clifford Chance

Theirry Lombard, Vincent Duhar

Al Gore

David Smyth of Syth & Co.

—FRENEHEEER
Sale of First-hand Residential

Properties Authority

—FAENEHEEER
Sale of First-hand Residential
Properties Authority

Corporate Governance Report

Fir PR BGE F (F)

Time spent (hour)

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.8

0.5
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ESHAREE

Name and Title of Directors

BRI
BUFNTES

Sun Ping Hsu Samson,
Independent Non-Executive
Director

FRE
FHTES

Lee Ding Yue Joseph
Non-Executive Director

T8
BUFHITES

Ting Woo Shou Kenneth
Non-Executive Director

KB
BUFNITER

Lam Ka Wai Graham,
Independent Non-Executive
Director

Fir i 2 353

Training received

EHAREFNRR
Responsibilities of directors of
listed companies

BERBES

Disclosure of inside information

BERIRBEBERS
Connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions

HEd - FEENFHEEERENNEH
—FEENFHERIINERBEE
E%EZ  THRIRFAREARE

Reading of materials relating to the
Residential Properties (First-hand Sales)
Ordinance including all Guidelines,
Practice Notes, Presentation slides and
Q&A issued by the Sale of First-hand
Residential Properties Authority

KPMCEB U FHITEERE
KPMG INED Forum

i) EFEZ:
Board Diversity;
(i) BHE HERERTRERI

Environmental, Social and Governance

Reporting Guide; and

(i) RERBBBETARBABESNRE

BEEMETRE

Rules changes consequential on Statutory
backing to Issuers’ Continuing Obligation

to disclose inside information

BEIEE v

Reading seminar materials

FEEEEM013
Annual Regulatory Updates 2013

WERT R AR

Reading seminar materials

RAESFINEEI B2 RR

Training provider

or source of training materials

REAERRMEBMT

Vincent T.K. Cheung, Yap & Co.

BELERBARRA
BMS Corporation Services Ltd.

BREXREARLF
BMS Corporation Services Ltd.

KPMG

FRMAEMT
Li & Partners

BALTRAEE

The Chamber of Hong Kong

Listed Companies

Annual Report 2013 £33

Fir PR B ) ()

Time spent (hour)

3

1.5
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ESHARME

Name and Title of Directors

[k

BTES
Yung Philip,
Executive Director

&%
RITESRAANE

Ho Sau Fun Connie,
Executive Director and
Company Secretary

Fir i 32 355

Training received

FRRBEM2012
Annual Taxation Update 2012

HERNE

Sale Tax Reform

FREREEH013
Annual Regulatory Updates 2013

€52012: BAIFREREAMS -
BB B E

Conference 2012: Hong Kong as
a world capital market -
Opportunities and challenges

FREHEMN2012
Annual Accounting Update 2012

[CEHEEABBBANREN RIS
2~ GRI G4 ESGHE3|  GSRIEZ [ T i &

Seminar on “Latest Trends of CSR
Strategic Planning and Reporting
- GRI G4 & ESG Guidelines,
GSR Index”

THEFENEEH
Corporate Secretaryship in PRC

@8 & DB IS
MPF - Can it be better?

Investor Relations - Points Analysts
Look For, Tips and Taboos

FREFEM013
Annual Regulatory Updates 2013

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH

EEXELRRE

REFINEEIHBZRR
Training provider

or source of training materials

BRGNS
HKICPA

BBAEE
Hong Kong General Chambers
of Commerce

FELMAAAEE
The Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies

EREHAE
HKICPA

BERHALE
HKICPA

EEmERER
Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency

EERBERELER
HKUSPACE

BANMNELE
HKICS

BERANELE
HKICS

BRLTAREE
The Chamber of Hong Kong
Listed Companies

Corporate Governance Report

Fir PR BGE F (F)

Time spent (hour)

4

3.5

24

1.5
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RAESFINEEI B2 RR

ESHEREE s sg3ll Training provider Fr PR (/) )
Name and Title of Directors  Training received or source of training materials Time spent (hour)
—FHEEMFHERD TS —FREENEHEEER 4
Workshops on Residential Properties Sale of First-hand Residential
(First-Hand Sales) Ordinance Properties Authority
[CRHEETERAINGEHRANE BEmEARER 2

%— GRI G4 ESGIE3| » GSREH H &l & Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
Seminar on “Latest Trends of CSR

Strategic Planning and Reporting

- GRI G4 & ESG Guidelines, GSR Index”

EEELTRARANERE HeMABER ERBEHNELE 1.5
Environmental Social and Governance HKICS

factors for listed companies in

Hong Kong
REASENABENESESTILER BBRNELS 1.5
Developing a meaningful and HKICS

relevant board diversity policy

RARBIIEFEEH2013 EANNHELE 3.5
Annual Corporate and Regulatory HKICS

Update 2013
BENEREENETHIE-EH BEBHNELE 15
Statutory regime for disclosure of HKICS

inside information - an update

RBE—ZT—=®F<~A=+HILEE % During the year ended 30 June 2013, Ms. Ho Sau
TEEF AN MEMER LT BB Fm Fun Connie, an Executive Director and the Company
B3 2018 T R 15/ B 2 $8@§ = Secretary, has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
ESr=KS professional training in compliance with Rule 3.29 of the

Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprised of
three members, including two Independent Non-Executive
Directors namely Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson and Mr. Lam Ka
Wai Graham and one Executive Director namely Dr. Chao
Sze-Tsung Cecil. Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson is the Chairman

of the Committee.

The Remuneration Committee is primarily responsible for
formulating and making recommendation to the Board on
the Group’s policy and structuring the remuneration of the
directors of the Company and the senior management of the
Group. No Directors or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration. The remuneration package
of the Directors includes salary, bonus and pension. The
remuneration level is determined by reference to the
expertise, performance and experience possessed by each

Director.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet at least once
a year or as requested by the director responsible for

resources function.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee meetings
were held in November 2012 and February 2013 and had (i)
reviewed the director’s remuneration of the newly appointed
director Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth and (ii) reviewed and
recommended the remuneration package of all directors
and senior management to the Board for approval with the
relevant directors abstained to the discussion of his/her

remuneration package.
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ZEXEMLEFBEOT The individual attendance of each member is set out below:

HESBRE =R
BB & Name of Member  Number of meetings attended Attendance rate
BRR Sun Ping Hsu Samson 2/2 100%
e Lam Ka Wai Graham 2/2 100%
2T Leung Wing Kong Joseph 2/2% 100%
=Rl Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil 0/0** -
= Chao Howard 2/2 %% 100%
] 7525 Ho Sau Fun Connie 2/2%%% 100%

* PRI EBE—=F_A-t++BEBEEAQFE
FCHEEEXRRAGEERERBABRTZES

“ ERAYMEESZERAAERGH

o QN TT-—=F - H -+ N \BEITHFMEZE
e HEFRAAEZRIBRTZEH

EHEF A

B ZBENERBEMUB Y IFATE
FRRBELRMKBEILE - MRE L
EREMFZEEIE -BHAZEGZHEX
KRB RIE EMARRE3I 2R ER -

B ZEG I ERERHHNETSEE
B EGE - B E IR N ERE SR F
IARSMNERZBET R - EREEGEBFR
BEZEENEREE MREHRZEZR
BEE RBMEBEAONEEEHRERF -
SIS AZ B ED 1R R B) 2 FA 0 B AR A AR 3K
BDEVE M - RN BB 2 R -

resigned as director of the Company with effect from 27
February 2013 and attendance of the meetings was calculated

upto the date of resignation

** no meeting was held after he acted as member of the

Remuneration Committee with effect from 28 February 2013

*#%  ceased to act as member of the Remuneration Committee with
effect from 28 February 2013 attendance of the meetings was

calculated upto the date of cessation

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee currently comprised of two
independent non-executive directors, namely Dr. Sun Ping
Lam Ka Wai Graham. Mr. Lam Ka
Wai Graham is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The

Hsu Samson and Mr.

composition and members of the Audit Committee complies

with the requirements under Rule 3.21 to the Listing Rules.

The main function of the Audit Committee is to assist
the Board to oversee the financial report system, risk
management and internal control procedures and the
external audit functions. The Audit Committee annually
assesses the appointment of the external auditor, taking into
account the quality and rigor of the audit, the quality of the
auditors service provided, the audit firm’s quality control
procedures, relationships between the external auditors and

the Company and the independence of the external auditors.
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FER Bt EEeN _ET——FhLhAK=
T ——F - AEINMNEZEEMEETRIT™
ReF - SKEMEHFEFBOT

KREERE Name of Member
BRRR Sun Ping Hsu Samson
RET Leung Wing Kong Joseph
e Lam Ka Wai Graham

* PRI EBE—=F_A-t++BEBEEAQFE
FCoHERERRAGEEERA ST

P
=

B EZESEEHNARA RNz RE]
R - W BB IR [E I i AN 51 R N ED
HI R R EEIE - REEARARAM KR
RZTEREE B LZESERTESS
AMEsEM8E _T——F+_HA=+—H
PHEEREMEBE T —=ZF A=+
AzREZVBHR&x REOBEFE EF
FHEFZEEUELERREZEINERZ
HE T EEHRERDE

RIBF TR SFRIGRXC3.7  E=F— =
F_ACBEBFZESNREZELENNLE
ABEBREEMRMGER  AERETIESH M
FEAREANTEETRIBEBIING
M o

WY EE BEERARARE ZZEADAT
EEBARRIEXRNSZABAEEABHE
A—FR EEARREALZESRE -
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During the year, two Audit Committee meetings were held
in September 2012 and February 2013 with the presence
of the external auditors. The individual attendance of each

member is set out below:

HESRRXE

Number of meetings attended

e

Attendance rate

2/2 100%
2/2* 100%
2/2 100%

*  resigned as director of the Company with effect from 27
February 2013 and attendance of the meetings was calculated

upto the date of resignation

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting
procedure and policies adopted by the Company and
discussed with management and the external auditors
regarding the internal controls and financial reporting
matters. To monitor the integrity of the financial statements
of the Company, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
interim report for the period ended 31 December 2012,
the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2013 before their submission to the Board. There was no
disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection and appointment of the external auditors

during the year under review.

As required by Code Provision C.3.7 of the New Code,
details of arrangements for employees to raise concerns
about improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and other matters have been included in the terms of

reference of the Audit Committee in February 2012.

No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the existing audit firm of the Company during the one year

after he/she ceases to be a partner of the auditing firm.
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¥ B R B &

FRXN - RARBIINEZHBEHR (FE) S
SRV ST A R A | M A & B 1R X F %
HRG RIEZBERG (BEANER)ME
R IERN 2 B R 55 /440,000 7T K& & o

AKEBIREME T HINKB R R ZETEE
MTVEZ T EM/NEZ EED - SRR
ZE R T 2 B & 4 554,000% 7T °

B ER 42 I L B B B

AREBANEZARBRBEMAETEER
B WERRGIRE  APHAREERXS
B REEETENREREBRTH
FERIHE  #FZE STk - ARHEA
EMBEREAMLHRFRMAE - ARIER
REBBEEDIERY - ZEZFE ERES
B (EERE)RE UERTSHRERX
ARt SE R - R E IR (M 3EEER) &
EEEEBRRRUBRREERAEBED
BEZER -

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ LIABILITIES

During the year, the Company has arranged for the renewal
of an insurance policy on directors’ and officers’ liabilities
in respect of legal actions against the Directors and officers
of the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of corporate

activities of the Group.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid or payable to external
auditors of the Company, Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, were approximately HK$440,000 and Nil for
statutory audit services rendered and non-audit services
rendered (including disbursement fees) to the Group

respectively.

The Group also appointed other external auditors for the
statutory audit purposes of certain overseas subsidiaries
and their remuneration for audit services rendered was
approximately HK$54,000.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group’s system of internal control includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority, and is
designed to help the Group achieve its business objectives,
safeguard its assets against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensure the maintenance of proper accounting records for
the provision of reliable financial information for internal
use or for publication, and ensure compliance with relevant
laws and regulations. The system is designed to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group’s business objectives.
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The Board recognises that constant changes taking place in
the business environment which require periodic reviews
of the system of internal controls. Well-managed internal
controls enable effective and efficient operations, ensure the
reliability of internal and external reporting and assist in the
compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Board
will consistently review the system of internal controls to

ensure its effectiveness.

Financial Control

Effective financial control is a vital element of internal
control. It helps in identifying and managing liabilities
to ensure that the Company is not unnecessarily exposed
to avoidable financial risks. It also contributes to the
safeguarding of assets from inappropriate use or loss,

including the prevention and detection of fraud and errors.

In order to achieve financial control, a set of measures have
been formulated and implemented to tighten the control on
cash flow. All payments are required to be properly checked
and approved. Proper accounting and financial records shall
be maintained in supporting monthly management accounts

and reports.

All members of the Board are provided with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Company’s performance, position and prospects in
sufficient details to enable the Board as a whole and each

director to discharge their duties.
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Compliance

For the year under review, the Company has fully complied
with the Listing Rules requirements. Financial reports,
announcements and circulars have been prepared and
published in accordance with the requirements of the Listing

Rules.

The Company has engaged Grant Thornton Advisory
Services Limited to review and assess the revised Internal
Control Manual. Grant Thornton Advisory Services Limited
has prepared a report to the Board and senior management
on the findings and made recommendations to the Board

accordingly.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Ms Ho Sau Fun Connie, is
responsible to the Board for ensuring that the Board
procedures are followed and the Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are
achieved through adherence to proper Board procedures
and the timely preparation and dissemination of meeting
agendas and papers to the Directors. Minutes of all meeting
of the Board and the Board committees are prepared and
maintained by the Company Secretary to record in sufficient
details the matters considered and decisions reached by the
Board or the Board Committee. All minutes are sent to the
Directors and are available for inspection by any Director

upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that
the Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and
corporate governance developments relating to the Group
and that it takes these into consideration when making

decisions for the Group.
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The Company Secretary is also directly responsible
for seeking to ensure the Group’s compliance with all
obligations under the Listing Rules and The Codes on
Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases, including
the preparation, publication and dispatch of annual reports
and interim reports within the time limits set out in the
Listing Rules and the timely dissemination of the same to the

shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors
on their obligations for disclosures of interests and dealings
in the Group’s securities, connected transactions and price-
sensitive information and ensures that the standard and
disclosures required by the Listing Rules are observed
and, where required, reflected in the annual report of the

Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company is subject
to Board approval in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company. All members of the Board
have access to the advice and service of the Company
Secretary. Ms. Ho Sau Fun Connie was appointed as the
Company Secretary of the Company in February 1996 and
has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. Ms. Ho
Sau Fun Connie has confirmed, following specific enquiry
made by the Company that she has complied with all the
qualifications, experience and training requirements of the

Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the financial statements of the Company
and ensure that they are prepared in accordance with
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors also ensure the timely publication of such

financial statements.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company with
regard to their reporting responsibilities on the Company’s
financial statements is set out in the Independent auditors’

report on pages 77 to 79.

The Directors confirm that, to the best of their knowledge,
information and belief, having made all reasonable
enquiries, they are not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going

concern.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION
The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules for
securities transactions by directors of the Company. A
copy of the Model Code has been sent to each Director of
the Company. Also, formal written notices are sent to the
Directors one month before the date of the Board meeting
to approve the Company’s half-year result and two months
before the approval of annual result, as a reminder that the
Directors cannot deal in the securities and derivatives of the

Company until after such results have been published.



Annual Report 2013 £

RIEZHZTH ARAREZTAREEAR
AlREFNMITET AR AEXFE AW

EAMEEFTS W WIERAR R ZERE -

RIELEREHER 2REFHER KF
ROESFFE—BEETRES T RRE
ST AR EAR FE R -

RZB—Z=ZFXA=1TH EFHELRA
MEWMB AR (EEREF LB HRIIEXV
MBS 2 AN E73H -

REEBE
RAFHEBEINREIREFENRREBE -
BREARRRBERED ZFRERIRNT
RERZFREPHBERN - NRAFEB
HEokeRERESE OB AR
MERERFEIRR ANEE g K5
REERBREN ZERNERIFLFAD
B-EFENMEURRUZEAEEEH
REBR YEBERFHERRAS AU
AMERBATICEEREETEHSNER
BERBRIM -

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH

TERESRSE
Corporate Governance Report

Under the Model Code, Directors of the Company are
required to notify the Chairman and receive a dated written
acknowledgement before dealing in the securities and
derivatives of the Company and, in the case of the Chairman
himself, he must notify the Board and receive a dated

written acknowledgement before any dealing.

Having made specific enquiries, all Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the

accounting year under review.

Directors’ interests as at 30 June 2013 in the shares of the
Company and its subsidiaries (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance) are set out on page
73.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to enhance relationship and
communication with its investors. Detailed information
about the Company’s performance and activities is
provided in the annual report and the interim report which
are sent to shareholders. The Company maintains close
communications with investors analysts, fund managers
and the media by individual interviews and meetings. The
Group also responds to requests for information and queries
from the investors in an informative and timely manner.
The Board also welcomes the views of shareholders on
matters affecting the Group and encourages them to attend
shareholders’” meetings to communicate any concerns they

might have with the Board or senior management directly.
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The Company has adopted a Shareholders’” Communication

Policy on 30 March 2012 which was posted in the

Company’s website and of the Stock Exchange. The

Company establishes different communication channels

with shareholders and investors, including:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

printed copies of corporate communications (including
but not limited to annual reports, interim reports,
notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms)
required under the Listing Rules, and shareholders can
choose (or are deemed to have consented) to receive
such documents using electronic means through the

Company’s website;

the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders to raise comments and exchange views
with the Board;

updated and key information on the Group is available
on the website of the Company (www.cheuknang.com.

hk);

the Company’s website offers a communication channel

between the Company and its shareholders;

the Company’s Registrar deals with shareholders for

share registration and related matters; and

the Company Secretary of the Company handles general

enquiries from shareholders and investors.
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The annual general meeting is used as an opportunity
to communicate with all shareholders. Shareholders are
encouraged to attend the annual general meetings for
which a notice would be served with at least 21 days
period. The Chairman and/or Directors are available to
answer questions on the Group’s business at the meetings.
At general meetings, separate resolutions are proposed on
each substantially separate issue such as the election of

individual directors and re-appointment of auditors.

Details of poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are included in a circular to
shareholders accompanied the annual report. The circular
also includes relevant details on proposed resolutions, and

biographies of each candidates standing for re-election.

The constitutional document of the Company was posted
in the Company’s website and of the Stock Exchange
on 30 March 2012. There has not been change in the

constitutional document during the year.

At the 2012 annual general meeting of the Company, the
external auditors, the Chairmans of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee were attended to answer
the questions from the shareholders. The Chairman
of the meeting has explained the detailed procedures
for conducting a poll, and answered questions from

shareholders.

The Chairman of the meeting exercised his power under
the Company’s Articles of Association to put each
resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of a
poll. Representatives of the Share Registrar of the Company
were appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll
votes cast at the 2012 annual general meeting. Since the
Company’s 2009 annual general meeting, all the resolutions
put to vote at the Company’s general meetings were taken
by poll. Poll results were posted on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Set out below are procedures by which Shareholders may:

(1) convene a special general meeting; (2) put forward

enquiries to the Board; and (3) put forward proposals at

Shareholders’” meetings. These procedures are generally

governed by the provisions of the Company’s Articles of

Association and applicable laws, rules and regulations,

which prevail over what is stated in this section in case of

inconsistencies.

1. Procedures by which Shareholders may convene an

extraordinary general meeting

1.1

1.2

1.3

Shareholders holding not less than one-twentieth of
the paid-up capital of the Company as at the date
of the deposit of the requisition carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company may
by written requisition deposit at the Company’s
registered office at 30-35/F., Cheuk Nang Plaza,
250 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong for the
attention of the Board or the company secretary of
the Company (the “Company Secretary”), to require
an extraordinary general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business

specified in such requisition.

The requisition must specify the purposes of the
meeting, signed by the requisitionists and may
consist of several documents in like form each

signed by one or more of those requisitionists.

The signatures and the requisition will be verified
by the Company’s share registrars. The Board
will proceed to convene an extraordinary general
meeting for the transaction of any business
specified in the requisition within 21 days from the
date of deposit of such requisition if it has been

validly raised.
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1.4 If the Board does not within 21 days from the
date of the deposit of a valid requisition, proceed
duly to convene such meeting, the requisitionists,
or any of them representing more than one half
of the total voting rights of all of them, may
themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting
so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the said date. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists
shall be convened in the same manner, as nearly
as possible, as that in which meetings are to be

convened by the Board.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above
procedures may write to the Company Secretary, whose

contact details are set out in paragraph 2.1 below.

Procedures for putting forward enquiries to the Board

2.1 Shareholders may put forward enquiries to the
Board through the Company Secretary who will
direct the enquiries to the Board for handling. The
contact details of the Company Secretary are as

follows:

The Company Secretary
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
30-35/F., Cheuk Nang Plaza
250 Hennessy Road
Wanchai
Hong Kong
Email: info@cheuknang.com.hk
or connieho@cheuknang.com.hk
Tel No.: (852) 2526 7799
Fax No.: (852) 2521 7728
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at a

Shareholders’ meeting

3.1

3.2

3.3

the Company holds an annual general meeting
every year, and may hold a general meeting known
as an extraordinary general meeting whenever

necessary.

In general, subject to paragraph 3.3 below, no
resolution may be proposed at a Shareholders’
meeting (whether it is an extraordinary general
meeting or an annual general meeting) if such
resolution is not included in the notice convening
the general meeting. However, if the proposal
is to amend an existing resolution set out in the
notice convening the general meeting and such
amendment is within the scope of the notice,
such amendment may be made if approved by the
Shareholders by ordinary resolution. In the case of
a resolution duly proposed as a special resolution
no amendment thereto (other than a mere clerical
amendment to correct a patent error) may in any

event be considered or voted upon.

On the requisition in writing of (i) either any
number of Shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the
Shareholders having at the date of the requisition a
right to vote at the meeting to which the requisition
relates, or (ii) not less than 100 Shareholders, the

Company shall be under a duty to:
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give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of
any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting;

and

circulate to Shareholders entitled to have
notice of any general meeting sent to them
any statement of not more than one thousand
words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be

dealt with at that meeting.

3.4 The requisition under paragraph 3.3 must be signed

by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered

office of the Company at 30-35/F.,
Plaza, 250 Hennessy Road, Wanchai,

Cheuk Nang
Hong Kong

for the attention of the Company Secretary and:

(i)

(ii)

in the case of a requisition requiring notice of
a resolution, not less than six weeks before the
annual general meeting and in the case of any
other requisition, not less than one week before

the meeting; and

there is deposited or tendered with the
requisition a sum reasonably determined by the
Board to be sufficient to meet the Company’s
expenses in serving the notice of the resolution
and/or circulating any statement in accordance
with the statutory requirements to all the

registered Shareholders.
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If the written request is in order, the Company
Secretary will ask the Board (i) to include the
resolution in the agenda for the annual general
meeting or (ii) to circulate any statement of not
more than one thousand words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting.
On the contrary, if the requisition is invalid or the
Shareholder(s) concerned have failed to deposit
sufficient money to meet the Company’s expenses
mentioned in paragraph 3.4(ii), the Shareholder(s)
concerned will be advised of this outcome and
accordingly, the proposed resolution will not be
included in the agenda for the annual general
meeting or the statement will not be circulated for

the general meeting.

Notice of any such intended resolution shall be
given, and any such statement shall be circulated,
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of the
meeting sent to them by serving a copy of the
resolution or statement on each such Shareholder
in any manner permitted for service of notice of the
meeting, and notice of any such resolution shall be
given to any other Shareholders by giving notice of
the general effect of the resolution in any manner
permitted for giving him notice of meetings of the
Company, provided that the copy shall be served,
or notice of the effect of the resolution shall be
given, as the case may be, in the same manner and,
so far as practicable, at the same time as notice of
the meeting and, where it is not practicable for it to
be served or given at that time, it shall be served or

given as soon as practicable thereafter.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above

procedures may write to the Company Secretary, whose

contact details are set out in paragraph 2.1 above.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors submit to the shareholders their report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company operates as an investment holding company.
Principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20

to the financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by
business and geographical segments is set out in Note 7 to

the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2013
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page
80.

An interim dividend of HK4.5 cents (2012: HK4 cents) per
share, totaling HK$19,910,000 was paid on 23 April 2013.

The Directors resolved to recommend the payment of a
final dividend of HK5 cents (2012: HK4.5 cents) per share
payable to those shareholders whose names appeared in
the register of members as at the close of business on 22
November 2013, which together with the interim dividend
of HK4.5 cents (2012: HK4 cents) per share, makes a total
distribution of HK9.5 cents (2012: HK8.5 cents) per share
this year.

After approval by the shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting, the final dividend will be paid on 19 December
2013.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group

for the last five financial years is set out on page 2.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital are set out in Note

31 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in Note 32 to the financial

statements and the consolidated statement of changes in

equity.

Distributable reserves of the Company at 30 June
2013, calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, amounted to HK$14,098,000 (2012:
HK$89,348,000).

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in investment properties and
property plant and equipment of the Group are set out in

Notes 16 and 17 to the financial statements respectively.

PROPERTIES
Details of the Group’s interest in properties are set out on

pages 208 to 212.
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Report of the Directors

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER

BORROWINGS

The amounts of bank loans, overdrafts and other borrowings

of the Group at 30 June 2013 were as follows:

Bank loans
Bank overdrafts

Advances from a director

Repayment analysis:

Bank loans
— within one year
— in the second year

— in the third to fifth years inclusive

Bank overdrafts

— within one year

Advances from a director

- no fixed repayment terms

%
Group
THET

HK$’ 000

1,515,446

11,990
29,208

1,556,644

308,512
209,852
997,082

1,515,446

11,990

29,208

1,556,644

The Group’s debt to equity ratio was approximately 35.2%

(2012: 31.3%) expressed as a percentage of bank loans and

other borrowings over net assets of the Group. The ratio of

bank loans, overdrafts and advances from a director over the
Group’s financial debts is 97.35% (2012: 96.18%), 0.77%
(2012: 0.02%) and 1.88% (20121: 3.37%) respectively.
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Most of the Group’s cash and bank balances, bank loans
and other borrowings were denominated in Malaysian
Ringgit, Renminbi and Hong Kong dollar as at 30 June
2013.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this

report were:

Executive Directors

Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil (Chairman)
Miss Chao Gigi

Mr. Chao Howard

Mr. Yung Philip

Ms. Ho Sau-Fun Connie

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Lee Ding Yue Joseph

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Leung Wing Kong Joseph
(resigned on 27 February 2013)

Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham

Dr. Sun Ping Hsu Samson

Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth
(appointed on 17 November 2012)

Mr. Ting Woo Shou Kenneth will retire in accordance with
Article 94 of the Company’s Articles of Association at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible,

offered himself for re-election.

Mr. Yung Philip, Mr. Lam Ka Wai Graham, Miss Chao Gigi
will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and,

being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

None of the Directors has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than

statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 30 June 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive in the shares of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,

were as follows:

" E [} BARER EEER
Name Equity Personal interest Corporate interests
=R TR FAR0.1E T 20,876,635 295,046,126

ZE—NFRARKEE 417,5331% 5,901,0791%
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil Ordinary Shares of 20,876,635 295,046,126

HK$0.1 each
2014 June Warrants

TR LB FRR0.1ETT

—E-HFRARRERE

Ordinary Shares of
HK$0.1 each

2014 June Warrants

Lee Ding Yue Joseph

417,533 units 5,901,079 units

2,076,612 _
41,5321 -

2,076,612 -

41,532 units -
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Note: The shareholdings disclosed by Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

under the heading “Corporate Interests” in the above

represents the shares held by Yan Yin Company Limited

and Szehope Securities Company Limited, substantial

shareholders of the Company.

The Company did not grant to the Directors, Chief Executive
or their associates any right to subscribe for shares in the

Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest or short position in the shares
of the Company or its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2013 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

At no time during the year was the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body

corporate.

INTEREST DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 30 June 2013,
maintained under Section 336 of the SFO shows that

the register of interests in shares

the Company had not been notified of any substantial
shareholders’ interests, being 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital, other than those of the Directors and

Chief Executive as disclosed above.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.
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Report of the Directors

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except as disclosed in Note 33 to the financial statements,
there are no contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at

the end of the year or at any time during the year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions are set out in Note 33
to the financial statements and in the above under Directors’

interests in contracts.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during

the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the year, the five largest suppliers and the largest
supplier of the Group accounted for 87% and 34%

respectively of the Group’s total purchases.

During the year, the five largest customers and the largest
customer of the Group accounted for 14% and 5%

respectively of the Group’s total turnover.

Among the Group’s five largest suppliers, Cecil Chao &
Associates Limited, of which Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is
a director and beneficial owner, contributed to 5% of the

Group’s total purchases.

Save as aforesaid, at 30 June 2013, none of the Directors,
their associates, or any shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share
capital) had any beneficial interests in the Group’s five

largest customers and suppliers.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Directors and
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 20 to
25.

STAFF
As at 30 June 2013,

remuneration packages are normally reviewed annually. The

the Group employed 50 staff. Staff

Group also provides other staff benefits, which include year
end double pay and contributions to defined contribution

retirement schemes.

AUDITORS

The financial statements of the Company for the years ended
30 June 2011 and 2012 have been audited by BDO Limited.
Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited was firstly appointed by

the Directors as the auditor of the Company during the year.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 June 2013 were audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong
Limited, who will retire and a resolution to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as auditor of the Company will

be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

Executive Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 September 2013
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BIAZYMRES
Independent Auditors’ Report

Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

To the shareholders of Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 80
to 207, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 30 June 2013, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

7% g

AZBMzEEDRBERIEZER
HHEMBERRERBR - AREERR
FEERNBHERDIE 14116 MEEBRRHRE -
TMEEMASE - ARBEIB TR ARE A
DEEA E AT AERE EEREE -

RZBEN D IRREBE G ASHEMZE
BEAEAETERIE ZFLEARTE
RiZBEABTERBRE WAt S RETT
BRI URMBHRERES T FEERX
86 SRR H A IR ARAE o

EZEEBERATERFARSEBY KR
KT BRBRRBEFTHIEZRE - FTE
FEAE AR B 2 H - BREAEHER
MFFRKRMEBRUBEHRERFEERER
Rt 2 B o PAMF ik F A B AP B - 1%
BEZREZRARELEERF25IH
BHRMBE 2 AEBEIEHE - AFIFTEE
ZEZIERF  BYFEEMRZARIARE
ZHIEZ R ERER - BEREBETERE
HAEFRA SRR ERE RESZME

B EAREAE  UARFEMBRE
ZEBEBZE5 -

AiZBEHEE RAEMBERESRENE
ZBE REMAZERERREHER -

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting polices used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.
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BIAZBERES
Independent Auditors’ Report

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 30 June 2013 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

25 September 2013

Chan Tze Kit
Practising Certificate No.: P05707
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Revenue
Direct costs

Gross profit

Other income

Changes in fair value of
investment properties

Changes in fair value of financial
assets and liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss

Administrative expenses
Other operating expenses
Finance costs

Profit before income tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Profit for the year

Profit for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the owners of
the Company during the year

Basic (2012: as restated)

Diluted (2012: as restated)

HiF
Notes

15

10
11

12

14
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—E—=F -
2013 2012

FE T FAETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(&e=E=73)

(Restated)

52,763 37,571
(21,006) (16,841)
31,757 20,730
10,433 6,231
160,364 189,590
773 (10,239)
(27,045) (33,103)
- (3,753)

(12,874) (7,922)
163,408 161,534
(22,694) 5,631
140,714 167,165
106,286 157,677
34,428 9,488
140,714 167,165
HK$0.255% 7T HK$0.38/8 JT
HK$0.2478 T HK$0.387 7T

$F89E EE207 B FE 2 BRIEM 2B 7 The notes on pages 89 to 207 form part of these financial

HERZED -

statements.
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Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax
Item that will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange gain/(loss) on translation
of financial statements
of foreign operations
Item that will not be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss:
Change in fair value of
land and buildings
Income tax relating to components of

other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

statements.

GEEZAWER

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

—E—=4F —E——4F
2013 2012
T#ET TFET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(&&&E5)

(Restated)

140,714 167,165
25,021 (1,490)
11,381 4,036
(3,043) =
33,359 2,546
174,073 169,711
139,645 160,223
34,428 9,488
174,073 169,711

FB8IBEZEFE207EFTH 2 BRIBMIFI RZAB# The notes on pages 89 to 207 form part of these financial
=55

81



82

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED = (£8) FRAH Annual Report 2013 3%

HEWBRKRBER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZE—=47xA=+1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

ARA=+H +H—H
30 June 1 July
2= —FT——F —F——%F
2013 2012 2011
iig=a FET FAET FAETT
Notes HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
(&) (& &E5)
(Restated) (Restated)
BEEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
IRBEE Non-current assets
KEWE Investment properties 16 3,928,966 3,697,250 3,510,328
M - R MM Property, plant and equipment 17 113,874 104,596 83,802
BBER Mortgage loans 18 47 69 108
HEthem&EE Other financial assets 19 4,742 4,742 1,468
Hi3ERBEE Other non-current asset 21 950 950 950
REFIAE E Deferred tax assets 30 4,437 27,918 21,969
4,053,016 3,835,525 3,618,625
RBEE Current assets
FHEZEERED Properties under development
LJES for sale 22 1,671,322 1,284,535 1,113,514
BEKZFEEYHE  Completed properties for sale 22 374,927 372,298 373,739
BERArBEFA Financial assets at fair value
BanzemEE through profit or loss 23 48,506 78,874 102,210
JEWE 5 BR R & Trade and other receivables
H A & U BR 3K 24 10,513 8,625 8,339
i 3k B U Tax recoverable 1,397 1,105 429
RITHGFTRRE Bank balances and cash 25 78,187 205,521 95,615
2,184,852 1,950,958 1,693,846
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ioNz3
Notes
REAE Current liabilities
RITHE X Bank overdrafts
JENE S RA K& Trade and other payables
Eth F& 1~ BR TR 26
PTTESMT A Derivative financial instruments 27
FERTIEFEIRAIR R B 5K Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 28
JEFTRAE A RIFIE  Amount due to a related company 28
ERREE Interest-bearing borrowings 29
JE BB 18 Tax payable
REBEEZFRE Net current assets
BMEEBMABERE  Total assets less current liabilities
kRBEE Non-current liabilities
BERfEE Interest-bearing borrowings 29
EEEK Advances from a director 33(a)
EEFE Net assets
= EQUITY
PR 7R Share capital 31
& 1 Reserves
ERAFAA Equity attributable to the owners
BiE R = of the Company
FERER Non-controlling interests
EHRAHE Total equity
iz R
Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
BE
Director
$£B89HEFE207
WHERZEBH o statements.

FEUBRRBER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RIZE—=4#7xA=+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

~A=+H +HA—H
30 June 1 July
— B =5 —F—_—_F —_F——F
2013 2012 2011
TET TH57T TA57T
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
(B&EF) (B&EF)
(Restated) (Restated)
11,990 222 1,511
30,359 26,278 66,382
545 - -
239,990 239,990 239,990
7 _ _
703,978 858,355 317,902
954 898 3,171
987,823 1,125,743 628,956
1,197,029 825,215 1,064,890
5,250,045 4,660,740 4,683,515
811,468 412,024 634,578
29,208 44,278 19,360
840,676 456,302 653,938
4,409,369 4,204,438 4,029,577
44,716 42,042 40,231
4,237,434 4,069,605 3,906,043
4,282,150 4,111,647 3,946,274
127,219 92,791 83,303
4,409,369 4,204,438 4,029,577
HIE 4
Yung Philip
s
Director

BFrE 2 BRIEMIEE BB  The notes on pages 89 to 207 form part of these financial
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Statement of Financial Position

RIZE—=47xA=+1+H AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

EERAE

ERBEE
LIy £
JE W Y 188 X B kIR

RBEE

H At & R K
iGN S
B
RITEFLRRE

RBARE
H th & A5 AR K
FE& 1Y B 18 2 B 3R

RBEEFRE

MEERARBAEE

FRBRME
E=aR

BEERE
RS
LN
fr
EEEE

Kt
Notes

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets
Interests in subsidiaries 20
Amounts due from subsidiaries 20(a)

Current assets

Other receivables 24
Amounts due from subsidiaries  20(b)
Tax recoverable

Bank balances and cash 25

Current liabilities
Other payables 26
Amounts due to subsidiaries 20(b)

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Advances from a director 33(a)
Net assets

EQUITY

Share capital 31
Reserves 32
Total equity

HtE

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

$89H EH207 EATH 2 BRIEM 7= A7 B 75 The notes on pages

HERZED -

EF

Director

statements.

Annual Report 2013 £3&

—_E—=5F —E——4F
2013 2012
FET FHT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
257,391 257,391
185,067 183,205
442,458 440,596
1 1
1,798,748 1,679,654
669 1,019
100 87
1,799,518 1,680,761
653 568
535,979 395,444
536,632 396,012
1,262,886 1,284,749
1,705,344 1,725,345
29,208 44,278
1,676,136 1,681,067
44,716 42,042
1,631,420 1,639,025
1,676,136 1,681,067
&k £
Yung Philip
EE
Director

89 to 207 form part of these financial
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Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Dividend income
Interest income
Finance costs
Changes in fair value of investment
properties
Reversal of provision for bad debts
(Gain)/Loss on sale of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss
Net unrealised (gain)/loss on financial
assets at fair value through
profit or loss
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment
Exchange difference

Operating profit before working

capital changes

Increase in properties for sale

Increase in trade and other receivables

Increase/(Decrease) in trade and
other payables

Proceeds from sale of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Cash used in operations
Profits tax paid
Finance costs paid

Net cash used in operating activities

SZEHERER
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

—E—=5F —E——F
2013 2012
FET FATT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
163,408 161,534
2,604 3,842
(1,779) (3,176)
(677) (1,083)
12,874 7,922
(160,364) (189,590)
(14) (14)
(5,925) 551
(773) 10,239

2 —

10,163 19,612
19,519 9,837
(381,151) (182,234)
(1,819) (286)
2,274 (41,355)
48,317 35,387
(10,706) (22,918)
(323,566) (201,569)
(2,217) (3,267)
(11,090) (6,671)
(336,873) (211,507)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

REZDHZRERE

BB A

B A

BEME HIELRE
KEMRE M
BEEMERMEE
HEWE BERREBAF

BEARITER
(&) m A
WIBEFER

REZBTEH < HE FH

RMETHRERE
BTG - EMRFEX
EENEE )

I8 $R1T B 5K
RITIEEER
(BE) B NESRK
F& 15 B8 38 12 R FRIRAE A

BEEHIELZ AL FH

RERBREFENL
(R 4) /48 fn 7% 88
FHNZRERRETEEY

ExZEHNTE KAERE

FRCBARELZEY

BTHEERRESEEY
EER DT

EEA MR R RE
202 R1T4EF
&

e RTEY

o BIEIRRITETE

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividend income

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Additions of investment properties

Purchase of other financial assets

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

(Increase)/Decrease in pledged
bank balances

Repayment of mortgage loans

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Issue of share capital, net of expenses
Dividends paid

New bank loans raised

Repayment of bank loan

(Repayment of)/Advances from a director
Increase in amount due to a related company

Net cash generated from financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and
cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes,
on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of the balances of cash and
cash equivalents

Bank balances and cash as stated in
consolidated statement of financial
position

Add: Bank overdrafts

Less: Pledged bank balances

Annual Report 2013 £3&

—E—=5F —E——-4F
2013 2012
FET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
1,779 3,156
677 1,083

(511) (412)
(68,254) (27,638)

- (3,178)

11 =
(3,126) 2,626

36 53
(69,388) (24,310)
33,830 8,315
(2,972) (3,166)
1,725,290 1,002,551
(1,481,541) (684,652)
(15,070) 24,918

7 —

259,544 347,966
(146,717) 112,149
198,817 84,996
4,489 1,672
56,589 198,817
78,187 205,521
(11,990) (222)
(9,608) (6,482)
56,589 198,817

F89EEEF207BFE 2 EEIEMI T AZAA17% The notes on pages 89 to 207 form part of these financial

R 2B -

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZFT—=%A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

LN 3T
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
5 2R
BE 258K WRER  EXRG RAER RERW 28 BE AR
Property Special Non-
Share  Exchange revaluation capital Share  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  premium* profits* Total interests equity

Téx Tex Tz TEx  TEx  TiExr  TEx TEr TExn
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
(Hrat31) (W#ts2)  (W#s)
(Note 31) (Note 32)  (Note 32)

“E--FtA-A&%F DHRE Balanceat1July 2011, asreported 40,231 11,375 3,07 320,065 1,191,474 2,414,183 3980355 49,222 4,029,577

AR Prior year adjustment with respect to:
FERERNAE Adjustment to non-controlling interests
(Hit4a) (Note 4(2) - - - - - (34081 (34081) 34,081 -

“Z--EtA-BE% KB Balanceat 1 July 2011, as restated 40,231 11,375 3,007 320,065 1,191,474 2,380,102 3,946,274 83,303 4,029,577

EREREENZE——& 2011 final dividend approved

RS and paid = = = = - (18237 (18237) - (18,237)
EHEREHEN-Z——F 2012 interim dividend approved

PERE and paid = = = = - (16562 (16,562) - (16,562)
Bkh Issue of share capital:

BEARRK B2 Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme 1,348 = = = 30,285 = 31,633 = 31,633

EDCE By exercise of warrants 463 = = = 7,893 = 8,356 = 8,356

PUEGEE: Share issue expenses = = = = (40) = (40) = (40)
BEAAZRS Transactions with owners 1,611 - = = 38,138 (34,799) 5,150 = 5,150
AERRR (KE5)) Profit for the year (restated) = = - - - 157677 157,677 9488 167,165

EREHEELE Other comprehensive income
for the year

BEBIEEXBHBRR Exchange loss

ErzEXES on translation of financial
statements of foreign operations = (1,490) = = = = (1,490) = (1,490)
THREFALEEZE Change in fair value of
and and buildings = = 4,036 = = = 4,036 = 4,036
ERERENELE Total comprehensive income
for the year - (1,490) 4,036 - - 157,677 160,223 9,488 169,711

“E-EXAZTHER Balance at 30 June 2012 42,042 9,885 7,063 320,065 1,229,612 2,502,980 4,111,647 92,791 4,204,438
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

ZE-ZELB-BE% ERE  Balance at 1)uly 2012, as reported

FIERE Prior year adjustment with
respect to:
FFERER I Adjustment to non-controlling
(Wit4) interests (Note 4(a))

ZE-ZHtB-R&RF KBS Balanceat 1 July 2012, as restated

EREREAN-Z-ZF 2012 final dividend approved

REARE and paid
BRERBHN-E-=F 2013 interim dividend approved
RS and paid
Bk Issue of share capital:
RENRR 2 E Pursuant to scrip dividend scheme
TRARER By exercise of warrants
BEEALRS Transactions with owners
REREH Profit for the year
EREHEZERA Other comprehensive income
for the year
HERNEELH Exchange loss on translation
BBRRELL of financial statements
LM of foreign operations
THRBFALERE Change in fair value of
% land and building
2 mbEH0EE Income tax relating to components
e of other comprehensive income
FR2ANALE Total comprehensive income

for the year

—E-ZEXAZTRER Balance at 30 June 2013

LN Y
Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
#Al FER
BE 258K WRER  EXRG RAER RERW 28 BE 4R
Property Special Non-

Share  Exchange revaluation capital Share  Retained controlling Total
capital  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  premium* profits* Total interests equity
TEr TR TEr  TEx  TEr  TERT  TEx  TER  TER

HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
(its1) (Hits2)  (Wits2)
(Note 31) (Note 32)  (Note 32)

42,042 9,885 7,063 320,065 1229612 2,546,584 4155251 49,187 4204438

- - - - - (43,604)  (43,604) 43,604 -

42,042 9,885 7,063 320,065 1229612 2,502,980 4,111,647 92,791 4204438

- - - - - (19,551)  (19,551) - (19,551)

- - - - - (19,9100 (19,910) - (19,910)

1,063 . . - 3542 - 36,489 - 36489

1,611 - - - 32,219 - 33,830 - 33,830

2,674 - - - 67,045 (39,461) 30,858 - 30,858

- . . - - 106286 106286 34,428 140,714
- 25,021 = = 5 - 250 - 250
- - 11,381 . - - 11,381 - 11,381
- - (08 - - - (308) - (308)
- 25,021 8,338 - - 106,286 139,645 34,428 174,073
44716 34906 15401 320065 1,297,257 2,569,805 4282150 127,219 4,409,369

* hREREREZINEREM K AREK *
PR & E 2 7 154,237,434,00078 0T (R =

T — 4 : 4,069,605,000/8TT) °

These reserve accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of
HK$4,237,434,000 (2012: HK$4,069,605,000 as restated) in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

89B EE207 B FTE Z BEIEN i AR 7% The notes on pages 89 to 207 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

GENERAL INFORMATION

Cheuk Nang (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled
in Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is
disclosed in the Corporate Information section of the
annual report and, its principal place of business is
Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are
controlled by Yan Yin Company Limited (“Yan Yin”), a
limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in
Hong Kong. At the reporting date, the directors consider
the ultimate parent company of the Group is also Yan
Yin.

The Group is principally engaged in property
development and investment and provision of property

management and related services.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June
2013 were approved for issue by the board of directors
on 25 September 2013.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1. mEI B 2.1
BNEBOEEF 2078 2 BHK
NREAGHM A (BB
fAg]) B BB BRESE
Al (T EEMBHREEL]D) - ttitiE
EREMEEREN BB KR
HER| - FEAGHER([FEGS
A RRE -  BEALTERAZE
R A BB B R REH 2 38 7E iR
& R mKR IR & BB
ERXRGERARIES EMHAZ
HRBBERE -

BV EHRRERAEZSHR
B N - (R BERAEIN I
EEHBRREXNME2RFEER
JER o RN AT SR ERT 2 BB R
7553 5 B I\ HL AN 68 [ B 5 AR00
ZHE(NE) ERME3PIRE -

MERRIZBE L NANEERE -
HEREME - AR BEF AR
MERBEE TEMBIA - &
RYE - #8 MREN LI MET
AR AR EBEIIRERI - BRIFTEE
ER TG BERFA -

Basis of preparation

The financial statements on pages 80 to 207 have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The financial statements also include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated. The adoption of
new or amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the
Group’s financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in Note 3.

The financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis, except for investment
properties, financial instruments classified as at fair
value through profit or loss, derivative financial
instruments and land and buildings classified under
property, plant and equipment, which are stated
at fair values. The measurement bases are fully

described in the accounting policies below.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (Continued)

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’s best knowledge and
judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the financial statements,

are disclosed in Note 5.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see Note 2.3 below) made up to 30

June each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They
are excluded from consolidation from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between
group companies are eliminated in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are
reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset
is also tested for impairment from the Group’s
perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted
where necessary to ensure consistency with the

accounting policies adopted by the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 RREEE (H&) 2.2
EARKE KR EME R RAESIE -
& B9 5 A Sk B B R () W ER B (R (B
AR BEREMREEROA
REBEZEMRGHNERFNE
E(BREEE) aEREAIFE
erEm 7 REE  MERZERER
AR - ERABCEENRBRELE
B BRZREANUERAXNEER
HE - -BEETHBRARIZEERE
AREENEHSETENEELS
Rt am s EBEEE EHE MRS W
R EFTEETHER  AEEER
iR e W amh R Rt AT ER
SEBBOARRE HEEZE L EZA
BEEAR(BEFNSEEEESN
BEEEREZREBEF) -

Ht 8 A 7

B B A AN ER B A M R I AL B IR
NMEERRER (BEBHNE®
C MR X R E P EE R
me RAHEARBEREEHN S —F
BE 2ZRELAHFEHEEA 717
BB BERREREZE -

2.3 2.3

= Bd8

B =

EARARBZHBEARREK - KB R R
AR A BIRUBE B 1B 51 BR - BR IR %
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Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and fair
value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous
carrying amount of the assets (including goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Where certain assets of the
subsidiary are measured at revalued amounts of fair
values and the related cumulative gain or loss has
been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the
Company had directly disposed of the related assets
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred

directly to retained profits).

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) over which the Group has the power to
control the financial and operating policies so as to
obtain benefits from their activities. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another

entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment
loss unless the subsidiary is held for sale or
included in a disposal group. The results of the
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable at
the reporting date. All dividends whether received
out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition profits

are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

Subsidiaries (Continued)
Non-controlling interests

Non-controlling interests represent the portion
of the profit or loss and net assets of a subsidiary
attributable to equity interests that are not owned
by the Group and are not the Group’s financial

liabilities.

Non-controlling interests represented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable
to the owners of the Company. Profit or loss
attributable to the non-controlling interests is
presented separately in the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the Group’s results.
Total comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Foreign currency translation

The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of
the individual entity using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the
reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from
the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.4 HhEsia s (1)
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Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined and are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all
individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into Hong Kong dollars.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates at the
reporting date. Income and expenses have been
converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates,
or at the average rates over the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from
this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately
in the exchange reserve in equity. Goodwill and
fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign operation on or after 1 January 2005 have
been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated into Hong Kong dollars at

the closing rates.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or

loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

2. TEESTTBRBE (B

2.5 W% #BERRE

RAEKEEN 2T RAELH F2
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Land held under operating leases and buildings
thereon (where the fair value of the leasehold
interest in the land and buildings cannot be
measured separately at the inception of the lease
and the building is not clearly held under an
operating lease) are stated at revalued amounts,
being fair value at the date of revaluation less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
subsequent impairment losses. Fair value is
determined in appraisals by external professional
valuers with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount does not differ materially from
that which would be determined using fair value at
the reporting date. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against
the gross carrying amount of the asset and the
net amount is restated to the revalued amount of
the asset. All other items of property, plant and
equipment are stated at cost less accumulated

depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.



96

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR

BA %5 8 R P 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2. FESFHEBE (&)

Annual Report 2013 £33

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5 MK - B RERE (E)
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Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Any surplus arising on revaluation of land and
buildings is recognised in other comprehensive
income and is accumulated in the property
revaluation reserve in equity, unless the carrying
amount of that asset has previously suffered a
revaluation decrease. To the extent that any
decrease has previously been recognised in profit
or loss, a revaluation increase is credited to profit
or loss with the remaining part of the increase
dealt with in other comprehensive income. A
decrease in net carrying amount of land and
buildings arising on revaluations is recognised in
other comprehensive income to the extent of the
revaluation surplus in the property revaluation
reserve relating to the same asset and the remaining

decrease is recognised in profit or loss.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is
provided to write off the cost or revalued amounts
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Land and buildings 2%
Furniture, fittings and office equipment 10%
Motor vehicles and accessories 20%

The asset’s residual values, depreciation methods
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.5

2.6

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and
is recognised in profit or loss. Any revaluation
surplus remaining in equity is transferred to
retained profits on the disposal of land and

building.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other costs, such as
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are

incurred.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that
is being constructed or developed for future use as

investment property.

When the Group holds a property interest under
an operating lease to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on
a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment
property is accounted for as if it were held under a

finance lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Investment properties (Continued)

Investment properties include completed properties
and investment properties under development for
continued future use as investment properties.
Investment properties are stated in the statement
of financial position at fair value. Fair value is
determined by external professional valuers, with
sufficient experience with respect to both the
location and nature of the investment property.
The carrying amounts recognised at the reporting
date reflect the prevailing market conditions at the

reporting date.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the
fair value or the sale of an investment property are
included in profit or loss in the period in which

they arise.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets other than interest in subsidiaries are set out
below. Financial assets of the Group are classified
into held-to-maturity investments, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, and loans and

receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-

evaluates this designation at every reporting date.
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2. TESHTHERE (F) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 EREE (&) 2.7 Financial assets (Continued)
FrEcEEEEASE AR All financial assets are recognised when, and
HNERIFIER - —RETEA R only when, the Group becomes a party to the
ENTREEER S HER - o/ contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
BEVSHEIARRARBENE - way purchases and sales of financial assets are
MW IR AR BEFABRZKRE recognised on trade date. When financial assets
ms @ AN EEERERZKAET are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
£ ° value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair

value through profit or loss, directly attributable

transaction costs.

BEWERREReREZENE R Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the
BEUEE - MATA 2 BAEMD E B rights to receive cash flows from the investments
FO®REEE  AGIGRERS/RE expire or are transferred and substantially all of
E o the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.
TmehhA LR REs THEE At each reporting date, financial assets are
REFBEEYARITCREE ° reviewed to assess whether there is objective
FHEEMZERE  AlRemEE evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
ZHOEEERERREEIE - exists, impairment loss is determined and

recognised based on the classification of the

financial asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(if)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity
that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated
taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss includes financial assets held for trading
and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there
is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term
profit-taking. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated
as effective hedging instruments or financial

guarantee contracts.



Annual Report 2013 £

2. FESFHEBE (&)

2.7 EWMEE (&)
(i) B BEFGTAER S EHE
E (&)

ok
\

NEMBEE —HHZHELZ
ITETE  BENANERES
BARBESABENERE
E BRIEMBENITETAY
R ME W B A A
RPMBZTETARE LD
FIEY -

S MAEE NS RRRR AR
DR BEGABENERAE
7 2 DA T Hf

N

AR AR AR KB
N TREEREEEEHK
MEREN R E B EIE
AR E K

- IRIEERRE IR RS X &
NHREZXTFTEIEERASR
ERRZEmMEEMRNE
M ZEEREZREEHA
REEDEE - HRBEN
NABERFE =X

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH

BA ¥5 28 3% P 5E

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear
that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or

loss if the following criteria are met:

— the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the
assets or recognising gains or losses on

them on a different basis; or

— the assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key

management personnel; or

— the financial asset contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately

recorded.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or

loss (Continued)

Subsequent to the initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category are
measured at fair value with changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. Fair value
is determined by reference to active market
transactions or using a valuation technique
where no active market exists. Fair value
gain or loss does not include any dividend
or interest earned on these financial assets.
Dividend and interest income is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s policies in Note

2.16 to these financial statements.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any impairment
losses. Amortised cost is calculated taking
into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate and

transaction cost.
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2. FEEBRERBE (A 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.7 EWMEE (&) 2.7 Financial assets (Continued)

2@ B E R E Impairment of financial assets

TREE GERARBEFT AER At each reporting date, financial assets other than
ZERMEE)INEHREBETR at fair value through profit or loss are reviewed to
HOUNETREALEREREE determine whether there is any objective evidence
B -ReMEENRETEHERE of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment
AT 2 BEE A A4 E B P A of individual financial assets includes observable
x data that comes to the attention of the Group about

one or more of the following loss events:

e BEHRABEAMBEE : =%

Significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

o ERAHX  WMIAEITHTERE e A breach of contract, such as a default or
MEHARE delinquency in interest or principal payments;

e EXFAREEREIREF e It becoming probable that the debtor will enter
BEREA - bankruptcy or other financial re-organisation;

o RBIE -WH -  KBEREMIHE e Significant changes in the technological,
ANABEHEFAG IR E market, economic or legal environment that
& have an adverse effect on the debtor; and

e BMREBEHBREBARAFIRHALAR e A significant or prolonged decline in the fair
BETHREERNKARE - value of an investment in an equity instrument

below its cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial assets
include observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from the group of financial assets. Such
observable data includes but not limited to adverse
changes in the payment status of debtors in the
group and, national or local economic conditions

that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is

measured and recognised as follows:

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an
impairment loss on loans and receivables
or held-to-maturity investments carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in profit or loss of the period in

which the impairment occurs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets carried at amortised cost

(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit or

loss of the period in which the reversal occurs.

Impairment losses of financial assets other
than financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and trade receivables that are
stated at amortised cost, are written off against
the corresponding assets directly. Where the
recovery of trade receivables is considered
doubtful but not remote, the impairment losses
for doubtful receivables are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is
satisfied that recovery of trade receivables is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade receivables directly
and any amounts held in the allowance
account in respect of that receivable are
reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or

loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale include completed

properties for sale and properties under

development for sale and are stated at the lower of

cost and net realisable value.

(i)

(if)

Properties under development for sale

The cost of properties under development
for sale comprises specifically identified
cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and
supplies, wages and other direct expenses,
an appropriate proportion of overheads and
borrowing costs capitalised (see Note 2.19).
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price less estimated costs of completion

and costs to be incurred in selling the property.

Completed properties for sale

In the case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price less costs

to be incurred in selling the property.

The cost of completed properties for sale
comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing
the inventories to their present location and

condition.
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2. FESFHEBE (&) 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.8 EEHEFEWXE(HE) 2.8 Properties held for sale (Continued)
(i) 7FHEZEEKYE (&) (ii) Completed properties for sale (Continued)
B —IEAHEZEEKRYEE Recognition of costs (including borrowing cost)
REEMUEEEEREN A in the carrying amount of an item of completed
BIEFME MM E KR - AlfE properties for sale ceases when the item is in
LEHRAR (BIEEEKA) 18 the location and condition necessary for it to
BRRESBPER - be capable of operating in the manner intended

by management.

ERBIARAEBEIIRNRE For a transfer of investment properties
MEEBEFEYER 2 previously carried at fair value to properties for
ERESHEN AL EBEY sale, the property cost is the fair value at the
Bk o date of change in use.
29 fTESHMTIA 2.9 Derivative financial instruments
TSR T EE—E@ER S %8sk Derivative financial instruments, in individual
—EREEMNERMITASRH  ¥1FNU contracts or separated from hybrid financial
RIVTAETAGHNBEN AR BERE instruments, are initially recognised at fair value on
RBERARABERE - TEL the date the derivative contract is entered into and
B SEAREL T EIFIBR BIE A 2 subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives
BETAERNEREEXSRE that are not designated as hedging instruments
& AR BEEMNZEEH I ZAEN K are accounted for as financial assets or financial
EREEEEZFNERAR- liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Gains

or losses arising from changes in fair value are

taken directly to profit or loss for the year.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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2.10 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. For the purpose of the statement of cash
flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
include bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s

cash management.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank
loans and overdrafts, trade and other payables and
advances from related parties (including amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders, amount due to
a related company and advances from a director).
They are included in line items in the statement of
financial position as interest-bearing borrowings
under current or non-current liabilities, trade and
other payables or separately shown on the face of

the statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see Note
2.19).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Financial liabilities (Continued)
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A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or

cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference in the respective

carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives

Derivatives including separated embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value (see Note
2.9).

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings

using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve

months after the reporting date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Financial liabilities (Continued)

Trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to a related

company and advances from a director

Trade and other payables, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders, amount due to a
related company and advances from a director
are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtors fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a debt

instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the
fair value of the guarantee is initially recognised as
deferred income within trade and other payables.
Where consideration is received or receivable for
the issuance of guarantee, the consideration is
recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable, an
immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on

initial recognition of any deferred income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.12

213

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit or loss
over the term of the guarantee as income from
financial guarantees issued. In addition, provisions
are recognised if and when it becomes probable
that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee and the amount of
that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation, where

appropriate.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys a
right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed
period of time in return for a payment of a series of
payments. Such a determination is made based on
an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement
and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes

the legal form of a lease.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.13 Leases (Continued)

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases
which transfer to the Group substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as being held under finance leases.
Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases, with

the following exceptions:

— property held under operating leases that
would otherwise meet the definition of
an investment property is classified as
an investment property on a property-
by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if
held under a finance lease (see Note 2.6);

and

— land held for own use under an operating
lease, the fair value of which cannot be
measured separately from the fair value
of a building situated thereon, at the
inception of the lease, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless
the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease (see Note 2.6). For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the
time that the lease was first entered into by
the Group, or taken over from the previous

lessee.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Leases (Continued)

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use of assets
held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the time pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rental are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting

period in which they are incurred.

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases are
measured and presented according to the
nature of the assets. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense over
the lease term on the same basis as the rental

income.
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2.13 Leases (Continued)

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases as the

lessor (Continued)

Rental income receivable from operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the periods covered by the
lease term, except where an alternative basis
is more representative of the time pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part
of the aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are

earned.

2.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

assets

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle

the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date

and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.14 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent

215

assets (Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future uncertain events
not wholly within the control of the group are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

Probable inflows of economic benefits to the Group
that do not yet meet the recognition criteria of an

asset are considered contingent assets.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of

shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing
of shares are deducted from share premium reserve
(net of any related income tax benefit) to the extent
they are incremental costs directly attributable to

the equity transaction.
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2.16 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be measured

reliably and on the following bases.

Revenue arising from the sale of properties held
for sale is recognised when the legal title has been
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides
with the time upon signing of the sale and purchase
agreement or the issue of an occupation permit
by the relevant government authorities, whichever
is the later. Deposits and instalments received
on properties sold prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the statement of

financial position under other payables.

Rental income under operating leases is recognised
in the period in which the properties are let out and

on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion

basis using the effective interest method.

Estate management income is recognised in the

period when services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised
when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is

established.
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Property, plant and equipment, other non-current
asset and interest in subsidiaries are subject to
impairment testing. All such assets are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs to sell,
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of

money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating

unit level.

Impairment losses is charged pro rata to the other
assets in the cash generating unit, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or

value in use, if determinable.
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Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been

recognised.

Employee benefits
Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided

through several defined contribution plans.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan
under which the Group pays fixed contributions
into a separate entity. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions

after payment of the fixed contribution.

The contributions recognised in respect to defined
contribution plans are expensed as they fall
due. Liabilities and assets may be recognised if
underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as

they are normally of a short term nature.
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MMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.18

2.19

Employee benefits (Continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised

until the time of leave.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying assets
are capitalised during the period of time that is
required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. A qualifying asset is an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing

costs are expensed when incurred.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale
are being undertaken. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs ceases when substantially all the activities
necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for its

intended use or sale are complete.
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2.20 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal
authorities relating to the current or prior reporting
period, that are unpaid at the reporting date. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax
laws applicable to the fiscal periods to which they
relate, based on the taxable profit for the year.
All changes to current tax assets or liabilities are
recognised as a component of tax expense in profit

or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the reporting
date between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and their
respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for
all deductible temporary differences, tax losses
available to be carried forward as well as other
unused tax credits, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused

tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from initial recognition (other than in
a business combination) of assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
the liability is settled or the asset realised, provided
they are enacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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2.20 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to

set off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(it) different taxable entities which intend
either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise
the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred
tax liabilities or assets are expected to be

settled or recovered.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components. The business
components in the internal financial information
reported to the executive directors are determined
following the Group’s major product and service

lines.

The Group has identified the following reportable

segments:

e  Property sales;

e  Property rental;

e Estate management; and

e Others — financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, and derivative financial

instruments

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches. All inter-segment transfers are carried

out at arms length prices.
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Segment reporting (Continued)

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that finance
costs, income tax, corporate income and expenses
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not included
in arriving at the operating results of the operating

segment.

Segment assets include all assets but investments
in other financial assets (including held-to-maturity
debt securities), deferred tax assets and corporate
assets which are not directly attributable to the
business activities of any operating segment are not
allocated to a segment, which primarily applies to

the Group’s headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment and are not
allocated to a segment. These include taxation and

certain borrowings.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to

reportable segments.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties

(a)

A person or a close member of that person’s

family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the

Group;

(ii) has significant influence over the Group;

or

(iii) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is

related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which

the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same

third party.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
2.22 Related parties (Continued)

(b) (iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate

of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the

Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly

controlled by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings

with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic

partner;

(ii) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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2012

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”) issued by
the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 July 2012:

HKAS 1 (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other

Comprehensive Income

Other than as noted below, the adoption of the new
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results
and financial position for the current and prior

periods have been prepared and presented.

HKAS 1 (Amendments) — Presentation of Items of

Other Comprehensive Income

The HKAS 1 (Amendments) requires an entity to
group items presented in other comprehensive
income into those that, in accordance with other
HKFRSs: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit or loss; and (b) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. The Group’s presentation
of other comprehensive income in this Annual

Financial Report has been modified accordingly.
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3. RAHTHAREITEENKH 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED

& 2 || HKFRSs (Continued)
(b) EEMEMKRER I LIERT (b) New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are
ERMBHREER not yet effective
RE S mc Bt EZEMBE » NEE At the date of authorisation of these financial
WEIREE A T D BB R statements, the following new/revised HKFRSs,
M2 el e B AR EE potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
A HAjgeBANER 2 HEHRKRE statements, have been issued, but are not yet
i - effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group.
ERNBRERAETR KE-cmAESR Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting Financial
(BT%) SRARHY Assets and Financial Liabilities '
BREHRAENG (BTX) ZH-SRBER Amendments to HKAS 32 Presentation — Offsetting Financial
TRARYH Assets and Financial Liabilities 2
BRNBEREERFo% SRIA HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments *
BRI RRE 105 GRVERR HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements '
BEMBRERNE N EEMERERRE HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests
in Other Entities '
BENBREENE 1R M BEGHE HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements '
BRGHENZI9F001)  EEEA HKAS 19 (2012) Employee Benefits !
BROHENZRQ0Y)  BUMBER HKAS 27 (2012) Separate Financial Statement '
EARBREER (BITA)  BAMBRLEENL HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual improvements to HKFRSs
ERNE(CTENE 2009-2011 cycle ?
EZ5-—EFR)
T RZE—=F—A—H2%EH ! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
15 2 FEEIR AR 1 January 2013
. RZE—ME—-—HA—HsziEH 2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
18 2 FE B A X 1 January 2014
3 RZZE—AF—A—H%ZEH 3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

24 2 S HAR A K 1 January 2015
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3. MAFTREBITEBHKR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
XA () HKFRSs (Continued)

H ==~
(b) BEMEMKRER T EIEET (b) New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are

FERYBE®REER (F)
BB ISR T BRI — 2 A T

REBBWHREERNEINR - 18
FEREESMEENEBHENNR
EMEENGORESREFMEM
o EREENBEREAREERK
REBHKATAENSREE - AR
BEEmSSEERTRER - HEIE
RERNERIN BRADEEREE
Hit2EmWEPEREHER - &
AU BHRELEANEIRERET LS
FAERE3SRE SR A ER
R DRMFTERE  EEESR
AoBEAABRSNERAER
S BB EREERRES ME
HARBEZSNEHREEMEE
Wt HERR - BRIFER S EMR IR
SRR - BIERIR - wtoh - &
BB RELEMNEIRARE TEE
2R ERIFE395%F SR ER R’
EERSRABAENEX -

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value or at
amortised cost depending on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial assets. Fair value gains or losses will be
recognised in profit or loss except for those non-
trade equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses in other
comprehensive income. HKFRS 9 carries forward
the recognition, classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS 39,
except for financial liabilities that are designated at
fair value through profit or loss, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial

liabilities.



130

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR

BA %5 8 R P 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

3. RAMTIHRETERYER

HZEA (&)

| =~

(b) EHEMEMRERZHET, BT (b)
FERYBE®REER (F)
BB HIRE ERFE105% —#EaH
BHFE

BB HHRELERFE 1057 KA —IR
BRGEMAERREERBNE 1%
HERX - ERET EGHRKNET
WD (TwmZENER LBELE
)+ B IR E 7 #Y R ) B A9
FREHEN  AREREHRIRE
THENAZEZERMNEET
AR E TS T HIRE T - BB
BHREERE105RF A ERFF A
ZHI R FFARTEE - flan - R 5[
[ERZEG IS it BRET
B BIRETT D IR50%H RIRKE -
AR E At B AR R A ROR KR
NROBIEE - WETHRRER
MR AR A BHWIRE T
N BB AEFIRKET -

EofEsll  BERRERERE
HABEKHBIR HEABER
BEANATTEBERRAE)RTFTE
e o BRI ERFHABRRE
ENRETERERFEAIMBLAEA
TF  UEREREAEHMARREKE
MAERIRETHRIEATSE -

Annual Report 2013 £33

3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
HKFRSs (Continued)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor
has control when it has power over the investee
(whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over the
investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10 contains
extensive guidance on the assessment of control.
For example, the standard introduces the concept
of “de facto” control where an investor can control
an investee while holding less than 50% of the
investee’s voting rights in circumstances where
its voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size
relative to the size and dispersion of those of other
individual shareholders to give it power over the

investee.

Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive,
i.e. the holder has the practical ability to exercise
them. The standard explicitly requires an
assessment of whether an investor with decision
making rights is acting as principal or agent and
also whether other parties with decision making

rights are acting as agents of the investor.
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3. MAFTREBITEBHTHR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
XA () HKFRSs (Continued)

H ==~
(b) BEMEMKRER T EIEET (b) New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are

FERYBE®REER (F)
BB HIRE ERFE105% —#EaH

BIRE (&)

REAEZFERRS —AXBS—
ARFEETTE - Bt - HITERK
R WAAHRIRE T ABES -
Ead B EmE ERFE1057 A
BEEERER AT AEBEEHNER
(A MRS R #EH®RERA) B Pk
2 MBBFBETENFR27HAR
FHMAESHEEEEN S ENRS
A& - fRETHREEREN &
B BERELEAZ105EPER -

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements
(Continued)

An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and for
the benefit of another party and therefore does not
control the investee when it exercises its decision
making authority. The implementation of HKFRS 10
may result in changes in those entities which are
regarded as being controlled by the Group and are
therefore consolidated in the financial statements.
The accounting requirements in the existing HKAS
27 on other consolidation related matters are
carried forward unchanged. HKFRS 10 is applied
retrospectively subject to certain transitional

provisions.
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3. RAHTHAREITEENKH 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
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HKFRSs (Continued)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements.
[t also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated
structured entities. The general objective of the
standard is to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting
entity’s interests in other entities and the effects of
those interests on the reporting entity’s financial

statements.
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. RAFITTSR RIS EBMEIR 3. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED
AR HKFRSs (Continued)

(= /\IJ (nlﬁ)
(b) BEMEMKRER T EIEET (b) New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are

ERMEHREER (&)
BB EREERE139E — DB
EXNEE
BB BHREEREIZFHNHE
MERERSI A FEARABER
Mt E AR EERHE —#E 3
IR o ZEREEARUAA R EBEE
e MIFEHMIER - WSEQR
BEFTEEX - ZtEBXRF=F
BRANEREBEBEBUBRESE
AlE7s €M T A BEIEH—
B BBV BREEINE13IREAR
R BEATAEAEANEFRIS
o mBE2EECRAEE—HEE
Free B E@% —HaERKg XN
HEE (BR BB - ERIEUSET
HREERBRMS LERENERE
ENeREERIFEKALHEBMNE
BE—ERK MM ZHE B
REEEZHEANRKERKXE@IE
RTIHRARBENER ETHE
AR REER  EMBHRERERE
FHEEtE AR BERTAN AR
WA URAAREBEFTFTEHTBER
KT E - EEMBEREEE13
SRRTIRAIER A - W B IR AR 2R E A
FER -
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not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurements

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance
on how to measure fair value when it is required
or permitted by other standards. The standard
applies to both financial and non-financial items
measured at fair value and introduces a fair
value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of
the three levels in this measurement hierarchy
are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures. HKFRS 13 defines fair
value as the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date (i.e. an exit price). The standard
removes the requirement to use bid and ask prices
for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an
active market. Rather the price within the bid-ask
spread that is most representative of fair value in
the circumstances should be used. It also contains
extensive disclosure requirements to allow users
of the financial statements to assess the methods
and inputs used in measuring fair values and the
effects of fair value measurements on the financial
statements. HKFRS 13 can be adopted early and is
applied prospectively.
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HKFRSs (Continued)

New/revised HKFRS that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

This cycle of annual improvements contains
amendments to five standards with consequential
amendments to other standards and interpretations.
Among them, HKAS 34 has been amended to
clarify that total assets for a particular reportable
segment are required to be disclosed only if
the amounts are regularly provided to the chief
operating decision maker (“CODM”) and only if
there has been a material change in the total assets
for that segment from the amount disclosed in the
last annual financial statements. The amendment
also requires the disclosure of segment liabilities if
the amounts are regularly provided to the CODM
and there has been a material change in the
amounts compared with the last annual financial

statements.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of
the pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning

after the effective date of the pronouncement.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the potential impact of these new/
revised HKFRSs and the directors so far concluded
that the application of these new/revised HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the Group’s

financial statements.
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4. RESTATEMENTS DUE TO CORRECTION OF
PRIOR YEAR ERRORS

(@) Nature of the prior year errors

In preparing the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2013,
the Group has identified certain errors in the
comparative financial information presented. A
detailed description of the nature of each prior year

error is provided below.

(i) Non-controlling interests at reporting date

During the year ended 30 June 2012, the
Group has early adopted Amendments to HKAS
12 — Deferred tax: Recovery of underlying
assets. The Group measures deferred tax
liabilities for investment properties measured
at fair value by applying the consequences of
recovering the economic benefits of investment
properties entirely through sale. The Group has
reviewed its portfolio of investment properties
and has not rebutted the presumption as
none of the investment properties are held in
business model with the objective to consume
substantially all the economic benefits through
use. Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and
increase in retained profits of the Group as a
result of adoption of Amendments to HKAS 12
are HK$402,982,000 and HK$388,970,000
as at 30 June 2012 and 2011, respectively.
However, the Group has not considered the
corresponding increase attributable to non-
controlling interests. In addition, the Group
has overstated the amount attributable to non-
controlling interests of HK$3,408,000 as at
30 June 2012 and 2011. As a result, retained
profits should be decreased by HK$43,604,000
and HK$34,081,000 as at 30 June 2012
and 2011 respectively, and non-controlling
interests should be increased by the same
amount as at 30 June 2012 and 2011.
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4. FIFUAFEREMES (&) 4. RESTATEMENTS DUE TO CORRECTION OF
PRIOR YEAR ERRORS (Continued)

(@ EFHERHME (H) (@) Nature of the prior year errors (Continued)
(ii) FFHEAR 12 2% JE 15 F /2 i 7 (ii) Profit for the year attributable to non-
controlling interests
EEHE_T—_FXHA=1H During the year ended 30 June 2012, the
IEFE - NEERIFERER Group’s profit for the year attributable to non-
JE 1 F [E & F) & 59,488,000 controlling interests should be HK$9,488,000.
BT e AEBEAE it F4)3) The Group has understated the profit
TE P st 2 R A o FEHE AR 4 %5 B attributable to non-controlling interests of
1§ EE % K & 459,523,000 HK$9,523,000 for the same reason as 4(a)(i)
B oA R ——4F above. As a result, the non-controlling interests
NA=+tHFERERNR as at 30 June 2012 and profit for the year
T——FXA=tTHLFE attributable to non-controlling interests for the
FE 1R A% R 28 FE (GO A FE K A0 year ended 30 June 2012 should be increased

9,523,000/ T © by HK$9,523,000.
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4. FIUASTEREMES (Z) 4. RESTATEMENTS DUE TO CORRECTION OF

PRIOR YEAR ERRORS (Continued)

(b) Summary of the effects of restatements due to

correction of prior year errors

Consolidated income statement
for the year ended 30 June 2012
Profit for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Consolidated statement of
comprehensive income
for the year ended
30 June 2012

Total comprehensive income
for the year attributable to:

Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share for profit
attributable to the owners
of the Company during the year
Basic
Diluted

Consolidated statement of
financial position as
at 30 June 2012
Reserves
Non-controlling interests

Consolidated statement of
financial position as
at 1 July 2011
Reserves
Non-controlling interests

BEERE
As previously
reported
TR
HK$"000

167,200
(35)

169,746
(35)

HK$0.41
HK$0.41

4,113,209
49,187

3,940,124
49,222

EZIEND)
Note 4(a)(i)
THIL
HK$’000

(43,604)
43,604

(34,081)
34,081

i EE4(a)ii) 2]
Note 4(a)(ii) As restated
THEL THL
HK$' 000 HK$' 000
(9,523) 157,677
9,523 9,488
(9,523) 160,223
9,523 9,488
(HK$0.03) HK$0.38
(HK$0.03) HK$0.38
- 4,069,605

- 92,791

- 3,906,043

- 83,303
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates
and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within then next financial year are

discussed below:

Estimating fair value of investment properties and

property, plant and equipment

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar property in same location and
condition and subject to lease and other contracts. In
making its judgement, the Group considers information

from a variety of sources including:

(i) the floor areas of the investment properties with
respect to the consideration to the receivable from

the independent and identified buyer;

(ii) current prices in an active market for properties of
different nature, condition or location (or subject
to different lease or other contracts), adjusted to

reflect those differences;

(iii) recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes
in economic conditions since the date of the

transactions that occurred at those prices; and
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Estimating fair value of investment properties and

property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, derived from the
terms of any existing lease and other contracts
and using discount rate that reflect current market
assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and

timing of the cash flows.

Allowance for properties under development for sale

In determining whether allowances should be made
for the Group’s properties under development for
sale, the Group takes into consideration the current
market environment and the estimated market value
(i.e. the estimated selling price less estimated costs of
selling expenses) less estimated costs to completion of
the properties. An allowance is made if the estimated
market value is less than the carrying amount. If
the actual net realisable value on properties under
development for sale is less than expected as a result
of change in market condition and/or significant
variation in the budgeted development cost, material
provision for impairment losses may result. The carrying
amount of the properties under development for sale is
HK$1,671,322,000 (2012: HK$1,284,535,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Allowance for completed properties for sale

Management exercises its judgment in making
allowance for completed properties for sale with
reference to the existing market environment and
the estimated market value of the properties, i.e. the
estimated selling price less estimated costs of selling
expenses. A specific allowance for completed properties
for sale is made if the estimate market value of the
property is lower than its carrying amount. The specific
allowance for completed properties for sale is made
based on the estimation of net realisable value on the
completed properties. If the actual net realsiable values
of the completed properties for sale less than expected,
as a result of change in market condition, provision for
impairment losses may result. The carrying amount of
the completed properties is HK$374,927,000 (2012:
HK$372,298,000).

Accounting for income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong,
China, Malaysia and Macau. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. Significant management judgement is
required in determining the provision of income taxes.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the current and deferred income tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

In addition, deferred tax assets of HK$27,064,000
(2012: HK$41,016,000) in relation to tax losses have
been recognised in the Group’s consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 June 2013. The recognition
of the deferred tax assets mainly depends on whether
sufficient future profits or taxable temporary differences
will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future profits generated are less than expected, a
material reversal of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in profit or loss for the period in
which such a reversal takes place.
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6. WA 6. REVENUE
AREBZ FTBEBETIEHRERITFIA The Group’s principal activities are disclosed in Note 1
BE - AEBECEXERREZREZTED to these financial statements. Turnover of the Group is
BIHA © the revenue from these activities.

RAFERN  KEAEEEIE2XKLD Revenue from the Group’s principal activities

ERZWAWNT - recognised during the year is as follows:
—ETE—=F —ET——F
2013 2012
TET FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
MR HE Property sales 2,720 —
a8l A Gross rental income 47,775 35,277
ME BRI A Estate management income 2,268 2,294

52,763 37,571
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors have identified the Group’s
three product and service lines as operating segments as
further described in Note 2.21.

ZEEEBESIACWEIERTIZE AR These operating segments are monitored and strategic
DEMNEEXEAEMIELREMEDN decisions are made on the basis of adjusted segment
RIE operating results.
—E_—=F 2013
BEHE HEEE PEER
Property  Property Estate Hit A
sales rental management Others Total
TER ThR TER TER TERT
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
A Revenue
RE P From external customers 2,720 47,775 2,268 - 52,763
mEM S 3 From other segments - 3,965 20,091 - 24,056
EHRE2HHA Reportable segment revenue 2,720 51,740 22,359 = 76,819
FE 8 &2 Hoi A Reportable segment profit 761 186,893 2,093 8,477 198,224
A EH Other information:
¥ KRRREFE  Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment 21 2,057 295 - 2,373
REMERABEEM Increase in fair value of investment
properties - 160,364 - - 160,364
BARBEFABEZZ Increase in fair value of financial assets
eREERAR and liabilities at fair value
RAEEEM through profit or loss - = = 773 773
ERETBEE Reportable segment assets 2,050,041 3,930,343 900 54,349 6,035,633
EHEIBEE Reportable segment liabilities 3,721 265,617 111 - 269,449
FRIEREHHEE  Additions to non-current segment assets
(RBMIERINEM  (other than financial instruments)
during the year 56,060 12,292 - - 68,352



Annual Report 2013 £

7. 7ERER (M)

= N

LN
INRE P
GES

EREDBRA

AN
nE - BERRENE

REME LA BEEM
BROfEEFABRRELZ
DR EERD
EREIHEE
EREIHAE

ENFRBOBEE
(2R T ARSI E M

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH

BA ¥5 28 3% P 5E

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
2012

Revenue
From external customers

From other segments

Reportable segment revenue

Reportable segment profit

Other information:

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Increase in fair value of investment
properties

Decrease in fair value of financial assets
and liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

Reportable segment assets

Reportable segment liabilities

Additions to non-current segment assets
(other than financial instruments)

during the year

WELE WEHEE WEER
Property ~ Property Estate Hith s
sales rental management Others Total
TEL TEL TEL TR TRT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
- 35,277 2,294 - 37,571
- 2,466 15,476 - 17,942
- 37,743 17,770 - 55,513
= 208,026 2,294 2,722 213,042
- 3,842 = - 3,842
- 189,590 - - 189,590
- - - (10,790) (10,790)
1,603,711 3,751,333 706 83,615 5,499,365
2474 262,611 84 ~ 265,169
12,388 23,895 - 66 36,349
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments

reconcile to the Group’s key financial figures as

presented in the financial statements as follows:

—E—=F

2013

TR

HK$’ 000

Reportable segment revenue 76,819
Elimination of inter segment revenue (24,056)
Revenue of the Group 52,763

—E-=

2013

THERT

HK$’ 000

Reportable segment profit 198,224
Unallocated corporate income 2,730
Unallocated corporate expenses (24,672)

Finance costs (12,874)

Profit before income tax of the Group 163,408

—E——%F

2012
TAET
HK$’000

55,513
(17,942)

37,571

—E——%F

2012
TAET

HK$"000

213,042
20,349
(63,935)

(7,922)

161,534
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Reportable segment assets
Other corporate assets

Deferred tax assets

Total assets of the Group

Reportable segment liabilities
Tax payable

Other corporate liabilities

Total liabilities of the Group

—E—=fF
2013
FET
HK$’ 000

6,035,633
197,798
4,437

6,237,868

—_E—=
2013
THERT
HK$’ 000

263,481
954
1,564,064

1,828,499

—=E—-—
2012
FAET

HK$”000

5,471,171
287,394
27,918

5,786,483

—E——%F
2012
FHET

HK$"000

265,169
898
1,315,978

1,582,045
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7.

2R E R () 7.
AREENINKEFREMFRDEE
(2T ARSI AREREI DT

BB (CEFEH) Hong Kong (domicile)

R Macau

5 2R A8 e Malaysia

I ARILFME  The People’s Republic
(T E]) of China (“PRC")

EPMEIREBEZRF 2 E{AIE
Y2 BRI SRR - IERBEE M
BRAZEEMEMERSER -

ARRBR/REER AR - KEBZER
EEHWRAEL -  RREBEFBUBRSE
HRFESRBEEDEER - BEWERD
TEJE o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
The Group’s revenues from external customers and its
non-current assets (other than financial instruments) are

divided into the following geographical areas:

HNRE F WS

Revenue from

FRBEE

external customers

Non-current assets

—_BE—=F —ZET——-F Z—EB—-=F =—"ZET—=—4%F
2013 2012 2013 2012
TFHET FET TFHET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
49,526 35,074 2,758,409 2,658,414

- - 1,004,569 894,569

3,237 2,497 300,776 249,781

- — 98 32

52,763 37,571 4,063,852 3,802,796

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the

assets.

The Company is an investment holding company and
the principal place of the Group’s operation is in
Hong Kong. For the purpose of segment information
disclosures under HKFRS 8, the Group regarded Hong

Kong as its country of domicile.
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8. OTHER INCOME

Dividend income from listed equity
investments

Gain on disposal of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

Net exchange gain

Interest received

Sundry income

9. FINANCE COSTS

Interest charges on:
Bank loans and overdrafts wholly
repayable within five years
Advances from a director
(Note 33(a))

Other incidental borrowings costs

Total borrowing costs

Less: Interest capitalised into investment
properties and properties under
development for sale (Note)

BA ¥5 28 3% P 5E

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZF—=#F,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

—E-=F
2013
TERT
HK$’000

1,779
5,925
1,196

677
856

10,433

—E-=F

2013

TERT
HK$’ 000

34,659

989
6,854

42,502

(29,628)

12,874

B
2012
FA&T
HK$’ 000

3,176

1,083
1,972

6,231

B

2012

TAETT
HK$"000

21,962

1,281
3,685

26,928

(19,006)

7,922

Note: The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate
from 2.9050% to 3.1300% (2012: from 1.5975% to
2.8000%) per annum.
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9. FINANCE COSTS (Continued)

overdrafts, including term loans

repayment on demand clause, in ac

This represents the finance costs of bank loans and

which contain a

cordance with the

agreed scheduled repayments dates set out in the loan

agreements.

10.

Profit before income tax is arrived

(crediting) the following:

—E—=5F
2013
TERT
HK$’ 000
Staff costs (include directors’
emoluments)
Salaries, wages and other benefits 15,205
Contribution to defined
contribution plans 303
Auditors’ remuneration 474
Depreciation 2,604
Direct outgoings in respect of
investment properties that
generate rental income 15,729
Direct outgoings in respect of
investment properties that did
not generate rental income 1,053
Loss on disposals of property,
plant and equipment 2
Reversal of provision for bad debts (14
Net exchange (gain)/loss* (1,196

expenses)

Included in other income (2012:

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

at after charging/

—E——-%F
2012
FET
HK$’000

14,061
254

584
3,842

13,937

761

) (14)
) 3,753

other operating
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1. RABBXHE 7 (FFA) 11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
BB RS /T 12 F A 5T FE AR T i A Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
AL E16.5% (ZF—ZF : 16.5%) & of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
& o BINEF 2 HIBTIRIBEF AN Z (5T profit for the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
R M IE AN EELEFEFHKRIE calculated on the estimated assessable profit for the
IMEFTHE - year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the countries

in which the Group operates.

—_E—=5F —_ZEF—=
2013 2012
TET FAET
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
AEABIE Current tax
—&B - Hong Kong
AEFEHIA Current year 189 173
EF B Under provision in respect
of prior years 1,955 -
2,144 173
— &5 — Overseas
NEEHIA Current year 195 138
TFE(ZH) L& (Over)/Under provision in respect
of prior years 9) 7
186 145
2,330 318
IEEBL R Deferred tax

VNS Current year 20,364 (5,949)

BBt~ (5t A\) # %8 Total income tax expense/(credit) 22,694 (5,631)
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M./ X H, 7 (FFA) (&) 11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT)
(Continued)
MEXYE (5 A) 2 EBE RiziE B Reconciliation between tax expense/(credit) and
EWgsHaH accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

B % A1k A

BREBNEHHNE16.5%
AE(ZE—ZF:
16.5%) 2 Hi18

TR B2 B8
BEARB R HBZE

BINREERN 2 BB RE

AEHERABBEEZ
BBTE

AN HE R 2 e B R HUR
ERIMBRE

N8 R 2 7S e
ERIMBRE

L RAARERBERTH
BRBETE
&Emﬁ/’y%)
RIEM A EEERR L
EFAEERAZREER
ERFRNBRAZRBZE

REBXE (5t A)

—E—=F —E——F
2013 2012
FTER TET
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
Profit before income tax 163,408 161,534
Tax at Hong Kong profits tax rate
of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%)
26,962 26,653
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 3,021 5,529
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue (24,870) (40,610)
Tax effect of differences in overseas
tax rates (5,547) (1,025)
Tax effect of unused tax losses
not recognised 3,078 5,490
Tax effect of deductible temporary
difference not recognised 767 (1,648)
Tax effect of taxable temporary
difference not recognised (393) =
Tax effect of prior year’s unrecognised
tax losses utilised during the year - (13)
Under/(Over) provision in prior year 1,946 (7)
Derecognition of deferred tax assets 13,419 -
Tax effect of prior years’ unrecognised
temporary difference recognised
in current year 4,311 -

Income tax expense/(credit) 22,694 (5,631)
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12.PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS
OF THE COMPANY

RARABFEBEARENGLESE & F Of the consolidated profit attributable to the
106,286,000/8 50 (= & — — F owners of the Company of HK$106,286,000 (2012:
157,677,000/ t) @ Hfh B HK$157,677,000), a loss of HK$35,789,000 (2012:
35,789,000 T2 BB (Z & — —4F : HK$17,646,000) has been dealt with in the financial
17,646,000/8 70) E R AR A 8 B s & statements of the Company.
HIIH o
13.1R 2 13.DIVIDENDS
@ TFKE (a) Dividends attributable to the year
—_E—= —E——F
2013 2012
FTERT TETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
O HARR B ZR%4.578 1l  Interim dividend of HK4.5 cents
—ET—ZF : 480l) (2012: HK4 cents) per
ordinary share 19,910 16,562
Ik 35 R BRI R Proposed final dividend of
FRSAA HK5 cents (2012: HK4.5 cents)
(Z=——%: per ordinary share
4.5%) (Krat)

(Note) 22,358 18,919

42,268 35,481
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13.DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(a) Dividends attributable to the year (Continued)
Scrip dividend alternative was offered to
shareholders in respect of the 2013 interim
dividend. This alternative was accepted by the

shareholders as follows:

—E—=F —ET——-F
2013 2012
FE T TFHET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
A2 Dividends:
" Cash 1,657 1,460
PARRAR B Share alternative 18,253 15,102
19,910 16,562
Krat - Note:
RIRE AL Sy RER S I;ﬁﬁ/\\iﬁ The final dividend proposed after the reporting date has
LSRR AEEE BEEZE— | not been recognised as a liability at the reporting date,
FERNA=ZTHIEEEZRB R P K but reflected as an appropriation of retained profits for
A o the year ended 30 June 2014.
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13.DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial

ERE year, approved and paid during the year
—E—=F —ET——F
2013 2012
THERT THETT
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000

TFUBEFERBPARE  Final dividend in respect of the
T hix4.5%84U previous financial year of
—T——F :45%81l) HK4.5 cents (2012: HK4.5 cents)

per ordinary share 19,551 18,237

- T F 2 RABRBRMA RN
BHERRERE  WWERBCERRRE

Scrip dividend alternative was offered to

shareholders in respect of the 2012 final dividend.

W This alternative was accepted by the shareholders
as follows:
—E—=F —ET——-F
2013 2012
FET FETT
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
N Dividends:
B Cash 1,315 1,706
AR AR

Share alternative 18,236 16,531

19,551 18,237
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14.EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted

share is based on the following data:

Earnings

Profit attributable to the owners of
the Company for the purpose of
calculating basic and diluted

earnings per share

Number of shares

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of
basic earnings per share

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares:

Warrants

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purposes of

diluted earnings per share

Annual Report 2013 £33

earnings per

—_E—=5F —=E——4F

2013 2012

FHET FET

HK$’ 000 HK$” 000

(&E5)

(Restated)

106,286 157,677
—EBE—=fF —_F—=

2013 2012

433,562,728 409,711,123

1,453,806 1,919,206

435,016,534 411,630,329
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ZH=

2013

Executive directors:

Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil
Ho Sau Fun Connie
Yung Philip

Chao Howard

Chao Gigi

Non-executive directors:

Leung Wing Kong Joseph*

(resigned on 27
February 2013)

Lam Ka Wai Graham*

Sun Ping Hsu Samson*
Ting Woo Shou Kenneth*

(appointed on 17
November 2012)

Lee Ding Yue Joseph
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15.DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

15.1 Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments received or

receivable by the directors of the Company are as

follows:

722 = 4:7 B

REYRZ HEEEE

Salaries, Contribution

EEZHe allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution s
fees in kind plans Total
TER TR TER TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
- 6,375 - 6,375
40 718 15 773
40 545 15 600
40 1,628 15 1,683
40 829 15 884
26 - - 26
96 - - 96
40 - - 40
25 - - 25
40 - - 40

387 10,095 60 10,542
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1I5.EERESNREEAEME (&) 15.DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(Continued)
151 EEME (&) 15.1 Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
e 28 A3/
REMH & AR
Salaries, Contribution
EEME allowances to defined
Directors’ and benefits contribution ok
fees in kind plans Total
TET TET TET TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
—E-CF 2012
HITEF: Executive directors:
e Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil = 6,267 - 6,267
%% Ho Sau Fun Connie 25 654 12 691
PR G Yung Philip 25 491 12 528
i W Chao Howard 25 660 12 697
BAZ Chao Gigi 25 758 12 795
FRITES : Non-executive directors:
R Leung Wing Kong Joseph* 25 - - 25
MR B Lam Ka Wai Graham* 60 = = 60
HRE* Sun Ping Hsu Samson* 25 - — 25
FRE Lee Ding Yue Joseph 25 B — 25
235 8,830 48 9,113
* BYIEHITESR *  Independent non-executive directors
HeE—T—=Fr_"F——FXA No directors have waived or agreed to waive any
—THIFETEEENEXRE emoluments in respect of the years ended 30 June
TR WELE £ 2013 and 2012.
FHE_ZT——FA=TAHI During the year ended 30 June 2012, a unit of a
FERXN AEBEERE—WES property of the Group was provided to an executive
UF—UESEES HE8E_F director as a directors’ quarter at nil rent. No such
—=F=XA=tHIEEITENLET arrangement in the year ended 30 June 2013.

B e
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15.DIRECTORS” REMUNERATION AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(Continued)
15.2 Five highest paid individuals

tREBEAEEAFAUKSH
MALHR zOZ(ZT——F: =
f)EEZMEWERIRE EXZ2
SIZDMA - BT (ZF—=
F DB ITZEXNMEFE

LUNINE

e =R
EWA S
BRI FKE S

B4 2 48 Bl T

0 to 1,000,000/ JT

The five individuals whose emoluments were the
highest in the Group for the year included four
(2012: four) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining one (2012:

one) individual during the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and

benefits in kind

Contribution to defined

contribution plans

Nil to HK$1,000,000

—_E—=5F —=E——4F
2013 2012
TFHET TFET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
857 788

15 12

872 800

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

AE
Number of individuals
—E—=£F —E——4F
2013 2012
1 1
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16. RE Y =% 16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
RHECEHE 2MELRS M FIAR Changes to the carrying amounts presented in the
RIEBE T - consolidated statement of financial position can be

summarised as follows:

rEH
The Group
—2—=£F —ET—_4F
2013 2012
FET THET
HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
RAREE At fair value
RtEA—BZEREE Carrying amount at 1 July 3,697,250 3,510,328
M N ZEHE Exchange differences 3,098 (10,106)
1 N B8 Ko B 12 S Additions — acquisitions and
subsequent expenditure 68,254 27,638
N BEERE Change in fair value 160,364 189,590
EREYE - HER Transfer to property, plant and

B3 equipment — (20,200)

MRAB=1THERHEE Carrying amount at 30 June 3,928,966 3,697,250
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16.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Investment properties of the Group are held under the

following lease terms:

rEH
The Group
—_E—= —_Fq—=
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
UMEBBZ LM : Land in Hong Kong:
R HEIFE &Y Long lease 2,099,285 2,071,340
Fh HAFE 4 Medium-term lease 540,906 481,600
R EBHEINZ £H# : Land outside Hong Kong:
AR Freehold 284,206 249,741
Fh B FE 49 Short-term lease 1,004,569 894,569
3,928,966 3,697,250

REWMEER _ZT—=FA=+H
MBZMEXNS ERMEERMER - F
MBI Y ENE D R BB
RO 2 EM1T AR 2 7 &Henry Butcher
Malaysia Sdn. Bhd.# 7T © JRFJ & & &
K ¥ 2 ARoma Appraisal Limited# 77
HE - EEEEREBERANERRERM
£/ B2EERRME MR Y
FHPEHTHEKR - EEENELRFE
B HE PR o

AEBRFSAHBEERMAEZE
2,918,447,0008 T (Z T — 4 :
2,796,980,000 7T) < & TIRE W E
ERARER - LUERUR TAEE 2 RTT
& (ftsE38) °

Investment properties were revalued on 30 June 2013
by independent and professional qualified valuers. The
revaluation of properties in Hong Kong and Malaysia
were revalued by K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited and Henry
Butcher Malaysia Sdn. Bhd. respectively. The valuation
of properties in Macau and PRC were revalued by
Roma Appraisals Limited. The properties were revalued
on market value basis on their existing development
stage and usage, and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location
and condition. The revaluation gains were recognised in

profit or loss for the year.

Certain investment properties of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value at the reporting date of
HK$2,918,447,000 (2012: HK$2,796,980,000) were
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 38).
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FREEFER
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ERENEEA

&
DA BENHE

HARREESE
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R-ZE--f+H-H

A
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BNEEEIE
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17.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Group
BEIHER
EFEBA B
ZEHE RER
landand BFERHE
building Furniture, ~SREREH
held for own fittings and Motor
use carried office  vehicles and ‘e
at fair value equipment  accessories Total
FTHEL TAETL TEL TETL
HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$"000 HK$’ 000
At1 ]uly 2011
Cost - 9,779 6,930 16,709
Valuation 80,000 = = 80,000
Accumulated depreciation = (7,508) (5,399) (12,907)
Net book amount 80,000 2,271 1,531 83,802
Year ended 30 June 2012
Opening net book amount 80,000 2,271 1,531 83,802
Exchange differences = (12) = (12)
Additions = 412 = 412
Transfer from investment
properties 20,200 - - 20,200
Depreciation (2,106) (438) (1,298) (3,842)
Fair value adjustment 4,036 = = 4,036
Closing net book amount 102,130 2,233 233 104,596
At 30 June 2012
and 1 July 2012
Cost - 10,167 6,930 17,097
Valuation 102,130 - - 102,130
Accumulated depreciation = (7,934) (6,697) (14,631)
Net book amount 102,130 2,233 233 104,596
Year ended 30 June 2013
Opening net book amount 102,130 2,233 233 104,596
Exchange differences - 3 = 3
Additions - 186 325 511
Depreciation (2,043) (400) (161) (2,604)
Disposals - (13) - (13)
Fair value adjustment 11,381 = = 11,381
Closing net book amount 111,468 2,009 397 113,874
At 30 June 2013
Cost - 10,329 7,255 17,584
Valuation 111,468 = = 111,468
Accumulated depreciation = (8,320) (6,858) (15,178)
Net book amount 111,468 2,009 397 113,874
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group’s land and buildings are situated in Hong
Kong and held under long lease. The land and buildings
were revalued on 30 June 2013 by independent and
professional qualified valuer, K.T. Liu Surveyors Limited
on market value basis and by reference to recent market
transactions for similar properties in the same location

and condition.

Other property, plant and equipment are stated at cost

less accumulated depreciation.

If the land and buildings were stated on the historical

cost basis, the amounts would be as follows:

rEH

The Group
—_E—= —=E——4F
2013 2012
FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
DN Cost 74,200 74,200
e E Accumulated depreciation (7,288) (5,804)
BRTE R E Net book amount 66,912 68,396

AEBZTHEREFREERA R @
B8 &111,468,000/ 7T (=T — — 4F :
102,130,000 7)) E A A K E 2 $R1T
ERVEE A (M 5E38) ©

All the Group’s land and buildings with an aggregate
carrying value at the reporting date of HK$111,468,000
(2012: HK$102,130,000) were pledged to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (Note 38).
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18. IBE 18.MORTGAGE LOANS
rEE
The Group
—E—= —E—_4F
2013 2012
FE T FETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RIBE R Mortgage loans 432 466
RERE G Provision for doubtful debts (363) (377)
69 89
R —F R B8 2 & 1D Portion due within one year
Bt ARKE FERRK included under trade and
N EAME FERRA other receivables 22 20
EMBEEZIERD Non-current portion included
EB 1 under non-current assets 47 69

HWEBEEBERAEEERRIEZE TLRE
BEREANT.75% (ZF——4F : 1.75%)
STEANE - RBERERABEE -

The mortgage loans are secured and interest-bearing
at 1.75% (2012: 1.75%) above the Hong Kong
dollar prime rate per annum. The mortgage loans are

repayable by monthly instalments.

EEZRALTERTEBAR - K&
BEEETEEAETAFHEBAZE
B8R AEBERMBREBERZIE
WRIBETTRME 2R HIREEEL - B
BB IR IB B R MR IR R R RE A
MR SRR B SR IR -

Before accepting and approving a new loan to a debtor,
the Group performs credit check to assess the potential
debtor’s credit quality. All of the Group’s mortgage
loan receivables have been reviewed for indicators of
impairment. The impaired mortgage loans receivables
are due from debtors experiencing financial difficulties

that were in default or delinquency of payments.
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18. 1RIBEFK (&) 18.MORTGAGE LOANS (Continued)

19.

BRIBEREWFTIE 2 REEBENMT ¢ Movements on the provision for doubtful debts of

mortgage loan receivables are as follows:

ATEE
The Group
—=E—= —=E——4F
2013 2012
TET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
mntA—HR At 1 July 377 391
JFE UK X I8 Rl 18 3] 2 Impairment loss reversed (14) (14)
WRANB=+H At 30 June 363 377
N-E—=FA=+H  ~XEEEWK As at 30 June 2013, mortgage loans receivables of
RIBE 569,000 T (T — —4F : HK$69,000 (2012: HK$89,000) were neither past due
89,00078 7T) 1) R B EASK 1R BB © Itk 78 nor impaired. These related to a number of diversified
HEANEBAEFRITEEINETEE debtors for whom there was no recent history of default.
ZACER o
HtE@mEE 19.0THER FINANCIAL ASSETS
EmemEERFETIIEE Other financial assets include the following
investments:
rEE
The Group
—2—=£F —ET——F
2013 2012
TFET FET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
HERIHNES Held-to-maturity
B E debt securities,

at amortised cost
BEH Debenture 4,742 4,742
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19. HbeREE (R)

BHEZERELBFEI1.25%E13% (=
T—ZF 1 11.25%E13%) ' BF¥FIR
B R E—RF—AN_T—+
FOANR(ZE——F: _T—0F
—ARZZE—+tFWMA) RHHFTH
KP4 BB1&Ba3 - WHEEEWED B
sk B R (A ©

RZE—=FXA=1TtHHIHEEHNA
1B A5,805,0008 0 (ZFE— 4
5,426,000787T) © RIFRITIRHEL Z EE
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19.OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)
The debenture return interest from 11.25% to 13%
(2012: 11.25% to 13%) per annum payable semi-
annually, and mature in January 2015 and April 2017
(2012: January 2015 and April 2017). The counterparty
have a minimum B1 & Ba3 rating respectively. None of

these assets is past due or impaired.

The fair value of these investments at 30 June 2013 was
approximately HK$5,805,000 (2012: HK$5,426,000)

which had been determined by reference to the price

= quoted by bank.
20fB AT 2= 20.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
NN
The Company
—E-—=F —E——F
2013 2012
TR THET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEEMBM  HKAE  Unlisted shares, at cost 275,284 275,284
HEEE Impairment loss (17,893) (17,893)
257,391 257,391
=N Amounts due from subsidiaries
— R ~ non-current portion K i#note (a) 185,067 183,205
=N Amounts due from subsidiaries
— e H — current portion #tiEnote (b) 1,798,748 1,679,654

R B A & Amounts due to subsidiaries B itnote (b) (535,979) (395,444)

1,705,227 1,724,806
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20.ff B2~ Rl z = (&)

(a)

FERMI B AR R R EERRE
B2 BEEHETITEREER
R+ @A NEE - BEEEKH
BABIRRARZEEERER
e (BB ) 2185,067,000
B (ZZ — =4 : 183,205,000
BIL) c RBMER  BEREEFMNEXE
45%(=ZF—_F 1 45%) ° 5KIA
ZEEEBEHEEARBEMES °

fE W FE A5 BT BB R B 3R IE D &
HHERABEREREE  HAF
REERDANRB(EMBRER)
1,341,311,0008 T (=T — =
% :1,290,101,000% 7t) &
402,802,000 T (ZF — £ :
260,405,000%7T) * EEEH D 5!
#3442,008,0008 7L (=T — =4 :
389,553,000/ ) kE(ZF—=
F E) - FHEXREXRD A
15,429,000 T (ZE——_F : &
$133,177,0008 T (ZF— =% :
135,038,000/ L) - ¥ E A -
EBRFREEB0.2%E4.5% (ZF
—Z%F 1 0.2%F4.5%) c KBZE
HEREALBERES -
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20.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(@)

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured
and repayable on demand, but repayment is
not expected to be within twelve months from
the reporting date. Included in the amounts due
from subsidiaries are amounts (net of provision)
totalling HK$185,067,000 (2012: HK$183,205,000)
which are interest-bearing at floating rates. At the
reporting date, the effective interest rate is 4.5%
(2012: 4.5%) per annum. The carrying amounts of

the amounts due approximate their fair values.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured and repayable on demand including
(net of provision) HK$1,341,311,000 (2012:
HK$1,290,101,000) and HK$402,802,000
(2012: HK$260,405,000) respectively which are
interest-free. Amount totalling HK$442,008,000
(2012: HK$389,553,000) and Nil (2012: Nil)
respectively which are interest-bearing at fixed
rate. Amount totalling HK$15,429,000 (2012: Nil)
and HK$133,177,000 (2012: HK$135,038,000)
respectively which are interest-bearing at floating
rate. At the reporting date, the effective interest rate
of these amounts range from 0.2% to 4.5% (2012:
0.2% to 4.5%) per annum. The carrying amounts of

the amounts due approximate their fair values.
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20.ffB AR 2R (&)
(c) RZE—=%FA=+H' ' £EHK

BRARZERMT
EMALLE
REHE
Place of
MELR incorporation or
Name registration/operation
Ace Cosmos Finance RERUES

Limited British Virgin Islands (“BVI")
AREEARAH) BR
Bongi Development Limited Hong Kong
FENFERARAAF R
Cheuk Nang Property Hong Kong

Management Company Limited
BXHERERREBERAA R
Dun Man Secretarial and Hong Kong

Management Services Limited
BARERRAF R
Golden Scheme Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong
RHREERAH &b
Green View Investment Limited Hong Kong
BEEXARAH A
Lo & Son Land Investment Hong Kong

Company Limited
BEEXARAF R
Lucky Faith Properties Limited Hong Kong
Martego Sdn Bhd * SRES

Malaysia
BEERBRAA &b
New Grow Development Limited Hong Kong
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20.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June

2013 are as follows:

BRIREER/
ERRAR
Particulars of
issued ordinary
share capital/
registered capital

10,000 B R 15%E T
10,000 US$1 shares

URERIET
2 HK$1 shares

UrERVET
2 HK$1 shares

W ER10E T
2 HK$10 shares

WRERIET
2 HK$1 shares

WrERVET
2 HK$1 shares

3,008 &R 100 T
3,000 HK$100 shares

WRERIET
2 HK$1 shares

5,000,000
BRIME R
5,000,000 RMT1 shares

rERVET
2 HK$1 shares

BRZRELH
Proportion of
ownership interest

B
Directly

72.42%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

3
Indirectly

100%

100%

IERE

Principal activities

RERK

Investment holding

WEEE
Property trading

NEER
Property management
services

WERERRE
Provision of secretarial
and management

services

WERE

Property investment

RS HER A RER

Mortgage lending,
property investment
and development

HERARER
Property investment
and development

WERE

Property investment

WERERER
Property investment
and development

HWERE

Property investment
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20fB AT 2= (&)
RZZT—=F"A=1+8 ' EZH

(c)

BRrRzERWT - (&)

WELF

EMRIEE

"EHE
Place of

incorporation or

Name registration/operation

Power Tripod Limited

FREERBRAA

Power Wide Development Limited

REREARARS

Success Well Investment Limited”

BREMNBRAR
Top Regent (Asia) Limited

BAERBRAA)

Yorkshon Development Limited®

AREHERE (N ERAF

EREHEAE (R BROF"

A
Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

R
Hong Kong

Hong Kong

B
Hong Kong

il
PRC

i
PRC

P MBARZKRECEMTRITIE
RE|ETHAEBELRERZ 57

AR (FFE38) -

#  RAPEMERRE (FE) SFTENER

FERARAREER -

EERREEATEAEE 2 XE
FEENTEZMBARCSHEAN L
RA o LHNE BRI HE B
ANRIZHBHEEER/BRITE -
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20.INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c) Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June

2013 are as follows: (Continued)

BRIRAER/
B ES

Particulars of

issued ordinary BB ZRELA
share capital/ Proportion of TEEH
registered capital  ownership interest Principal activities
B A&
Directly  Indirectly
10,0008 Z 1B - 100% WERRREE
10,000 HKS1 shares Property development
and trading
WRBEIET  100% - HERERRRHE
2 HKS$1 shares Property investment and
investment holding
BRI - 100% WERE
2 HKS$1 shares Property investment
10088 K1 - 71.69%  BERERER
100 HK$1 shares Property investment
and development
WBFHEIET - 100% HERARER
2 HK$1 shares Property investment
and development
78,000,000% 7T - 100% WERR
US$78,000,000 Property development
494,000,000\ K% - 100% WEREREER
RMB494,000,000 Property development
and trading

# Shares of these subsidiaries have been pledged to
banks as security for bank loan facilities granted to
the Group (Note 38).

## Companies not audited by Grant Thornton Hong
Kong Limited.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.
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21. HtwERBEE 21.

2MES Club debenture

SARMEFRKRAER R RERIET
BE o

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSET
&%
The Group
—_=E—= —=E——4F
2013 2012
FTET THET
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
950 950

Club debenture is stated at cost less accumulated

impairment losses.

22.1=EYE 22.PROPERTIES FOR SALE
AEE
The Group
—E—=F —EFE—=F
2013 2012
TERT THETT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ERPYE Properties under development 1,671,322 1,284,535
EER % Completed properties 374,927 372,298
2,046,249 1,656,833

4 B & 40,882,000 T (T ——
£ : 19,006,000/ ) R ER P W%
o BRERAB1.210%E7.995% (=
T — " 4F : 1.598%%2.827%) °

FEYEMBIREE5965,897,0008 7T
(ZZ— =4 : 306,540,000/ 0) B &
T IRIT - BRI TAREE 2 RITR
& (MI7E38) °

RIB—Z=ZFR-F—-"FR A=+
H - FAAERETYERFERSE BERE
BT ABAFAERREE -

Total borrowing costs capitalised for the year included
in properties under development amounted to
HK$40,882,000 (2012: HK$19,006,000) with effective
capitalisation rate of 1.210% to 7.995% (2012: 1.598%
to 2.827%) per annum.

Properties for sale with carrying value of
HK$965,897,000 (2012: HK$306,540,000) have been
pledged to secure banking facilities granted to the
Group (Note 38).

As at 30 June 2013 and 2012, all properties under
development are expected to be completed and sold
more than twelve months after the reporting date.
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23. B AREBETFTAEBEZNEEE 23.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

= THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEE
The Group
—EBE—=fF B
2013 2012
FET T
HK$’ 000 HK$"000

BAAREBETT AEZEM  Financial assets at fair value

TREE through profit or loss
FIEER Held for trading

MREE TTREES Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 48,506 78,874
ETFAEEMIRARBAIABENS Certain financial assets at fair value through profit
BEENRE B 42REEA33,824,000 or loss of the Group with an aggregate carrying
BT (ZE——%:69,429,000/87T) 2 value at the reporting date of HK$33,824,000 (2012:
FILIRERIT 0 EER T AER ZET HK$69,429,000) were pledged to secure banking
& (MtEE38) facilities granted to the Group (Note 38).
REBHNE FTHERENEESTETAY The fair value of the Group’s investments in listed
N BEDEEN 4. 702 o securities and securities derivative have been measured

as described in Note 34.7.
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24.FENEBESESEEMEIWRES 24.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

AEE v NN
The Group The Company
—E—= —E—-F =ZZ=E-—= —_EF—=
2013 2012 2013 2012
FET FHET FET FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
FEWE ZRFA Trade receivables
wE=4 From third parties 905 624 - =
HiEWBRF  Other receivables
TE 5XIE K& & Prepayments and deposits 4,171 3,859 - -
HE M EUWARFK  Other receivables 5,437 4,142 1 1
9,608 8,001 1 1
10,513 8,625 1 1
NEBZEWKESEZRBERAS WA The trade receivables of the Group represent rental and
RYEEIBILA « HESIRFER] © N management fee in arrears. Before accepting any new
EEIETEERAEUTEIFETERE 2= customers, the Group performs credit check to assess
BEEE HEZTHNEZS - TEKRE the potential customer’s credit quality and tenants are
P8 O RN R ER o required to pay deposits. All invoices are due upon

presentation.
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24. FE W E 5 AR 7 R H th P& U BR =X

(&)
BEGRRBMEKE S R AR RK
ZRAREEBRHLREELEEADA -
AeH BHARE -

REREXERRY  BRRESERZ
FRieDMTAAT -

0-30K 0-30 days
31-60K 31-60 days
61-90K 61-90 days
FBiEBI0R Over 90 days

A B S — (EIRE B & AR R
{6170 % 52 8 25 o 2 75 5 L 065 1R
BiEtRE c E-F-SER-F— =4
AA=TEIEMEEE - LERBEE
B T 2 M R OB LS 0 -
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24. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

The directors of the Group considered that the fair
values of trade and other receivables are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because these

amounts have short maturity periods on their inception.

Based on the debit note or invoice dates, the ageing

analysis of the trade receivables is as follows:

rEH

The Group
—=F=—= —E—_4F
2013 2012
FTERT THETT
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
725 375
120 105
29 9
31 135
905 624

At each reporting date the Group reviews receivables
for evidence of impairment on both an individual and
collective basis. No impairment has been recognised on
receivables through the provision account for the two
years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012.
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24. B B 5 AR 5 & H th FE U AR =X

(#%&)

EEEERAEEZEBRKERZEBA
AR [E 18 /905,000 T (ZF — % -
624,0008 7T) e E B EBHEBRE
BR B BE - LEWARRERES AER
SEERINEELE  BEBEREE

R ARE R KA A2 8@ - F bk
BRERELRERE - REESMNZ
BEHN > NEEBU SRR B E
(CIEER LI

RiREH - B REE M ER 2 BRI EE
(=T ——F : #\&) o

5. MITEERREE
B EMER Pledged deposits

RITHTF Cash at bank
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24.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

25.

(Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are
debtors with a carrying amount of HK$905,000 (2012:
HK$624,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not been provided.
These receivables are related to a number of diversified
debtors that has a good track record of credit with
the Group. Based on past credit history, management
believe that no impairment allowance is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances
are still considered to be fully recoverable. Except for
deposits received from tenants, the Group does not hold

any other collateral over these balances.

No amounts in relation to other receivables were past

due at the reporting date (2012: Nil).

BANK BALANCES AND CASH
AEE AR
The Group The Company
—E—=F —E——-F =ZEBE—-=fF =—ZZT—=F
2013 2012 2013 2012
FERT TETT FET TETT
HK$’ 000 HK$"000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
9,608 6,482 - -
68,579 199,039 100 87
78,187

205,521 100 87
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26 ENEBESEFRREMENEEI 26.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

rEHE AT
The Group The Company
=== —E-——F ZE—= —E—F
2013 2012 2013 2012
FTET THETT FTET THET
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
ETESERMR Trade payables
NTE=F To third parties 4,564 429 — =
HihE(TBRFX  Other payables
HEEZe Tenant deposit 10,504 10,805 = =
H b JE - BR 5 & Other payable and
FEST & accruals 15,291 15,044 653 568
25,795 25,849 653 568
30,359 26,278 653 568
AR GEH  Hit - BNESLE All amounts are short term and hence the carrying
ER EHERRAB/EHEAAEE values of trade and other payables are considered to be

ZEBMEE - a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
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26.

27.

B E R R H it B BRX
(#%&)

BEBRZERH  BNEIERZERERD
MaT -

0-30X% 0-30 days
31-60K 31-60 days
61-90K 61-90 days
HBEI0K Over 90 days
TTEERMIA

REFBRAANEEREL - URERE
BREEB AR - FIRIEHEOE
BHWRARKEH AN —3n - B
mARIRIBE A g 5T 2RI ZE 3955 F BRI+
EERBE - BE-_T—=F/, A=+
B KR{EE%ES5A100,000,000
B ARBERAETIFE  BEMELY
0.898% N ¥ B H E BB B RITRERF
BEEFEHA12MEA -

I S 485 045 40 60 23 Ao {0 (8L 0 1 5 A B
BRSHELNZIHARAEE
Rl 2 2% o

26.

27.
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TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
(Continued)
Based on the invoice dates, the ageing analysis of the

trade payables as of the reporting date is as follows:

AEE

The Group
—E—=F —ET—F
2013 2012
FET T
HK$’ 000 HK$"000
3,980 32
- 55
- 55
584 287
4,564 429

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

The Group uses interest rate swap contracts to
mitigate floating interest rate exposure from long
term borrowings. The interest rate swap contracts are
considered by management to be part of economic
hedge arrangements but have not been formally
reviewed as hedges regularly in accordance with
HKAS 39. As at 30 June 2013, the outstanding notional
amount was approximately HK$100,000,000, contract
period of 1 year at a hedge period of 12 months with
fixed rate approximately 0.898% and floating rate at
HIBOR.

The fair values of the interest rate swap contracts are
estimated based on the discounted cash flows between

the contract floating rate and the contract fixed rate.
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28. B+t —RBAE LT FEIERREK

29.

FRIE

ZAR RS EER - R B N AIBER EOE
oo EEmEEQABERES -

BEERE
BERZEEEIFTOT -

RBEE

RITERN —FAEH
Z #B A7

RITERN —F1R2H
B Al BRANEEE

fiERax
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28.AMOUNTS DUE TO A RELATED
COMPANY/NON-CONTROLLING

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand. The carrying amounts of the

29.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

The analysis of the carrying amount of borrowing is as

follows:

Current liabilities
Portion of loans from bank due

for repayment within one year
Portion of loans from banks due

for repayment after one year which

contain a repayable on demand clause

Portion of loans from banks due

for repayment after one year

REE
The Group

—E—=F
2013
TET
HK$’ 000

308,512

395,466

703,978

811,468

1,515,446

—EB—_fF
2012
FA&T
HK$"000

732,605

125,750

858,355

412,024

1,270,379
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29. B EBE (&) 29.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS
(Continued)
RITERZBHABWOT - The maturity of the above bank borrowings is as
follows:
TEE
The Group
—=E—=F —ET——F
2013 2012
FE T FA&T
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
BN R —F A Within one year or on demand 308,512 732,605

i —FENTZHRME  More than one year but not more

than two years 209,852 157,000
BBMFEETZARAST  More than two years but not
more than five years 997,082 380,774
1,515,446 1,270,379
FIEEBERESYHNEEEER  f1TE All borrowings are interest-bearing at floating rates. The
RREERZERFE A2.7889% (— effective interest rate of the bank loans at the reporting
T —4F 1 1.9%) o date is 2.7889% (2012: 1.9%).
BEEEBAETNABEAEREESNTE The interest-bearing bank borrowings, including
BB - DADEESNAR AN B EE - S8 AT the term loans repayable on demand, are carried at
A OB EEERTAEEE —F1855 amortised cost. None of the portion of term loans due
EBRATEEERSHIEHRDE D for repayment after one year which contain a repayment
WA—TERBERE - on demand clause and that is classified as a current

liability is expected to be settled within one year.
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FBRTERTNEVMBEHRE —RE
KRG 2 AGhE - HASEIERIEREFH
ARG GRERNGER - BF - & T
AEBzEHMEFRENECEREHRTE
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BHREZEREE -

AEBECTHERERERERE BB
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29.INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

(Continued)

All of the banking facilities are subject to the fulfillment
of covenants that are commonly found in lending
arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
was to breach the covenants the drawn down facilities
would become repayable on demand. In addition,
certain of the Group’s term loan agreements contain
clauses which give the lender the right at its sole
discretion to demand immediate repayment at any
time irrespective of whether the Group has met the

scheduled repayment obligations.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with these
covenants, is up to date with the scheduled repayments
of the term loans and does not consider it probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to demand
repayment for so long as the Group continues to meet
these requirements. Further details of the Group’s
management of liquidity risk are set out in Note 34.3.
As at 30 June 2013, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities had been breached (2012: Nil).

177



CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR Annual Report 2013 F3k

178 AT RME

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

30. IE #E B 18 30.DEFERRED TAXATION
EIEFR BB ERITTEREEE Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
FEMREI16.5%(ZF—ZF : 16.5%) differences under the liability method using a principal
SEARFHE o taxation rate of 16.5% (2012: 16.5%).
FAERLEHREEBEZEEHNAT : The movement during the year in the deferred tax

liabilities is as follows:

AEHE
The Group

—E—=F —ET—F

2013 2012

FTET FET

HK$’ 000 HK$" 000

R+ A—H At 1 July 27,918 21,969

E N Z %8 Exchange differences (74) =

EHEEATPER Recognised in profit or loss (20,364) 5,949
EEEMEEKES Recognised in other comprehensive

R income (3,043) _

RRNA=

+B At 30 June 4,437 27,918
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30. EE B IR (7))
FRNEEHEAERAE (ERRBE

BRI ESED) AT ¢
EEREEE
—E——%+H—H
BEEEDZTER

RZE—Z—FXA=1+THRK
—E-—_F+tHA—H
MEH ZR

EEEaP®ER
EEHEMEE KRS #ER

R-ZZBE—Z=ZF<HA=+H

30.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =& () BRAH
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(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 July 2011

Recognised in profit or loss

At 30 June 2012 and

1 July 2012
Exchange differences
Recognised in profit or loss
Recognised in other

comprehensive income

At 30 June 2013

EERERE
BAL#R
BFEM

Revaluation of

hni
BIRITE

land and Accelerated
building held tax B
for own use depreciation Total
TRET TAET TAET
HK$" 000 HK$" 000 HK$" 000
- 12,672 12,672
- 426 426
- 13,098 13,098
- 74 74
- 6,412 6,412
3,043 = 3,043
3,043 19,584 22,627
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30.EER1E (&) 30.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)
ELEBEEE Deferred tax assets

REEE

Tax losses

TATT

HK$’ 000

RZZE——F+EH—H At 1 July 2011 (34,641)

BEEZEPER Recognised in profit or loss (6,375)
RZZE-——_FXA=+HK At 30 June 2012 and 1 July 2012

—E——F+H—H (41,016)

EEBRPER Recognised in profit or loss 13,952

R=-ZT—=%xXA=+H At 30 June 2013 (27,064)

BB R E R ERO T - The amounts recognised in the statement of financial

position are as follows:
AEH
The Group

—_E—=HF —E——4F

2013 2012

FET TATT

HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000

EETIIEE E Deferred tax assets (27,064) (41,016)

B IBEE Deferred tax liabilities 22,627 13,098

BRI KX T R Net deferred tax assets recognised
B IR AE L TE & R R in the statement of financial position (4,437) 27,918
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30 IEEBH (5])
RWERBIEEER
R P B R TR B R 2R O0E R 2R - REE
R R IE B 18 43174,985,00075 7T
—T——4:52,937,000/87C) ° 1RIE
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30.DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

Unrecognised tax losses

The Group has unrecognised tax losses of
HK$174,985,000 (2012: HK$52,937,000) due to

unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses

WD - ZETIEEGE I & T H do not expire under current tax legislation.
A o
31. IR &K 31.SHARE CAPITAL
EERE ERTRMRRE
Authorised Issued and fully paid
Hit R&%A TR RG%E T
Notes Number of shares HKS'000  Number of shares HK$ 000
gR0.1ET BB R Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
R-F-—Ft+A-A At July 2011 10,000,000,000 1000000 402306393 40,231
RURRBEEMETRA  lssue of shares pursuant to scrip
dividend scheme 1() - = 13,479,793 1348
RASAREEMETRG  lssue of shares by exercise of warrants 2 = = 429,833 463
RZ2-"FRA=ZTAR  At30June 2012 and
“E--®+A-H 1July 2012 10,000,000,000 1,000,000 420,416,019 42,042
ERRBHEMEARA  Issue of shares pursuant to scrip
dividend scheme 1(b) S = 10,634,277 1,063
RAOGAREEMETRG  Issue of shares by exercise of warrants 2 - = 16,109,627 1,611
RZE-ZEXA=1H At 30 June 2013 1,000,000 44,716

10,000,000,000 447,159,923
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31. HXZIK (mﬁ)
Hfet -

1. HMRKEEE

—ET——F+ZA+hBEZ
——FRAAZ=H " ARQRARE
RZE——FNAZ+ZHRZ=
T ——_F_A-_F+EtHRIHEH
R BETE - 2B LA2.037 T K&
2.40/8 LB TT M5 Bl B E(EO.1
BITHRR D - 7,187,463 &
6,292,330 FH T ——F K
B —_ZE——FHHRKRER
BB B Z K -

(@)

w%

by RZE—=—F+—A=+HEKZ=
T—=—FMA=-_+=H KA 7

BEAR-_ZE——FLA=-1+H
E—E—Z=F_A=-_++tB2RMH
B LARR X B 5T 8 - 9 Bl LA2.907%

TCRA420BTTETM D ST RE
H0.17% T iR 1D+ 2£6,288,074
f% K24,346 203H§m TH=ZT—=
FREBER T —=FHHK
BREEDBRARE ZME -

2. AARBAR
@ R=F-FF+-A—8 %2
ABBRERIESHE =R

a2 —mHRREE ([=
T-——F+ZRARB\EE]D -
ﬂ—: TZFE+ZA+=H" K
A A% 1718,518,88610 —F — —
¢+ Hwk%ho_%ffi
+:H u/uHXﬁEk; E’]%‘IE/\—J—
T-ETF+ZA+=H0=E
——&+=ZA+= HMWﬁuﬁ
f%iHX'I 80/%7_[1(—_|-DJ_J§k> uuggﬂX
o F N - FE1TBE4,554,08110
C:§4~7E:137mum5@):
T——F+ - ARBEER
%% 174,554,081 % <_%‘<**¢ :
13,798,0850% ) & A%0.1% T 2 %1
A% > 82T~ 2166,720(0 —ZF ——4F
+:)EJ uuHQ*gL E‘E/\_i——ﬁ
+ZAt+=BE8ER -

Notes:
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31.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

1. Scrip dividend scheme

(a)

On 19 December 2011 and 3 May 2012, the
Company issued and allotted a total of 7,187,463
ordinary shares and 6,292,330 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$2.30 and
HK$2.40 respectively to shareholders who elected
to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for
the 2011 final dividend and 2012 interim dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme announced
by the Company on 22 September 2011 and 27
February 2012.

On 20 December 2012 and 23 April 2013, the
Company issued and allotted a total of 6,288,074
ordinary shares and 4,346,203 ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the Company at HK$2.90 and
HK$4.20 respectively to shareholders who elected
to receive shares in the Company in lieu of cash for
the 2012 final dividend and 2013 interim dividend
pursuant to the script dividend scheme announced
by the Company on 26 September 2012 and 27
February 2013.

2. Bonus warrants

(a)

On 1 December 2010, the Company passed a
resolution to approve the issue of one bonus warrant
for every twenty existing shares of the Company held
by the shareholders (“2011 December Warrants”).
On 13 December 2010, the Company issued
18,518,886 units of 2011 December Warrants. The
holders of 2011 December Warrants are entitled to
subscribed at any time during 13 December 2010
to 13 December 2011 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$1.80
per share (subject to adjustment). During the year
ended 30 June 2012, 4,554,081 (2011: 13,798,085)
new shares of HK$0.10 each per share were issued
upon the exercise of 4,554,081 (2011: 13,798,085)
units of 2011 December Warrants. The remaining
166,720 units of 2011 December Warrants were
expired on 13 December 2011.
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31.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

2. Bonus warrants (Continued)

(b)

With reference to the Circular issued on 20 March
2012, and the announcement on 27 February 2012,
the Company proposed of one bonus warrant for
every twenty five existing shares of the Company
held by the shareholders (“2013 April Warrants”).
On 20 April 2012, the Company issued 16,561,917
units of 2013 April Warrants. The holders of 2013
April Warrants are entitled to subscribed at any time
during 20 April 2012 to 20 April 2013 for fully paid
shares of the Company at an initial subscription
price of HK$2.10 per share (subject to adjustment).
During the year, 16,109,627 (2012: 75,752) new
shares of HK$0.10 each per share were issued upon
the exercise of 16,109,627 (2012: 75,752) units of
2012 April Warrants. The remaining 376,538 units of
2013 April Warrants were expired on 20 April 2013.

With reference to the Circular issued on 5 June
2013, and the announcement on 15 May 2013, the
Company proposed of one bonus warrant for every
fifty existing shares of the Company held by the
shareholders (“2014 June Warrants”). On 24 June
2013, the Company issued 8,943,198 units of 2014
June Warrants. The holders of 2014 June Warrants
are entitled to subscribed at any time during 24 June
2013 to 24 June 2014 for fully paid shares of the
Company at an initial subscription price of HK$4.00
per share (subject to adjustment). During the year,
none of the 2014 June Warrants were exercised.
As at 30 June 2013, 8,943,198 units of 2014 June
Warrants remained outstanding.

All shares issued as mentioned in Note 1 to Note 2
above rank pari passu with the existing shares of the
Company in all respects.

None of the Company’s subsidiaries purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.
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32. G 1&
PN

R-ZE——F+A—H

ERERER-Z——F

REBE

EfEREN-Z—ZF

R R
BB

REABR S5 3

TR R IEE
BIRNER

BREAEANR S

AEEBR

FEEREREAR

RZE——F A=+1H

ERERER-Z—-F

REBE

EREREN-Z—=F

PHRE
Bildn
REABR S 3
TR R
BREAANRS
TEEER

FEEXHKEAR

R=FE-=Z5XA=1H

32.RESERVES

Balance at 1 July 2011

2011 final dividend
approved and paid

2012 interim dividend
approved and paid

Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip dividend

scheme

By exercise of warrants
Share issue expenses

Transactions with owners
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Balance at 30 June 2012

2012 final dividend approved

and paid
2013 interim dividend
approved and paid
Issue of share capital:
Pursuant to scrip dividend
scheme
By exercise of warrants

Transactions with owners
Loss for the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Annual Report 2013 £33

The Company
RERE BIRSREE REBF nE
Share Special Retained Total
premium  capital reserve profits reserves
TET THET TEL TET
HK$’000 HK$' 000 HK$'000 HK$’000
1,191,474 320,065 141,803 1,653,342
- - (18,237) (18,237)
- - (16,562) (16,562)
30,285 - - 30,285
7,893 = = 7,893
(40) = = (40)
38,138 — (34,799) 3,339
- - (17,656) (17,656)
- - (17,656) (17,656)
1,229,612 320,065 89,348 1,639,025
- - (19,551) (19,551)
- - (19,910) (19,910)
35,426 = = 35,426
32,219 = = 32,219
67,645 - (39,461) 28,184
- = (35,789) (35,789)
- = (35,789) (35,789)
1,297,257 320,065 14,098 1,631,420

Balance at 30 June 2013
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32.RESERVES (Continued)

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

The exchange reserve for the Group has been set up
and will be dealt with according to the accounting

policy set out in Note 2.4 to the financial statements.

Special capital reserve arose from reduction in issued
share capital on 26 March 2001 with Court approval on
24 April 2001.

Pursuant to the undertakings given to the Court, the
credit amount arising from capital reduction has been
credited to a special capital reserve in the books of
account of the Company. So long as there shall remain
any debt or claim against the Company outstanding
at the date when the reduction of capital took effect
which, if such date were the date of the commencement
of the winding up of the Company, would have been
admissible in proof against the Company and the
person entitled to the benefit thereof shall not have
agreed otherwise, such reserve (i) would not be treated
as realised profit; and (ii) for so long as the Company
shall remain a listed company (as defined in the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance); would be treated as an
undistributable reserve of the Company for the purposes
of Section 79C of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
or any statutory re-enactment or modification thereof,
provided that the amount standing to the credit of the
special capital reserve may be reduced by the aggregate
of any increase in the issued share capital or in the
share premium account of the Company resulting from
an issue of shares for cash or other new consideration
or upon a capitalisation of distributable reserves after

the reduction took effect.
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33.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions/information disclosed

elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements,

during the year, the Group had the following material

transactions with connected and related parties:

Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits paid to key management
personnel, including amounts paid to
the Company’s directors as disclosed
in Note 15

Interest paid to Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil

Architect and other professional service
fees paid to
Cecil Chao & Associates Limited (“CCAL")
Cecil Chao Design (Macau) Limited
(“CCA Macau”)

Rental income received from
CCAL

Commission paid to Szehope Securities

Company Limited

Rental charge paid to Resource

Development Limited

39
The Group
—E-=F —E-—-F
2013 2012
it THER FAT
Note HK$’000 HK$’ 000
11,414 9,913
(a) 989 1,281
(b)
21,626 3,000
- 12,498
(c)
281 438
(d) 129 124
(e) - 2,280
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33.EEFEAEALTZE ARG (&) 33.SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

#paz

(a)

1 1 A AN £ [ R 4 A I A
EEERBEHZEN  RRITRAZER
BEM3%stEAB(ZE—Z=ZF £ =
T——F— A —HAAMRBETRE
BERFEI 8%tEZFE M=
E——F-A - BERAMRRITAE
FEIMI%AEZFE) - RZF—=
FARA=Z+TH BttEEILHETAE
® ~ #.3%/529,208,000/8 T (—Z T ——
F : 44,278,000 7T) - B E+E
RIGERAEEEELBRER
REBMEEEREN AL -

CCALKCCA MacaufkIEE 5] & 2 1§
R BEEREMBBERE T AER -
it 8+ ACCALNCCA MacauZ B
w=EAA

KIBETRTEZGR  ATYWEDHE
FCCALIEMRZEZ A -

HitZE T Rt EESFERARIZE
HEBA °

HtBELREEGR AR ZERE
BA-HHEHH  FREEZGNES
XHTREFRDA -

Note:

(a)

Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil has provided unsecured
advances, which is repayable on demand, to the Group
at HIBOR rate plus 3% per annum (2012: 1.8% above
the Hong Kong dollar prime rate per annum before 1
January 2012 and HIBOR rate plus 3% per annum after
1 January 2012). At 30 June 2013, the advances from
Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil amounted to HK$29,208,000
(2012: HK$44,278,000). Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil has
confirmed that he will not request repayment of these

advances until such time as the Group is in a position to

repay.

CCAL and CCA Macau rendered architectural and related
services to the Group on terms agreed between both
parties. Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner
of CCAL and CCA Macau.

Certain properties were leased to CCAL as office premises

on terms mutually agreed between both parties.

Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of

Szehope Securities Company Limited.

Dr. Chao Sze-Tsung Cecil is the beneficial owner of
Resource Development Limited. The rental agreement
was expired and no rental expense was paid to Resource

Development Limited during the year.

187



188

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =gk (£8) HIRAR

BA %5 8 R P 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

BER
AEBE-—REBEBEERRER
PrEETRTATRYSRER &R
BT SRR (BFEINERR - F
TR NMEMERRR)  FEERRK
MEEZREE -

ERME T A ZARBRERNEBE &
EFEREREFIINT - EEEETER
ESfE UL B A TEOR B B R BE R IR A
BRI HETT ©

Annual Report 2013 £33

4. cRmEKREERAABEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course of
operations and in its investment activities. The financial
risks include market risk (including foreign currency
risk, interest risk and other price risk), credit risk and

liquidity risk.

The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are

implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Md.cEREERAAEBEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
R (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
M1 eREERABEER 34.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
UTEzemEERTRBEIN
FREEZINEMBARRRS -

The carrying amounts presented in the statements
of financial positions relate to the following

categories of financial assets and financial

liabilities:
r58 N
The Group The Company
—E2-Z=F “T-CF —g-=% 3
2013 2012 2013 2012
TER TET TiER TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000
cREE Financial assets
EFREREE : Loans and receivables:
BRBER Mortgage loan 47 69 = -
85 REMERER Trade and other receivables 8,739 8,439 1 1
B AR R Amounts due from subsidiaries = = 1,983,815 1,962,859
ROEREARE Bank balances and cash 78,187 205,521 100 87
BRARBEFARRL Financial assets at fair value
TREE: through profit or loss:
FIEEEMN LM% Listed equity securities held for trading 48,506 78,874 - -
BHEERIENERE Held-to-maturity investments:
HEtemEE Other financial assets 5,692 5,692 - =
141,171 298,595 1,983,916 1,962,947
SRARE Financial liabilities
REEEREEL Financial liabilities measured at
ERERE: amortised cost:
5 REMERNEN Trade and other payables 29,594 25,636 653 568
ERERRRR A Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 239,990 - -
ERBEARE Amounts due to a related company 7 - - -
BB ARTE Amounts due to subsidiaries = = 535,979 395,444
BRRRE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,515,446 1,270,379 = =
RTEX Bank overdrafts 11,990 222 = =
BEEBN Advances from a director 29,208 44278 29,208 44278
BRABEFARR Financial liabilities at fair value
MERARE: through profit or loss:
fTEemIA Derivative financial instruments 545 = = =
1,826,780 1,580,505 565,840 440,290
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B (&)

342 EERK
EERRIIEERIANSES —4
FAREETTEM T A EMIERER
AEERZHBE LEAIELR - A&EE
EARRRHEBEERREERBE
ERERITEFELRSEES RHE

P

m

T

KRR - T2REHEF,P S
WA e

RITEFEMNASBEFREESE
B zeREBEmARERAR
AR EERRETEX -

RKEBRFPZESEBA  EEREER
BUHMEEERRREEREFEER
@ o AFAAEBRORIE TR ER
B MEAKERE-—F/EAR
FHE R 5 R Rz AT UK [B] 5 58 DA
R TR B & A T MR EEE
I

AREENARREESEEST ZE
ERE  SAZEERBRIERS
EeMEBEECKRAE  ~AREHE
REEMEMERSAEEREE
[RL B e
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
34.2 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group.
The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from the bank balances and cash
and trade and other receivables, primarily rents

receivable from tenants.

Bank balances and cash are normally placed at
financial institutions that have sound credit rating
and the Group and the Company considers the

credit risk to be insignificant.

For rent receivables from tenants, management
has a credit policy in place and the exposure to
credit risk is monitored on an on-going basis.
Rental deposits are required from tenants prior
to the commencement of leases. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made

for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group and the Company have no significant
concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and tenants.
Hence, the maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amounts of each class
of financial assets. The Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group to

credit risk.
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M. cmEREERAABEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

BER (&)

34.2

34.3

&R (%)
AEBBHFRERBEEBEER
BREBRK  IR/EERRBRAE
ERENEERRNIEE -

RBE TR

BRI IE AR R B RBEEBITH
FHEABNEENER - AEEE
HRHERRERRE BBETRH
BEEALREHEERSRENEE
AREBEARNRERERRABATA
HenBESHBE  MaslEs—4%
EERBZRESREREN S B
o WERAKE R AR FER R
MR REELRTRSRHEE LEE
NEIZEHEE  UREeRHAKK

AEEEBFECREERABE
TR IRF/CEREERDE

T Ak -

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.2

34.3

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit and investment policies have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are
considered to have been effective in limiting the

Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group is
exposed to liquidity risk in respect of settlement of
its payables and financing obligations, and also in
respect of its cash flow management. The Group’s
and the Company’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with lending covenants by
reviewing each operating entity’s cash flow
forecast, to ensure that the Group and the Company
maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions and related parties to meet its liquidity

requirements in the short and longer term.

The liquidity policies have been followed by the
Group since prior years and are considered to have

been effective in managing liquidity risks.
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
34.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

Analysed below is the Group’s and the Company’s
remaining contractual maturities for its financial
liabilities as at 30 June 2013 and 2012, based
on undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if
floating, based on rates current at the reporting
date). When the creditor has a choice of when the
liability is settled, the liability is included on the
basis of the earliest date on when the Group and
the Company can be required to pay. Where the
settlement of the liability is in instalments, each
instalment is allocated to the earliest period in

which the Group and the Company is committed to

pay.

Specifically, for term loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis
shows the cash outflow based on the earliest period
in which the entity can be required to pay, that is
if the lenders were to invoke their unconditional
rights to call the loans with immediate effect. The
maturity analysis for other bank borrowings is

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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M. eRmEREER AAEBEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
HE (8E) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

M3 RBESRER (&) 34.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

rE The Group
HEAH-RERRER
Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows
R-FR3 SR-F SRmE  AERRE
PREX EIRmE BIREE il £
REE Within -~ Morethan  More than Total
Carrying ~ 1yearoron 1 year but less 2 years but less  undiscounted
amount demand  than 2 years  than 5 years cash outflows
ThEL TR THT TAL ThEL
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$'000 HK$’ 000
RZB-ZEXAZTH  At30June 2013
FTESRER Non-derivative financial liabilities
BAREMEN R Trade and other payables 29,594 29,594 - - 29,594
ERFZRRREHN Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 239,990 = = 239,990
ENBERARRE Amounts due to a related company 7 7 - - 7
BEEMZ) Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) 1,515,446 758,790 213,729 638,401 1,610,920
RTEX Bank overdrafts 11,990 11,990 = = 11,990
EET Advances from a director 29,208 938 30,146 = 31,084
fTEeMEE Derivative financial liabilities
NERHEH Interest rate swap contract 545 545 - - 545
1,826,780 1,041,854 243 875 638,401 1,924,130
RZB-Z#XA=+H  At30June 2012
FTESHEE Non-derivative financial liahilities
BRREMENERH Trade and other payables 25,636 25,636 = = 25,636
R FEERBEREHR Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders 239,990 239,990 - - 239,990
RRREWL) Interest-bearing borrowings (Note) 1,270,379 758,797 168,686 47,117 1,354,600
RITEX Bank overdrafts 222 222 - - 222
EEEIE Advances from a director 44278 1483 45,761 = 47244
1,580,505 1,026,128 214,447 07,117 1,667,692
Krat - Note:

SEA IR EREZKEARNBITER
LB ELS TP EBEETANR
F—FERN|l R_ZT—=ZF~A=1+
B ELRITEROREFE RS B
#Z# 5395,466,000/ 7T (=& — —F -
125,750,000/ 70) ° & B 2| N & EH /Y
RN EEW T REBELBITA
BT AMNBREZERAEER &
EHE ZERTERERMFERED
WETRRBIETENRADHEERBH
REXRZE - B8 - K& KFBRER
15 3 & 7 #5442,005,0003% 7T °

Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “Within 1 year or on demand” time band in the
above maturity analysis. As at 30 June 2013, the aggregate
undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted
to HK$395,466,000 (2012: HK$125,750,000). Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise their
The
directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid two years
after the reporting date in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At that time,
the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will amount
to HK$442,005,000.

discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment.



194

BA %5 8 R P 5

Notes to the Financial Statements

BEZFE—=%,A=+HIL%E FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

343 RBELEE (&)

2NN

R=Z-=§XA=1H
FTESRER
EfbERERR
ERMER A
BEBR

BHMEER:
BRABEER
(Hit37)

R=E--fxA=1H
ETESRER

H bR R

e BARZE
BEH

BHMEER:
BRABEER
(Hiz37)

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED =&t (M) FRAR

Annual Report 2013 £33

M.SEEMREERAAEBEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
B (&)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
34.3 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company

At 30 June 2013

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Advances from a director

Financial guarantee issued:
Maximum amount guaranteed
(Note 37)

At 30 June 2012

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Other payables

Amounts due to subsidiaries
Advances from a director

Financial guarantee issued:
Maximum amount guaranteed
(Note 37)

R -RMRRER

Maturity Analysis - Undiscounted cash outflows

R-FER

MEEX

REE Within
Carrying 1 year or on
amount demand
TBT THETL

HK$' 000 HK$'000

653 653
535,979 535,979
29,208 938

SR-F KEBEBRE
BORME ifuet 2k
More than Total

Tyear but less  undiscounted
than 2 years  cash outflows

TR TAT
HK$' 000 HK$'000

- 653
- 535,979
30,146 31,084

565,840 537,570

- 1,533,404

568 568
395,444 395,444
44,278 1,483

30,146 567,716

- 1,533,404

= 568
- 395,444
45,761 47,244

440,290 397,495

- 1,270,600

45,761 443,256

- 1,270,600
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AEBHEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.4 Interest rate risk

MM.eHEREERED
HE (&)
34.4 F = E K

MERBEMBEILAZ AABESK
e E g K E TS R mZ
B2 AR - IRIRBERMBRITET
Hh  REBRARRNAEERNE L
BEEEE -

AEERARQTZFERREZERK
BREUERITHE « IRBERKE
SEE Hqﬂ“%fﬁh%ﬁ?ﬁ( S
BRNBEERNT R - EETHE
LOEBHE - A ASEERARAF]
HEBESRENEE R - RIBKE
ERREEEEGK  EEERE
%ﬂﬁ&%ﬁﬁéfﬁ TRIZEFEE
FESREBERE -

AN 52 [ N AN R S A PR F HA R =R
B RER -

AEEEHFECRBEARBEIER
KREBRHER - YRS R -

R-ZZTE—=F,"A=+08 ' BHF
R8T HES08 T BEEMEA
ETE > @R A EE B
B B F) R AR &5 496,147,000
BT (ZZF—=4F : 495,122,000/
JL) ° 50T LA THRAEE
BEEHEE T —EmRSANE &
B2 5T o

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Except for mortgage loans and bank balances,
the Group and the Company has no significant

interest-bearing assets.

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk
arises primarily from interest receivable from
bank balances, mortgage loans and interest-
bearing borrowings which includes bank loans
and advances from a director. These arrangements
issued at variable rates expose the Group and
the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. In
accordance with the terms of the mortgage loan
and the interest-bearing borrowings, the interest
rate will be adjusted should the Hong Kong dollar
prime rate and Hong Kong Interbank Offer Rate be
changed.

The Group and the Company has not used any
interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest

rate risk.

The policies to manage interest rate risk have
been followed by the Group since prior year are

considered to be effective.

At 30 June 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 50 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would decrease/increase the Group’s profit
after income tax and retained profits by
approximately HK$6,147,000 (2012: approximately
HK$5,122,000). The 50 basis point increase/
decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual reporting date.
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.5 Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
foreign exchange rates. The Group operates mainly
in Hong Kong, Malaysia and the PRC with most
of the transactions denominated in Hong Kong
dollars, Malaysian Ringgit (“RM”) or Renminbi
(“RMB”).

commercial transactions or recognised assets and

Foreign currency risk arises when future

liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group
considers its foreign currency exposure is mainly
arising from the exposure of RMB. The Group
has not entered into any derivative instruments to

hedge the foreign exchange exposures.

The policies to manage foreign currency risk have
been followed by the Group since prior years and

are considered to be effective.
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M. SREAKEENAAEBEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
B (&) FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)
34.5 HMEE = B (48) 34.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

AT RAREERNHE B A ERIEY
RREBREENRBBERYHZINER

k2

The following table details of the Group’s exposure
at the reporting date to foreign exchange risk
arising from recognised assets and liabilities
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entity to which they

relate are shown below:

E-E-=%XA=tH  At30]June 2013
ROEGERES Bank balances and cash
EaREmREER Trade and other receivables

Bk AL A R

Trade and other payables

TENRRFE Overall net exposure
HEZZ2-ZHXA=1H  At30June 2012
RITEERES Bank balances and cash

B I Lt JE W R 3 Trade and other receivables
BN R EL At B A R 3 Trade and other payables
TEMERFR Overall net exposure

ARH HEH EYr i sbe
RMB RM UsD MOP
THET TEL TR FEL
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
15,135 948 33,442 3
4,404 15 - -
(75) (4,910) - -
19,464 (3,947) 33,442 3
AR HEH e BRI
RMB RM usD MOP
THEL TEL TET TEL
HK$' 000 HK$’ 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
930 12 129 2
2,383 57 - -
(59) (777) - -
3,254 (708) 129 2

RZTE—=F~A=+8 8%
TRARMES,985%im H th B &
BEFETE  NEZBRBNERTNE
# 11106,0008 7T (ZF — —F :
118,000 L) ' TEZHRBAR
MEEKEE LIRS IE X ZREMR
18K -

At 30 June 2013 if Hong Kong dollar had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against RMB
with all other variables held constant, profit
after income tax for the year would have been
increased by HK$106,000 (2012: HK$118,000),
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses
on translation of RMB denominated assets and

liabilities.
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.5 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency
risk with RM and RMB. However,

monitors the foreign exchange exposure and will

management

consider hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risks
with United States dollars as the rate of exchange
between Hong Kong dollars and the United States
dollars is controlled within a tight range. Permanent
changes in foreign exchange rates would have an

impact on consolidated financial statements.

The foreign exchange risk exposed to the Company

at the reporting date is immaterial.

Other price risk

Other price risk relates to the risk that the fair
values or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
(other than changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is mainly exposed to
change in market prices of listed equity securities in
respect of its investments in listed equity classified
as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss. The management will monitor the price
movements and take appropriate actions when it is

required.

The policies to manage other price risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years and are

considered to be effective.
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M. EREERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

HER () FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.6 Hfib B A% E b () 34.6 Other price risk (Continued)
HMERERKZMENI0% (ZT—= A hypothetical 10% (2012: 10%) change in prices
F:10%) EREHHAREELRF of trading investments would result in an effect to
CEBRENT the Group’s result for the year as follows:

—E-=F —E——F

2013 2012
THT TET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
RERBEEEBE LA Increase in profit for the year as a result
HARFERAIE of increase in price of investments
held for trading 4,851 7,887

REFAEEERBE TR  Decrease in profit for the year as a result
HARFERMED decrease in price of investments

held for trading (4,851) (7,887)
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. EREERAABEERE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

BUR (#8)

U7 REAMBRRRFRRZATE
oF
TREIVREATFEESZ I
RBENEAFEHEZ SMEE
REEZER - ILRHBRR R
SOWMAERAEZ ATEMRER
ZEBERBAZIBE TR -
SREERREES R=EMAT -
AFERED AATEE -

— FIE-HREERBERE
BT 2 RE CRIFAE)

- FE-REBEEXRBREMEER
(BMER) sk (B 1E(E 15
P ABRZEMBA (TR
FIBFEEZHRE) &

— FIEUFREABEMS
BEMEREEXREBEZER
WA (EUBREHBA)

— TREEXRBEERESIEZ
NFERBAZER  BER
HAFEFEABEREREZ
RIEFERBAE -

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets and
liabilities measured at fair value in the statement
of financial position in accordance with the fair
value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups financial
assets and liabilities into three levels based on
the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of these financial assets
and liabilities. The fair value hierarchy has the

following levels:

— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active

markets for identical assets and liabilities;

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

and

— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that is

significant to the fair value measurement.
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34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

3 fan

ﬁ ok
o

n

Z The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair

value in the statement of financial position are

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

At 30 June 2013
Assets
Listed equity securities

held for trading

Liabilities
Derivative financial

instrument

Net fair value

At 30 June 2012
Assets
Listed equity securities

held for trading

Net fair value

HiF
Notes

Wiz

Notes

78,874

B ECE wEt
Level 1 Level 2 Total
FER FHET FTERT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
48,506 - 48,506
- (545) (545)
48,506 (545) 47,961
%—B  H-F st
Level 1 Level 2 Total
FHT T T FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000 HK$ 000
78,874 - 78,874

78,874
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4. cRmEKREERAABEEE 34.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

34.7 Fair value measurements recognised in the

BUR (#8)
U7 REEHBRERPRIZATE
it & ()

REEHELEE B F_ENM
F=ELMREE -

EREREHRELER  EEAAE
BEERBE MG T ERRME B K

.......

(a) _EEE%
TR HUABTRE  RALE
BENEIE2ERHEEN L
THE(E o

PTHET A
REEBANTETARESEE
ARERMS X5 - WEAH
B2 2 (B (B DA B5 1l B 68 P B8R
RZEMNBARK(ERER -
MEERFNR(BE_FE) °

(b)

3. EXREHE 35.
AEBETEEE S URIRAE B AL
HECSE TR ARREREEERE

N EH 25 T e 15 BB B AL A
RIEE AR A o

RERFRFHBERER  AEEFAR
TR 2B ~ HITHRRHEERE
BARE 75 ©

consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)

There have been no transfers between levels 1, 2

and 3 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used for

the purpose of measuring fair value are unchanged

compared to the previous reporting periods.

(a)

(b)

Listed securities

The listed equity securities are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars. Fair values have been
determined by reference to their quoted bid

prices at the reporting date.

Derivatives

The derivatives entered into by the Group are
not traded on active markets. The fair values of
such contracts are estimated using a valuation
technique that maximises the use of observable
market inputs e.g. market currency and interest

rates (Level 2).

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the

Group will be able to continue as a going concern for

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to

maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost

of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,

the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to

shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce

debt.
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35.CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debts divided by
total capital. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as total borrowings (including current and non-
current interest-bearing borrowings, bank overdrafts,
advances from a director and a related company as
shown in the consolidated statement of financial
position) less bank balances and cash. Total capital
is equity as shown in the consolidated statement of

financial position.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was
unchanged from 2009, was to maintain a gearing ratio
of not more than 50%. The gearing ratio at 30 June
2013 and 2012 were as follows:

—_E—=5F —_ZEF—=
2013 2012
FHET FA&TT
HK$’ 000 HK$” 000
BEEE Interest-bearing borrowings 1,515,446 1,270,379
RITEX Bank overdrafts 11,990 222
EEBXN Advances from a director 29,208 44,278
ERARER Total borrowings 1,556,644 1,314,879
B RITERNMIRE Less: bank balances and cash (78,187) (205,521)
BEFHE Net debt 1,478,457 1,109,358
A i Total capital 4,428,418 4,204,438
EEBERLX Gearing ratio 33.5% 26.4%
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36. & 36.COMMITMENTS
(a) EXEE (a) Capital commitments
s BN B R Y E 7 B AN Capital commitments in respect of properties under
Yk R B R IBI R FERE P development outstanding at the reporting date
A - not provided for in the financial statements are as
follows:
TEHE

The Group
—_E—=HF —E——4F
2013 2012
FHET TATT
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
CHUEEREYL Authorised but not contracted for 758,391 102,424
EENEBEREE Contracted but not provided for 786,685 739,351
1,545,076 841,775

(b)) 2EHE-AHEEA (b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor
RFER  NEERBEYWELET At the reporting date, the Group had future
BERUEZ AT » ARWE 2 &K aggregate minimum lease rental receipts under
THeRWZRAENT : non-cancellable operating leases in respect of the

Group’s properties as follows:
rEH

The Group
—E—=F —EF—CF
2013 2012
FE T FHET
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
—F R Within one year 26,407 28,877

F_EERFA In the second to fifth years

(BREEMSE) inclusive 7,410 6,074

33,817 34,951
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36. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments — as lessor

(©)

(Continued)

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
16) under operating lease arrangements which run
for an initial period of one to three years, with an
option to renew the lease terms at the expiry date
or at dates as mutually agreed between the Group
and the respective tenants. The terms of the lease
generally also require the tenants to pay security
deposits. None of the leases include contingent

rentals.

Operating lease commitments — as lessee

At the reporting date, the total future aggregate
minimum lease payments payable by the Group
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect

of land and buildings are as follows:

rEHE

The Group
—E—=F T4
2013 2012
FTHERT TAETT
HK$’ 000 HK$" 000
—F R Within one year 28 =

F_EERFA In the second to fifth years

(BREEREMF) inclusive - _
28 —
AEBREBELEEHERAYE - HEY The Group leases a property under operating

FRE—F RIHPAIKAKELEARHE
EIETHEOBHAEZEEAR
Bimgx  HEYESExEAHES -

leases. The leases run for an initial period of
one year with an option to renew the lease and
renegotiate the terms at the expiry date or at
dates as mutually agreed between the Group and
respective landlords. None of the leases include

contingent rentals.
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HEZ

37.

38.

F—=FA=1+HIFE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

MBREEREN

B H T E THEB QAR &R
2,632,728,0008 L (Z T — = F :
1,908,846,000/8 7T) IiR1TA & - AR
RIEMRITIERRIER - R_T—=4F

NA=+TH UHERMEETERAZH
®8/41,514,892,0008 0 (=T —=F :
1,232,870,000/7T) - R¥EH - EF

REEZTRRAAEMBEREOTZ
;\E{*Eﬂjﬁé{% - ATAIREHIR TNMEEE
HIER - WERBRZAABEILESA

Ego

BEEIEH

REEH - REBUTIEERR &
$R1T {8 B B1,515,446,000/ T (=&
— =% :1,270,379,0007% JT) :

(i) REEMNETREDE FHE
M W BBREBEREAR
BEFABGRZEHEEERT
BEH5152,918,447,0008 70 (=&
— — 4 :2,796,980,000% t) (B
#F16) %965,897,0008 7L (= &
— — 4 : 306,540,000 7T ) (Bt &£
22) %111,468,0008 T (- & ——
£ : 102,130,000 7t) (Pt 3E17)
%33,824,000% L (Z T — 4 :
69,429,000/ 7t) (Mf5E23) B HE#7
THRTT ©

37.

38.

Annual Report 2013 £33

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS OF
THE COMPANY

The Company has executed corporate guarantees to
banks in respect of banking facilities granted to certain
subsidiaries to the extent of HK$2,632,728,000 (2012:
HK$1,908,846,000) of which HK$1,514,892,000
(2012: HK$1,232,870,000) was utilised as at 30 June
2013. At the reporting date, no provision for the
Company’s obligation under the guarantee contracts
have been made as the directors considered that it was
not probable that the repayment of the loans by the
subsidiaries would be in default. The fair value of these

guarantees is immaterial.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS
At the reporting date, the Group’s total bank borrowings
of HK$1,515,446,000 (2012: HK$1,270,379,000) were

secured by the following:

(i) legal charges on certain of the Group’s investment

properties, properties for sales, property, plant
and equipment and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with carrying values of
HK$2,918,447,000 (2012: HK$2,796,980,000)
(Note 16), HK$965,897,000 (2012:
HK$306,540,000) (Note 22), HK$111,468,000
(2012: HK$102,130,000) (Note 17) and
HK$33,824,000 (2012: HK$69,429,000) (Note 23)

respectively;
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3. EEIEM (&) 38.PLEDGE OF ASSETS (Continued)

(i) & THEBRRIFAEEE RABIER (ii) floating charge over all the assets and undertakings
KA of certain subsidiaries;

(iii) SRITEFIRMAE9,608,000/8 7T (= (iii) charge over certain bank account balances
T —_4F : 6,482,000/ 7T ) VK with carrying values of HK$9,608,000 (2012:
o HK$6,482,000);

(ivi ETHEBRAR 2RO EERTRT (iv) mortgages over the shares of certain subsidiaries
(Mi3E20) + & (Note 20); and

(v) ETYENHERE - Rl - (v) assignments of sale proceeds, insurance proceeds,
HEWAREBLDM&ERNIRE rental income and deposits arising from the tenancy

agreements of certain properties.

39. kB F 39. COMPARATIVE FIGURES
BETHREFEEFTDE  UFEARFE Certain comparative figures have been reclassified to

EH25HK - conform to the current year’s presentation.
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CERYE

R-E—=FXA=+H

nE

Property

BEMRAKELEE
SR (F)

Scenic Crest

Mui Wo

Lantau Island

New Territories

Hong Kong (Portion)

BRBAFAEES0R

ARIEE (BH)

South View Garden
80 Shek Pai Wan Road,
Aberdeen, Hong Kong

(Portion)

BRESHE00%
7 (1)

Villa Cecil

200 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong (Portion)

w&

Lot no.

40716308

716in D D. 4

57184, 185,
186, 187, 188,
189, 190%21915%
AL 184,185,
186, 187, 188,
189, 190 &191

73t 6833857 B &
RIEREHH

Sec. Bof L.
8338 & Ext.

COMPLETED PROPERTIES
As At 30 June 2013

WREH

Crown
lease term
(F)

(years)

FHH1992F
55
55 from 1992

H1888%F
519995

999 from 1888

M1922F 8
S7SEETE
75 + 75 from
1922

i

B AREER
Approved

total gross

Type  floor area
(FAR)

(s.f)

BE/fEE 3,892

Commercial/ 3,892

Residential

BE/EE -

Commercial/ -

Residential

Residential -

g
AEEER
Marketable

total gross

floor area

3,903

3,903

Annual Report 2013 £33

frfb &
Bfr AR
Car parking
spaces % owned
- 100
- 100
10 100
10 100
1 100
1 100
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Schedule of Major Properties

EEKRME(EF) COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
R-_T—=FXA=+H As At 30 June 2013
EHtE nE s
nE wa WREH P #BEER 4BEER Bfr AR
Approved  Marketable
Crown total gross total gross  Car parking
Property Lot no. lease term Type  floor area floor area spaces % owned
(%) (FAR)
(years) (s.f)
BAHEFB250% Rt R2769% 2 4 T m1929% 5t [ 56,174 73,000 25 100
SRS R ER2769%: 2 99F H99F
BT HHDRIDR
Cheuk Nang Plaza R.P.of I.L. 2769 99 + 99 from Commercial 56,174 73,000 25 100
250 Hennessary Road, R.P. of S.D. 1929
Hong Kong of I.L. 2769 R.P.
of $.5. 1 of S.D.
of I.L. 2769
BRILREEE0N MR ED m1992% e 6,683 12,500 4 100
SEEIE (31) $510675 55 F
Cheuk Nang Lookout, R.B.L. 1067 55 from 1992 Residential 6,683 12,500 4 100
30 Severn Road,
The Peak,
Hong Kong (Portion)
BRESNEI2% MR 2441 19235 5t iz 38,197 51,483 20 100
BRE_HE— —R=E 7575 F
(%7)
Villa 1, Villa 2 and Villa 3, I.L. 2441 75 + 75 from Residential 38,197 51,483 20 100
Villa Cecil, Phase II, 1923

192 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong (Portion)
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EENYE(E)
R-E—=FXA=+H

nE

Property

BRHSHB16%
BR=HE-BR
FE

Tower 1 and 2,

Villa Cecil, Phase IIl,
216 Victoria Road,
Hong Kong

ERAEeBEEES

SRAEERET

EEK502508E (5517)

w&

Lot no.

MARENH 2155
REESH

R.B.L. 215 & Ext

F13595 8
(BITEPT77305),
E578

Parkview@ Cecil Chao Centre,  Section 57, Lot

Lorong Perak
50250 Kuala Lumpur

Malaysia (Portion)

1359 (formerly Lot
PT77), Section 57
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COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
As At 30 June 2013

WREH

Crown

lease term
(F)

(years)

H1922F 5
75EETSE

75 + 75 from
1922

KAERE

Freehold

£hl

Type

Residential

Residential

i
AREER
Approved
total gross

floor area
(FFR)
(s.f)

73,293

73,293

27,236

27,236

g
AEEER
Marketable

total gross

floor area

97,000

97,000

Efi

Car parking

spaces

21

frfb &
AR

% owned

100

100

100
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Schedule of Major Properties
BRPU=E PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
N_ZE—=FXA=+H As At 30 June 2013
R-8-zf
Bk b fhgE  RiIR RAZTH
0% & BREE  wARE #BEER  A8EER AREER i BAE %A BIfR
Approved  Marketable Car Stage of
Government Site total gross total gross parking completion Development
Property Lot no. lease term Type* area  floorarea floor area spaces % owned date asat 30/6/2013
(%) (F7R)  (FAR)
(years| s) (sf)
—$ARLE EEME mIonE BT %09 B9 113388 68 100 me - F-EZARERER
BELETAEEAE RS BiE ECHIEIRERD
One Kowloon Peak TsuenWan 56 from 1991 Residential 39,998 83,991 113,368 08 100 2014 Occupation Permit for
§ Po Fung Terace, Town Lot 352 Phase | obtained.
Ting Kau, Tsuen Wan The superstructure
of Phase Il work
is in progress
B8RS FIwRieE  KARE  ER/EE mew ECH - 87 00 BRAT RERMETER
58 13 (fRS6%, 1,708,648 33 35t
EXEZERAT 091,049,051
BRISNSIEE  PTORHR)E7R
Phase I Section 57 Freehold ~ Commerciall 86,638 Phase 2 - 867 100 Not yet Pile caps and
Cecil Chao Centre Lot 1385 Residential 1,708,648 determined hasement in progress
Lorong Perak 50250, and 11386
Kuala Lumpur (formerly
Malaysia Lots 690,
849, 851

and PT78)
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-

HRPYE(E)
R_T—=FXA=1+H
Uk & B258
Government
Property Lot no. lease term
(F)
(years|
RERA TR EOME
HMIEREER ABI9-0126 N
Cheuk Nang Garden LotNo 70 from 2004
Longhwe, Longgang, AB19:0128
Shenzhen
BFRRRAE NIEHE  EONER
108
Estrada de Seac PaiVan ~ LotNo 21202 10 from 2011
it RACEAD  m0rF
BRSNS ARRISEAR  &0F
New Villa Cecil Lot No. 164850 from 2007
Shui Hang, D.D. Cheung Chau
Cheung Cha,
Hong Kong
SR REE (R d009E
e ShEkl  nAnA
il Eit0E
B3 - B2009F
12A25BE
iE
Cheuk Nang # Chong Xian Zhen ~ Residentia:
Riverside North of Chong Hang Jie 70 years from
YuHang District ~ Westof Yan Shan Gang ~~ 25/1212009
Hangzhou Commercial:
40 years from

251212009

BaRE:

Type*

B2/%

Commerciall
Residential

Bx/k%

Commerciall
Residential

Residential

Residential/
Commercial

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

(Continued)
As At 30 June 2013

hEEmE
Site

area
(FAR)
s
552,454

552454

97,934

97,934

111,752

419,623

419,623

ok
REEER
Approved
total gross
floor area

(F5R)
(]

1,638,604

1,638,604

1,219,426

1219426

40,683

40,603

1,318,407

1318407

g
BEEER
Marketable

total gross
floor area

1,592,212

1,592,012

55,192

55,192

&l
Car
parking
spaces

1,054

1,054

860

800

780

780

ki
EEES

% owned

100

100

7169

71.69

100

100
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it IR
RHAS
Stage of
completion
date

2014

2014

Not yet
determined

2015

2015

2014

20

4

Wg-zE
R
BIER

Development
asat 30/6/2013

FEIRLE

Superstructure in progress

Bkt

Revise building plan

F-BAkgRHE
FoBIETR
BREBNRR

The Occupation Permit

of Phase | was issued.

The superstructure of Phase I

will be commenced soon.

LETREER

Superstructure in progress



@

CHEUK NANG (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
2 (KE) SRAF




	封面
	目錄
	五年財務概要
	股東週年大會通告
	主席報告書
	董事及高層管理人員簡介
	組織資料
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合收益表
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況報表
	綜合狀況報表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合權益變動表
	財務報表附註
	主要物業表
	封底

